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Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Corporate Profile

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson Development”)
was founded in 1992, and its shares have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1998 (Stock code:
00754). Hopson Development is a major property group that specializes in
the development of medium to high-end large-scale residential properties.
In terms of land bank, it is one of the largest property developers in The
People’s Republic of China.

Since 1995, Hopson Development has started to establish its brand on a
nationwide scale through deploying appropriate corporate strategy and
business model. The principal focus is on three Core Economic Zones,
namely Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai area and Yangtze River Delta, with
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai as the core cities. In Guangzhou
and Beijing, the brands such as “Regal Riviera”, “Gallopade” and “Fairview”
have been established to cover a range of businesses including product
designs, customer services and facilities; and to accommodate different
community cultures and different operating models. Each property project
is featured with a unique theme to demonstrate the strength of our
corporate branding. Strong brand recognition at project level enhances
the positioning and marketability of the corporate branding.

Major investments were made in the first-tier cities such as Guangzhou,
Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai over the past few years.
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Corporate and Listing Information

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Executive Directors

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman)

XIANG Bin (Deputy Chairman)

CHEN Chang Ying (Chief Executive Officer) (Resigned on
21st January 2010)

XUE Hu (Appointed as Chief Executive Officer
on 22nd March 2010)

AU Wai Kin

ZHAO Ming Feng (Chief Financial Officer)

LIAO Ruo Qing (Appointed on 21st January 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip (Resigned on 2nd July 2010)
LEE Tsung Hei, David

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver

TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron (Appointed on 2nd July 2010)

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip (Resigned on 2nd July 2010)
LEE Tsung Hei, David (Chairman)

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver

TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron (Appointed on 2nd July 2010)

MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, solicitor

AU Wai Kin
ZHAO Ming Feng

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong
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Corporate and Listing Information (continued)

As to Hong Kong Law
Minter Ellison

15th Floor, Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road

Central, Hong Kong

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of East Asia

China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Standard Chartered Bank

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

Guangzhou - 16th Floor, South Tower
Zhujiang Investment Building
421 Zhujiang East Road
Zhujiang New City, Guangzhou

Beijing —  Zhujiang Development Centre
23 Dawang Road West
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Shanghai - 19th Floor, No. 695, Lingshi Road,
Zhabei District, Shanghai

Tianjin — No. 14 Dongchengnan Road

Baodi District, Tianjin
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Corporate and Listing Information (continued)

SHAREHOLDERS' CALENDAR

Close of Register
13th June 2011 to 16th June 2011 (both days inclusive)

16th June 2011

Proposed final dividend HK17.15 cents
Payable on Thursday, 30th June 2011

LISTING INFORMATION

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

00754

The Company’s 8.125% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

The Company's 11.75% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
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Corporate.Structure. E32E1E
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Royale Hotel
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Century Property
Management
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— Jingjin City — —
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Jingjin New Town
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Tianjin Hopson
International Tower
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International Mansion
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Dalian Lushun Hopson
Regal Seashore
RERIESETILFS

Taiyuan Project
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Corporate Structure (continued) 7=32424E (%)

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone & = && B Pearl River Delta Economic Zone ¥k = A& ERE|
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- - — — —  Riviera Hotel
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Pleasant View
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Huanan New City
R
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South Court
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Hopson Town Regal Riviera
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Hopson Golf Regal Palace Huizhou Golf
Mansion SE Manor
RERBANE Yijing Huayuan LEEEANE
Sheshan Dongziyuan FESER Huizhou Regal
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Plaza Guangzhou Jiahe e
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Hopson Fortune S 2 R
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Shanghai Songjiang BEME¥ L
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Sanlin Project Guangzhou
LEER=MER Nam Fong Garden
Shanghai Jinshan Project
New District EMNmEEEEEE
LB&WHER Hushan Guoji Villa
WL B
Qianjin Road
Project
AIERIER
Guangdong

Esteem Property

Services Limited

ERESRWERSE
BRAR

—E-TEER

BERAREERRAR



Annual Report 2010

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Financial Highlights

2010
—B-BF
HK$'000
FEx
Revenues &3 6,920,294 11,130,643 10,774,624 11,225,246
Profit before taxation [ %% Al % 2,461,536 5,177,451 3,861,762 8,791,918
Taxation PIE (837,358) (1,629,245) (1,912,812) (2,699,383)
Profit for the year F R A 1,624,178 3,548,206 1,948,950 6,092,535
Non-controlling interests FE 10 Il 1 A 2 (70,426) (30,894) 14,774 (292,962)
Profit attributable to shareholders % 58 8 Ak s A 1,553,752 3,517,312 1,963,724 5,799,573
Profit attributable to shareholders & 3R 1 3 A (Rt & 1
(excluding the effect of revaluation HEREAFEFHE
and excess of acquirer’s interest at ZWEFERER
fair value over cost of acquisition) W R B AN 2 BB 1) 1,092,535 1,993,451 1,742,495 2,274,409
Earnings per share BRAEF
— Basic —HAK HK127 cents 7l HK254 cents 7l HK133 cents 7l HK377 cents 7l
— Diluted —&E HK126 cents A1l HK249 cents A1l HK133 cents A1l HK369 cents A1l
Dividends per share (53395 HK37.9 cents #{ll  HK41.9 cents i HK20.0 cents 1l HK9.2 cents 71l
Net assets value per share SREEFE HK$6.40 BT HK$13.64 7T HK$15.33 7T HK$19.15 7T

Profit attributable to shareholders
(excluding the effect of revaluation
and excess of acquirer’s interest at
fair value over cost of acquisition)

% 51 FE 45 7% A
Revenues Profit attributable to shareholders (R EGFERRAFEFERZ
Wz % R PE A 5 F WESEDESRWERARZIH5)
(HK$'000) (HK$000) (HK$000)
FAT FHET T T
16,000,000 6,000,000 3,500,000
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Chairman’s.Statement

Chu Mang Yee 4% & &
Chairman £ J&

The Group continued to adopt a prudent approach in 2010 and
achieved satisfactory operating results during the year. The Group
remains prudently optimistic about the property market conditions
in 2011 and strives to achieve steady growth in its results and reap
high investment returns.

—E-2F EEESBFFIREKLEINST METRAMRE
MREERR - B8 —T——FFHMEMSRFEELES B
FREEEFNRBEFEER ERSNKRERR -

09

—T-THFH

BEAREEBRAA -



10

- Annual Report 2010

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Chairman’s Statement (continued) = E#i (&)

Guangzhou Regal Riviera is located next to the Guangzhou TV Tower
it 745 /B M T 47 B S £ 5 BN BT 75 =R

The Group continued to adopt a prudent approach in 2010 and leveraged
on its unparalleled strengths, first-class capabilities of property
development and sophisticated internal control mechanism to maintain a
stable business operation with emphasis on balance and improvement.
The Group achieved satisfactory operating results during the year.

Thanks to better product portfolio, balanced regional development and
professional division of labour, turnover of the Group for the year ended
31st December 2010 amounted to HK$14,379 million, representing an
increase of 28% compared to 2009. Net asset per share grew 22% to
HK$23.39.

(1) MARKET OVERVIEW AND OPERATING
ENVIRONMENT IN 2010

(i) National market

1. Economic environment overview

The national GDP of 2010 was RMB39,798.3 billion,
grew 10.3% from last year and the growth rate rose 1.1
percentage points when compared to that of last year.
The total income per capita of urban households was
RMB21,033, representing a growth of 11.5% from last
year. The balance of national foreign exchange reserve
reached US$2,847.3 billion, jumped 18.7% from last
year.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Night view of Guangzhou Regal Riviera

BMNHKIERRE

2010 was the last year of the “4,000-billion yuan”
investment plan. The stimulus measures introduced by
the government led to ample market liquidity and faster
macro-economy growth. The GDP growth rate reached
10% again. However, in face of the overheating
economy and inflation, the government took gradual
steps to cool down the economy through tightening of
monetary policies, rising of both capital adequacy ratio
and interest rate so as to create a more favourable
economic environment for steady development of the
real estate market.

Real estate market overview

In 2010, excess market liquidity and feverish speculative
activities led to rapid escalation of house prices that
drew the attention of the government. To restrain rising
property prices for a steady and healthy real estate
market, the government launched a series of austerity
policies to curb speculative activities. The adoption of
differential credit plan, together with the increase in
housing supply, tightening of market regulations and
introduction of home purchase limits in certain
overheating cities alleviated market imbalance in the
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

short run and affected the volume of housing
transactions. However, in the long run, these austerity
policies are favourable to the sector, developers and
customers since they helped maintain an orderly market
and create a more stable and healthy market
environment for industry players.

Thanks to the substantial demand arising from full
economic recovery, urbanisation, urban village
redevelopment and residents’ desire for better housings,
the PRC property market maintained an upward trend in
2010. Investment in real estate development for the year
was RMB4,826.7 billion, up 32% from last year. The
gross floor area of commodity housing sold and sales of
commodity housing were 1,043 million sg.m. and
RMBS5,250 billion, representing a year-on-year increase
of 10.1% and 18.3% respectively.

We believe that the positive momentum of the marco-
economy, pace of urbanization and urban village
redevelopment, introduction of regional stimulus plans,
construction of high speed rail network and large supply
of work force will remain unchanged in China, the real
estate market in first-tier and second to third-tier cities
still offer vast market opportunities and promising
prospects. However, we expects that the government
will continue to implement austerity policies such as
monetary policies to increase interest rate to tackle with
inflation and overheating of economy, which will
adversely affect the transactions of housings in the short
run. In line with the changes in the market, the Group
will adopt proactive measures, modify product portfolio
and tap better income sources to ensure sustainable
growth of its results.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Southern China

With Guangzhou as its core in southern China, the
Group expands its business to neighbouring cities with
vast potential such as Foshan and Zhongshan, and
speeds up development progress of existing projects in
the region. Through actively exploring new land bank
resources and involving in urban village redevelopment,
the Group managed to acquire adequate resources for
future development in the region and enhance its
market position in the area.

In terms of geographical locations, cities can be divided
into two levels, namely centre and gateway. Generally,
cities located in these two geographical areas enjoy
greater opportunities and stronger capabilities in
development. Guangzhou is one of the few cities in the
PRC that possesses both edges as a centre and a
gateway city geographically. As the forefront of
reformation and opening up, Guangzhou managed to
achieve a GDP of over RMB1,000 billion in 2010, making
it the third city after Beijing and Shanghai in the PRC to
have a GDP of over RMB1,000 billion. Guangzhou also
ranked third among other cities in the PRC in terms of
aggregate economic output. The city maintains positive
economic momentum which provides solid foundation
for the stable growth of the real estate market.

As the status of Guangzhou as a national central city is
further enhanced with the commencement of the
Wuhan-Guangzhou High Speed Railway and
reinforcement of the integration of Guangzhou and
Foshan strategy, it offers new growth momentum to the
local real estate market. The success of the 2010
Guangzhou Asian Games not only reinforced the
domestic and international reputation of Guangzhou but
also brought new opportunities to the city’s real estate
market.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Property price in Guangzhou is relatively low when
compared with Beijing, Shanghai and other first-tier
cities in the PRC. However, the Guangzhou real estate
market is expected to generate vast market opportunities
following improvement of urban development network
of the city and development of the one-hour Economic
Zone of the Pearl River Delta. The Group will expand its
business to enhance its leading position in Guangzhou
real estate market. With Guangzhou as its core, the
Group will extend to regions and cities in the Pearl River
Delta with vast potential.

As a natural extension of Shenzhen and an important
coastal city in the Pearl River Delta region, Huizhou has a
relatively strong transfer capability. The execution of the
“Outline of the Plan for the Reform and Development of
the Pearl River Delta Region” speeded up the integration
of Shenzhen, Dongguan and Huizhou and led to closer
connection between Hong Kong and Macau. Urban
railway and transportation network in Huizhou was
further improved. The integration of Shenzhen,
Dongguan and Huizhou will facilitate regional
development and cooperation. Along with industrial
transformation, economy of Huizhou will flourish with
tremendous opportunities. A few years ago, the Group
foresaw the economic growth and housing demands in
Huizhou and implemented effective business strategy to
develop medium to high-end projects such as Huizhou
Regal Riviera Bay, Huizhou Golf Manor and Hopson
International New City and established renowned brand
name and leading market position in the region. The
strategy was proven to be successful as projects in
Huizhou recorded significant growth in sales from last
year. We anticipate that Huizhou will become the
Group's sub-centre in southern China and is going to
generate greater revenue to the Group in the coming
future.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Northern China

The current strategy of the Group in northern China is to
consider Beijing as its core, with both cities of Beijing
and Tianjin as central development zones that extend to
cities in the Huanbohai area and major second and third-
tier cities in northern China. Being an important
forefront of the Group, northern China region
contributed 41% to the Group's results in 2010.

As the national capital, a cosmopolitan and a renowned
cultural and historical city, Beijing attracts talents across
a wide spectrum of industries and its position as a core
city for national economic development was further
strengthened. In 2010, the economy of Beijing
maintained rapid growth with regional GDP rose 10.2%
to hit RMB1,377.79 billion. Retail sales of consumer
goods and disposal income per capita of households also
recorded rapid growth with disposal income per capita
of urban households amounted to RMB29,073, up 8.7%.
The overall national economy grew at a rapid pace.

Being the focus of austerity measures, property market
of Beijing remained feverish during 2010 with rising
investment in real estate development and selling price,
thanks to regular demand for property and the demand
to improve living standards and for investment purposes.
Investment in real estate development for the year was
RMB290.11 billion, up 24.1% from last year. In
particular, investment in residential housing reached
RMB150.9 billion, up 66.4%, investment in office
buildings amounted to RMB25.91 billion, rose 55.4%
and investment in properties for business purpose was
RMB33.63 billion, jumped 67.5%. The real estate market
witnessed strong growth momentum.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

During the reporting period, the Group further
consolidated its position in the Beijing market. The
Group’s projects in Beijing were well received in the
market because of its prominent development concept,
leading service quality and high performance-price ratio.
Sales of No. 8 Xiaoyun Road project ranked top among
all high-end projects in the Beijing region for five
consecutive months, which established a leading position
and set a standard in the high-end property market in
the region. In addition, the Group’s medium to high-end
projects such as Hopson Dreams World and Hopson
Kylin Zone in Beijing were also well received by
customers for their well-developed regional facilities and
high appreciation potential. Selling price increased
significantly as anticipated. The Beijing real estate market
is expected to generate better sales for the Group in the
future along with the continuous economic development
of the capital city and successful execution of the Capital
Economic Circle Strategy.

Along with the development of Binhai new area, Tianjin
is another important city in the Huanbohai area that
witnessed robust economic growth in 2010 with
national GDP exceeded RMB900 billion and hit
RMB910.883 billion, up approximately 17.4% from last
year. Both the land market and property market
maintained strong and rapid growth. In 2010, the
average transaction price of newly-built commodity
housings in Tianjin was RMB9,270 per sg.m., rose
25.02% from 2009. Area of land plots sold was 55.9674
million sg.m. involving considerations of RMB87.893
billion and a growth rate of 20.87%. Geographical
distribution of land transactions showed that there is a
lack of land supply in city centre and land plots in remote
areas dominated the land market. The real estate market
in remote areas is expected to be increasingly active in
the future. The Group owns premium land bank located
in prime areas in the city centre of Tianjin which are of
high profitability. In Baodi District of Tianjin, the Group
adopted regional development strategy for its Jingjin
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

New Town project. Products were launched successively
in respective regions and were well received by
customers with satisfactory sales performance. The
region will show impressive growth in the future and
Tianjin region will make greater contributions to the
Group's results.

Eastern China

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone was regarded by the
Group as an important hub for future business growth,
where Shanghai is the Group’s core city with Ningbo
and Hangzhou as neighbours. In 2010, the Group
successfully extended its footprint into second and third-
tier cities with vast development potential, namely
Kunshan of Jiangsu and Cixi of Zhejiang. About 20% of
turnover was generated from eastern China region. We
expects the region will generate more income to the
Group when the projects on the new land plots acquired
during the reporting period are launched to the market.

As the leading city in China’s economic development,
Shanghai continued to maintain strong growth
momentum in 2010 with GDP amounted to
RMB1,687.242 billion for the year, grew 9.9% from last
year. Aggregate sales of commodities reached
RMB3,738.325 billion, rose 24.2% from last year and
disposal income of urban households was RMB31,838,
up 10.4% from last year.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

The strategy of building a world-class city and the
success of the 2010 Shanghai World Expo not only
reinforced the domestic and international reputation of
Shanghai, but also benefited the macro economy and
infrastructural facilities which help boost the growth of
different sectors and bring new opportunities to the
city’s real estate market.

During the year, the Group has successfully established
its strategic foothold in eastern China. Leading high-end
projects in the Shanghai real estate market such as
Dongjiao Villa and Sheshan Dongziyuan were popular
among customers. The Group maintained its leading
position in the villa market of Shanghai in terms of
transaction volume and average selling price and
remained the benchmark of Shanghai luxury villa market.
In the city centre, the Group successfully acquired
premium land plots in Guang Fu Lin and Sanlin. When
these projects are launched, the Group’s position in the
Shanghai market will be consolidated and enhanced.
Meanwhile, the Group's strategy to consider Shanghai
as its core and expand to neighbouring second and
third-tier cities has proven to be successful. The Group
successfully entered cities such as Kunshan of Jiangsu
and other regions. When these new projects are
launched to the market, it is anticipated that the eastern
China region will contribute more to the Group’s
revenue.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

(2)

(3)

PROSPECTS OF THE PRC PROPERTY SECTOR

Looking ahead to 2011, there will be further tightening of monetary
policies to tackle overheating macro economy and inflation pressure.
Driven by global economic recovery, industrial transformation and
changing mode of economic growth, macro economy will witness
stable growth. As mentioned above, favourable factors such as
urbanisation, regional stimulus plans, urban village redevelopment
and construction of high speed rail network will generate substantial
demand in the real estate market. Given the inelastic land supply,
the problem of imbalance in the real estate market is not likely to be
resolved in the short run. The real estate market is having a
promising future.

The authority will continue to implement the series of market curbs
such as differential interest rate and home purchase limits in 2011,
the sector will witness a tug-of-war between government policies
and the market. This helps maintain an orderly and healthy property
market and favourable to the development of the sector in the long
run. However, these measures will inevitably lead to wait-and-see
sentiment of home-buyers which will adversely affect market
transactions in the short run. Nevertheless, the accumulated demand
is ready for release in the market. In 2011, the real estate market
will witness structural adjustment and growth amid fluctuating
market conditions. There will be changes in market demand and
supply and product mix.

PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP

The Group remains prudently optimistic about the property market
conditions in 2011 as we expects the authority may keep its austerity
measures following its tightening monetary policies in 2011. While
risk and opportunity coexist, the possible structural adjustments in
the market will provide the Group with new opportunities. The
Group will persist in optimising its internal control mechanism and
management system and at the same time making necessary
adjustment in response to market demand. The Group will adopt
the principle strategy which emphasizes balance and enhancement
to maintain a well-balanced business structure and product portfolio.
Product quality will be enhanced to further consolidate and advance
the Group's leading position in the industry. The Group aims to
achieve steady growth in its results and reap high investment
returns.

(2)

(3)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

In view of market uncertainties, the Group will enhance its
adaptability for better resilience against the risk of market
fluctuations. Initiatives will be made on three levels: first of all, to
enhance management efficiency, reinforce operations mechanism
for higher synergies and simplify procedures and work flow to
upgrade execution capability. Secondly, to maintain a solid financial
position, strengthen its financial base and ensure a healthy financial
position for stability and sustainability. Lastly, to implement the
strategy of “construction according to sales progress”, to closely
monitor market trend and enhance flexibility in construction and
sales for better control of development progress in response to
changes in market conditions.

The Group will maintain a business portfolio with residential
property sales as its focus and an appropriate portion in commercial
projects. A reasonable proportion of investment properties and
properties for sale will be maintained while at the same time
investment in commercial properties will be increased to tap a stable
source of cash revenue and higher return from property
appreciation, on condition that the Group’s asset turnover rate and
healthy operations are not affected. On the other hand, the Group
will modify its strategic regional planning and sharpen its focus on
second and third-tier cities which are more stable and less affected
by austerity measures in order to diversify the risk of market
centralisation. Moreover, the Group will maintain or increase the
proportion of high-end projects to secure higher investment return
and safeguard its core competitive edge of high margin. The Group
will also speed up development and sales of medium to high-end
projects to provide sufficient operating cash flow to mitigate risks
arising from tightening monetary policies and to ensure its healthy
operations.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Product quality is the key to success in market competition. The
Group is in pursuit of continuous quality improvement for higher
performance-price ratio and added value. To provide customers with
quality and exquisite homes, the Group will further improve
construction work management and quality control in order to
consolidate its market leading role in terms of overall construction
quality. The Group will strictly implement its development of more
commercial projects strategy and facilitate the construction of
clubhouses and quality hotels, invite strategic partners to create
upgraded living community and provide value-added services to
improve the quality of property services. Our projects will be more
competitive with improved performance-price ratio, added value and
appreciation potential.

The Group strives to be a leading developer engaged in quality
properties. In the coming years, we will focus to purse quality
excellence to keep our brand recognition which is one of our core
competitive edges. The Group will strengthen the management and
quality control of its product by modifying the development flow,
which includes design layout, material procurement, construction
supervision, sales and marketing in order to consolidate its status as
an industry leader.

As mentioned above, the Group will response to market changes
with flexibility. For land bank replenishment, we will keep our
prudent manner and acquire land bank in suitable locations so as to
maintain a balanced product portfolio and business development. In
2011, the Group will uphold its prudent yet flexible land bank
strategy with an emphasis on the performance-price ratio of land
plots. The Group will acquire land plots with great appreciation
potential in first-tier cities of the Yangtze River Delta, Huanbohai
area and Pearl River Delta by phases and in a moderate manner with
an aim for a balanced development between investment projects
and properties for sales, an optimal proportion of high-end projects
and medium to high-end projects, and appropriate distribution of
projects between first-tier cities and second to third-tier cities.
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(4) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT (4) &
On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude F "AAZEKRREESH WG
to all members of the management and staff for their relentless WS EENEREERERETLS
efforts in making the year a successful one for the Group. | would KEEFORINETMESNTEE -
also like to thank our shareholders, investors, business associates BB R - REE  AEE
and customers for their great support, help and trust. We are HFURBPHTFTEBN KRNI E
confident that we can bring better returns to our shareholders in the HEPMEE - ZHMBZSHELM
coming years. BN RERRRFMEEENME

] o

CHU Mang Yee FE

Chairman KEMK

Hong Kong, 31st March 2011 =% —ET——&F=A=+—8H

-2
Ay

Hopson’s project in Taiyuan of Shanxi
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Last year, the Group operated amid an ever-changing market
condition with numerous uncertainties and vast influence. Internally,
the Group closely monitored market changes and maintained stable
and healthy operations, at the same time strengthened its internal
management and balanced the relationship between related

groups during the year.
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Last year, the Group operated amid an ever-changing market condition
with numerous uncertainties and vast influence. Internally, the Group
closely monitored market changes and maintained stable and healthy
operations, at the same time strengthened its internal management and
balanced the relationship between related groups during the year. As a
results of these efforts, the Group managed to achieve satisfactory
performance in 2010.

In the past year where a series of austerity policies were introduced, the
Group was able to deliver satisfactory results with the co-operation and
efforts from various parties. Turnover and net profit of the Group for the
year amounted to HK$14,379 million and HK$5,889 million respectively.

The Group also attained a number of achievements during the year. As for
land bank which is regarded as the key to growth for property developers,
the Group completed various major acquisitions during the year and
successfully expanded to new regions. For product mix, the Group kept a
balanced portfolio of investment properties and properties for sale, while
an appropriate proportion of highly competitive high-end residential
projects and medium to high-end projects is maintained during the year.
In short, the Group is on the track of stable development and is well-
prepared to overcome any forthcoming threats and challenges on the road
of development.

(1) 2010 RESULTS OVERVIEW

2010 Major results figures:

Results Figures

Turnover EESON HK$ million
BEXETT
GFA completed FARIEE sg.m.
during the year 75K
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Y- AEEERRRERD
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EREEEME -

T-ZERENE

(1)

T-TFEIELLHENT

Unit 2010
RERR B —T—TF e Lt [t

2009 Year-On-Year
11,225 28%
949,294 44%



Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (2) ¥ ok

During the year, the Group acted quickly to seize opportunities
arising from the full recovery of the macro-economy. Turnover hit a
record-high of HK$14,379 million, representing an increase of 28%
compared to the financial year 2009. GFA delivered was 766,030
sg.m..

In 2010, the Group adopted a strategy with emphasis on balance
and enhancement. In face of fierce competitions and market
conditions, the Group was more prudent than ever and adopted the
principle strategy which emphasized on balanced product portfolio.
For instance, regarding product type, the Group leveraged on its
renowned brand name to develop both high-end projects and
medium to high-end projects in first-tier cities for a balanced product
portfolio. For investment properties and properties for sales, the
Group increased its investment in commercial properties and
accelerated the construction progress of existing commercial projects
during the year. This enables the Group to have a better
development for both investment properties and properties for sale.
For geographical distribution, the Group is to consider first-tier cities
such as Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou as its core and expands to
neighboring second and third-tier cities with promising prospects.
Regarding land bank reserves, land acquisition was made for
commercial purpose to support the strategy of increasing investment
in commercial projects. The Group also extended its footprint to

second-tier cities during the year.

Enhancement of product quality and performance-price ratio was
another important strategy of the Group in 2010. The Group
believes that quality product and renowned brand name are the key
factors to stand out amidst market fluctuations and fierce
competitions. As a result, the Group strove to enhance product
quality and performance-price ratio during the year. For quality
enhancement, the Group modified long-term cooperation
mechanism, further improved systems of construction work
management and quality control in order to enhance construction
quality. Regarding performance-price ratio, the Group introduced
various forms of operations including lease, self-operations or joint
venture and upgraded property facilities such as clubhouses and
community shops for better appreciation potential of the Group’s
projects.
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(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) (2) ZBEE
The well-balanced product portfolio and higher product SHEHREREBENTEHEULE R
performance-price ratio enabled the Group to maintain a reasonable 1H & b #Y Tm o AEERYTAE
product portfolio with rising contracted selling price. The satisfactory B = 4 CEHEEEREBT L
sales performance from high-end projects in first-tier cities helped R — ,%?thj?ﬁ% mIE B EE T &
the Group in accomplishing its profit target. We believe the rising BRERANHEHEXE EAEEMNE
contracted selling price and delivery of high-end projects will bring BEZEFBEET RIFER - KM
outstanding results to the Group which will be reflected in financial B IEENANEBUARER SN
reports in the coming future. MemER BeARMEREE

FEMEERD LB EREN B
HEREEEE -

Turnover by geographical locations: REHE S ZEERA
2010 2009
ZE-ZF ZTTNF
HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Region ith & BEBRT  LAI(%) BEBTT Lt A5 (%)
Southern China #E g & 45 4,094 37
Northern China AL = 15 3,454 31
Eastern China W S I 3,677 32
Total A% 11,225 100
During the year, the Group’s strategic focus in the three Core FAAEBUR=ZAKEE R ZE
Economic Zones and the balanced distribution has proven to be mh EBEEMR RS E
successful. Southern China, eastern China and northern China WoEFEL - ERERIGMEILR
contributed HK$5,135 million, HK$2,892 million and HK$6,352 o Rl ER T 51.35F & T - 28.9218
million to the Group's revenue respectively. BT 63.52EB I EEWA -
Turnover by business segments: BREGE D ZEFERA
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNF
HKS$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Business Segment EEER BEEBRT  HLAI(%) BEETT Lt 151 (%)
Sales of properties MEHE 10,631 94
Rental income e WA 31 1
Property management income ¥ % & 12 U A 431 4
Income from hotel operation B E & E A 132 1
Total A3 11,225 100




Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

During the year, Group’s strategy to optimise revenue structure and
balance various sources of revenue has proven to be successful. In
2010, revenue from sales of properties was HK$13,696 million and
income from property management was HK$411 million. Rental
income and income from hotel operation contributed HK$92 million
and HK$180 million to the Group’s revenue respectively.

Turnover by major projects:

(2) ¥ EE®

FA-AEEEBLLBRALEE - 98
REWARBRERSY —EBR -
ZE-TFEYEHEERAR13696
BAT DEERERKRABINES
T e WA KBS B ERAD R
£0.92E8 T K& 1.80E B T °

BIERBEDZEERA:

2010 2009
—E-—ZF —ETNF
HKS$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Project Name BEHER BEBBT  LAI(%) BEBTT LE A5 (%)
Beijing No. 8 Royal Park IEREEEERSN — —
Shanghai Hopson Golf Mansion LBEERREXAS — —
Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay BMNERE 119 1
Guangzhou Gallopade Park BEME S
— South Court 738 7
Beijing Dreams World Jb Rt R A — —
Guangzhou Pleasant View Garden E ik =22 270 2
Shanghai Hopson Dongjiao Villa 84 4 5 %8 Bl &F 798 7
Guangzhou Hushan Guoji Villa & R L BB 494 4
Shanghai International Garden EBEERBIEE 795 7
Guangzhou Yijing Huayuan BN RE = 2 76 1
Others Hitp 7,935 71
Total &t 11,225 100

No. 8 Royal Park in Beijing
ARELETZKSS
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(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) (2) ZFHEE )
Turnover (Continued) EEIWA (2
Contracted sales by major projects: EEXZ2HBED 2 ALHEE
2010 2009
= —ZETNF
HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Project Name BHERB BEBBT  LAI(%) BEBT Lt 51 (%)
Beijing No. 8 Royal Park ItRAEAETERKIHR 2,534 20 2,787 16
Beijing Dreams World ik = BAY 1,166 9 980 6
Shanghai Hopson Town LBEEWRB 1,137 9 682 4
Ningbo Hopson International City 22 3% & 4 B B 45 1,066 8 461 3
Shanghai Sheshan Dongziyuan EBERLRERE 737 6 383 2
Beijing Kylin Zone 3b T B B A 604 5 981 6
Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay BT RE 601 5 568 3
Shanghai International Garden EBEEEBIEERE 473 4 907 5
Guangzhou Yijing Huayuan & M RBE 5 2E 50, 466 4 305 2
Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore KEAEATLTES 422 3 256 1
Others Hip 3,544 27 8,813 52
Total A&t 12,750 100 17,123 100
Project Completion Volume 2
Completed Area in 2010: TELEE
2009
—EThEF
Area Ratio
Region it & t 6l (%) [ERE LE A5 (%)
sq.m.
K
Southern China #E g & 45 554,440 41 363,251 38
Northern China AL = 15 453,987 33 334,948 35
Eastern China ERR 357,652 26 251,095 27
Total A% 1,366,079 100 949,294 100




Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) (2) BB

Projected Property Development Completion Schedule: I MERBTIEE:
2014
2011 2012 2013 and after
Completed  Completed Completed Completed
Area Area Area Area
—E—NF
T B —T—= K LA 1%
Project Name BEHER TELEE STILIEE ot LHE R S LEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
CEAkK)  (FFXK) (FHK) (FHXK)
Beijing Regal Court ERHIFR — — — 248,843
No. 8 Royal Park BEEEKSR 47,254 152,547 33,344 385,385
Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project 4t B 5 X #1E H — 87,437 — —
Beijing Desheng Building IR EBRE 53,542 — — —
Kylin Zone JEHL B AT 117,737 — — —
Dreams World R 157,155 181,170 8,042 146,173
Yuhe Project ECIRERE! — — — 10,000
Tongzhou Yongshun Project BNk ETE B — — 158,377 175,820
Times Regal BRES — — — 138,021
Jingjin New Town ORIk 42,227 89,645 58,793 3,574,152
Tianjin Hopson International Tower K=& 4 BB K & — — — 197,590
Tianjin Hopson International RKESHBBRASE — — — 159,119
Mansion
Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore RNEGETILFR 52,947 1,957 50,314 312,363
Shanxi Taiyuan Project LA KIRIEB — — 177,800 155,866
Seasky Villa REA — 20,000 35,497 843,444
Hopson Town B T F — — 102,563 —
Sheshan Dongziyuan SILEE 8,876 42,473 5,463 —
Hopson Yuting Garden & EMHERE — 13,070 9,332 71,232
Hopson International Plaza BEEBRBES 22,711 98,755 198,524 40,156
Hopson Fortune Plaza EEVERES — 52,656 — —
Shanghai Songjiang EHMIEEMIER — — — 94,476
Guangfulin Project
Shanghai Pudong Sanlin Project FEBER=MIEE — — — 40,901
Shanghai Jinshan LB IIFHIER — — — 88,449
New District Project
Kunshan Project BB — — — 609,748
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) (2) ¥ E e

Projected Property Development Completion Schedule (Continued):

BAMERETTIEEE) -

- Annual Report 2010

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

2014
2011 2012 2013 and after
Completed  Completed Completed Completed
Area Area Area Area
—T—NF
—T——F - —FT-—= K bA1%
Project Name HEE® TIEE TIHEE T IEE 5 LEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(CEAK)  (FAX) (73 2K) (SF 73 2K)
Hopson International City A 4 BRI 221,836 46,696 28,859 100,000
Hangzhou Bay Project LN E 1A B — — — 2,690,463
Gallopade Park =7t — — — 439,529
Pleasant View Garden R= 2 — — — 69,437
Huanan New City ZE 5 T 28,959 28,834 — 1,614,254
Gallopade Park — South Court 4l — — — 92,637
Guangzhou Regal Riviera BMNKI®S — — — 765,431
Regal Villa GRqIlE 17,779 20,214 — 59,791
Junjing Bay = 82,874 90,729 — 414,298
Guangzhou Jiahe Commercial City & /N 52 70 75 £ 3 — — 116,338 110,002
Hopson Yujing Mid-Level BEMEFL — 100,000 — 1,094,880
Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project &N J1L3 5 ¥ 7E B — — — 193,513
Guangzhou Nam Fong Garden EINmE A EEEE — — 60,227 40,100
Project
Hushan Guoji L B B — 13,629 10,419 1,241,380
Qianjin Road Project B3 B — — — 244,300
Huizhou Golf Manor aEEBRREER 173,959 349,427 302,373 1,230,323
Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay BT R E 92,630 76,146 — 214,373
Hopson International New City B H B BRI — — 60,000 903,496
Wangxiangying Project SMEZIAAE — — — 1,383,667
Shidai City B A — — 173,856 1,303,243
Binhai City B S 104,162 4,410 67,199 1,472,540
Regal Court R 20,000 — 50,133 50,713
Zhongshan Dongkeng Project m R IE R - — — 537,257
Zhongshan Rainbow Project LR AIIE B — — — 479,499
Total 1B 1,244,648 1,469,795 1,707,453 24,036,864




Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

(2) %Oz

Lank bank is the key to growth for property developers. Abundant
land bank is one of the Group’s core competencies to sustain
persistent growth and high investment value. The adequate land
bank enables the Group to be more prudent in land acquisition as
the existing land bank is sufficient for the development needs in the
coming three to five years. During the year, the Group kept its
prudent principle and strategic planning with first-tier cities as its
core of development while expanding gradually to potential second
and third-tier cities in order to maintain a balanced product
portfolio. The Group acquired 3 land plots with development area of
223,826 sg.m. in first-tier cities in Shanghai, and 1 land plot with
development area of 609,748 sq.m. in prosperous second and third-
tier cities in Kunshan. Land bank of the Group as at 31st December
2010 was 30.18 million sgq.m. and is sufficient for the Group’s rapid

THEEREHNERECERED
mik YE T HERREERAER
HEZERAREBERLOBRFEE
Br— AEEHEAERTETH LM
B AERR=ZERAFHEBZEREFR
TOEFHMEEAEEMNKE L
e FRN REFERTH KR
FERA KA — R AR
DBLRABERBINC =&
WM BEROBELE  AEEE—
P TH BB R A] B
BMETE223,826F 5K W EEHRE
DARHZ =@/ ME LFHE—IR
4+ - A 4 B R M HE609,748F

development needs in the future.

K- BEZB-BET-A=T—
B REE AT 0EE308E T
FHKRAHREERKREE R

P e
The following is the new land that the acquisitions have been ZE-TEERKWNERIE T G
completed in 2010: mr
Group's Gross
Name of Project interests Location of Project Floor Area
HEEH rEBZER HEMBE BRE@E
(sgq.m.)
(F 7 K)
Kunshan Project 100% Ying Zhou Lu, Zhoushi Zhen, Kunshan 609,748
EIWIER B LT J& T 8R40 JE B
Shanghai Songjiang Guangfulin Project 100% Lot Nos. 2-5, Guang Fu Lin, Songjiang District, 94,476
FEBMIESMNIER Shanghai
EBITREEME2ESHIME
Shanghai Pudong Sanlin Project 100% Lot A14-1 Sanlin Ji Zhen situated at 40,901
LBER=MIER Sanlin Zhen, Pudong New District, Shanghai
FBERAER =ZMEMREFHAI4 1R
Shanghai Jinshan New District Project 100% Lot E25 situated at Jinshan New District, 88,449
LB IFMIER Shanghai
LS L EE25 1 5
Total 833,574
il
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Land acquisition contracts signed but the acquisitions were not

(2) BB

EEENRBLIHMBEERR T

completed by end of 2010: —EBEFEFEEKA=AA
Group's Gross
Name of Project interests Location of Project Floor Area
KEH
HE AR Z e 15 B i 8 EEEE
(sg.m.)
(5 K)
Huizhou Xiao Jin Kou Project 100% Bai Shi Village, Xiao Jin Kou Street, 632,199
BINN& OIEE Huizhou
BNTRIL NEOHBEREE
BAMNEA
Guangzhou TIT Textile Factory Project 65% Factory District, No. 489 Xingang Road Central, 500,000
BEMTIT4 4% %18 B Haizhu District, Guangzhou
J& N T 8 IR [ 378 P BK 489 5% iR (&
Ruiwan Project 94% Phase Two, Shipping Service Area, 233,825
I 2 TE B Container Logistic Centre, Tianjin Port,
Binhai New District, Tianjin
REMABBHBRRZEREM
W AR O M E PR 5 [ — EA
Dongli Lake Project 100% No. 34, Jinbei Expressway, Dongli District, Tianjiin 1,157,048
REMIEE ROFEMREREEIL QK345
Total 2,523,072
CE
Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AEEER(BEFEK)
Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai Ningbo Total
&M =M = RE £ EiR st
Residential F= 5.52* 7.51 2.84 3.92 2.94 0.35 23.08
Shopping arcade [k 0.64* 0.24 0.35 0.09 0.58 0.02 1.92
Office NS 0.20 — 0.26 0.21 0.16 — 0.83
Car parks FHES 0.82* 1.36 0.29 0.18 0.81 0.03 3.49
Hotels i 0.16 0.22 0.30 0.14 0.04 — 0.86
Total EEt 7.34 9.33 4.04 4.54 4.53 0.40 30.18

See note (6) on page 35 of the annual report.

* RFHEISENE®) -



Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Development Status and Location

(2) X E -«

FREAR T K 1t [

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)

AHEEAR(BEF I XK)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing Tianjin Shanghai Ningbo Total
M =M 4k P b= B A5t
Completed BEER
properties 0.51 0.16 0.29 0.42 0.34 — 1.72
Properties under 3% & 4 %
development 0.81 0.98 0.98 0.21 3.33 0.40 6.71
Properties to be 1% & ¥) %
developed 6.02* 8.19 2.77 3.91 0.86 — 21.75
Total @st 7.34 9.33 4.04 4.54 4.53 0.40 30.18
Development Status and Usage F RN
Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AMHEEEE(BEFEHX)
Shopping
Residential arcade Office Car parks Hotels Total
T= [CE I N FEH B & Bt
Completed properties [=E-30EZES 0.69 0.33 0.20 0.29 0.21 1.72
Properties under development %% f& th ) ¥ 4.45 0.76 0.23 1.02 0.25 6.71
Properties to be developed FEEYE 17.94* 0.83* 0.40 2.18% 0.40 21.75
Total et 23.08 1.92 0.83 3.49 0.86 30.18
* See note (6) on page 35 of the annual report. * RAFRE35EM5E(6)
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(2) BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Title Status and Location

(2) %O EE e

BT B BEAR 0 R 3

Saleable Area (million sq.m.)

AEHEEE (BB T LK)
Guangzhou Huizhou  Beijing”  Tianjin Shanghai® Ningbo Total
BEM =M =" RiE L@ 2K Bet
Land use rights certificates £ EUS - 1b{E 55 1.51 3.13 1.56 0.42 0.64 0.40 7.66
and construction works FiER TR
planning permits HEIFFA B
obtained @
Land use rights certificates B EUS L b {F FAE 2.57 3.58 1.13 0.99 0.97 — 9.24
obtained but without BAREUF
construction works ERTIZRE
planning permits @ FFArEE?
Construction land use BEESER A — 1.24 0.77 — — — 2.01
planning permits B FFA]EOO
obtained @®
Grant of major approvals B EZHX 3.26 1.38 0.58 3.13 2.92 — 11.27
and certificates not rEEZ
yet obtained @ ©© P HOOO
Total =t 7.34 9.33 4.04 4.54 4.53 0.40 30.18
Notes: Bt -
(1) Relevant land use rights certificates and construction works planning permits (1) EEKBHG T @ HERERTER

have been granted.

2) Relevant land use rights certificates have been granted while the appertaining
construction works planning permits have not yet been obtained.

3) Relevant construction land use planning permits have been granted. However,
the land use rights certificates have not yet been obtained and will only be
secured upon execution of the relevant land transfer contracts and payment of
land premium.

4) Only upon completion of the land grant procedures (e.g. obtainment of the
construction land use planning permits, and the execution of land transfer
contracts) and the payment of the appertaining land premium will the land use
rights certificates be obtained.

2)

3)

)

FESEE

EERFRHMLHEHEHERREZZR
TREAEGFAEL AR

ERRBRZRABEEFAIE A
M- MARGHEG L EHE  MH
Bt HER e GEE T b EE R
R BBLI L ED R -

T B R S A L A R R (A
EFERA BT ERIETLHE
EER)RXNEHL L ER &R
AR -



Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(2)

(3)

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Title Status and Location (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(5) For payment status of land premium, please refer to notes 22 and 40 to the
financial statements.

(6) The Group has established a sino-foreign co-operative joint venture and acquired
Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited in the PRC for the development and
construction of residential and commercial properties on a site of approximately
2,560 Chinese acres in Panyu of Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province. Among
which, the land use rights of approximately 1,060 Chinese acres were transferred
to the Group and approximately 1,500 Chinese acres were under the process of
transfer application from the transferor to the Group. Such application has been
submitted for approval by the government bureau and is currently pending for
review by the government bureau.

(7) Including Dalian and Shanxi Taiyuan.
®) Including Hangzhou.

The above analysis of the land bank of the Group by saleable area is based on its
internal records only and without any independent verification.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS STRATEGIES IN 2011

In 2010, increasing management efficiency facilitated the
implementation of the Group’s development strategies. In 2011, the
Group will speed up construction progress of existing projects and
accelerate the development of new projects. We expect to see a
considerable growth in contracted sales in 2011 with sufficient
supply of property units following the launch of various new projects
in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. In 2011, the Group will strictly
monitor construction period of projects to ensure the delivery of
units are on schedule. The projected completion area is 1.25 million
sg.m in 2011. The Group's turnover in 2011 is expected to growth
from 2010 with the faster completion schedule and early recognized
results.

(2)

(3)

(KB

FT B BEAK L R Hb B (48)

Kzt - (%)

(5) RS Z XM SR E T
22240 »

(6) AEBERFELZTHIEIEE ERE
RIKETHEBHKTIFMEBRAA K
REREEINTEEE— 42,5608
B FERRFEETHEEFAYE
H o 491,0608 &) FF 1 (& A # 2 # 2
KNEEEZT - 41,5008 79 1 1t IE 7 /7
BER AN TFEETREFBE T
BB EE A - A B iE E A BT EFFT Y
FWPEE - B AT IF1EZ 15 BT S5 PT 1) &
HEIBFEAH -

(7)  BEXERUABLR -
8  EEHIN-

U ERBAEB LGN BAT &R
W RIREA AR E  MEBUKE

—E2-—FRQAFTEMN
RERMHRTH

—EZFAEEEBUEFE
RA BEREBIEHELE —F—
—F EEBENREAEENHER
THE MAHBEBENREHEM
HEE -EEELER - EEMEMNSE
ZEFERAT BRRESHED
B EAEBANBEEBEERR
AiBERF  —T——FAEEHB
BREETIZETH HEREREE
BEIEERMNFANGEENRNER &
B R T8 Bt T ——F
BIEEBEIZSBEFEAK-MED
RAEENEE BT ——F
EEEEERABE-_ZS—ZFHE
MEERREHN-
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(Continued)

The Group understand the importance of risk management in a
volatile market and will learn from experience to strengthen its risk
management strategies in 2011. We will develop a well-balanced
product portfolio, execute strategic planning of business
development and diversify the risk of market centralisation for better
resilience against market fluctuations. In 2011, the Group will
maintain a sound financial position, strengthen its financial base,
accelerate asset turnover and maintain sufficient liquidity to ensure a
healthy financial position for a stable and sustainable business
development.

In response to market changes and adjustments in 2011, the Group
will improve its product mix. With the help of its renowned brand
name and extensive experience in construction, design and
marketing, the Group will further consolidate and enhance its
market leading position in high-end products market in first-tier
cities for higher profitably. The Group will also speed up
development of medium to high-end products and adopt optimum
pricing strategy to get sufficient operating cash flow. The Group will
continue to develop quality commercial properties in first-tier cities
for a stable source of cash revenue and improve its gearing ratio and
revenue structure.

In view of the market changes, the Group will strive to enhance
performance-price ratio and added value of products, increase
product types and improve product quality. While we offer exquisite
products to our customers, we also value our brand name and
services and strive to enhance performance-price ratio and added
value of products. “Brand name, Quality and Service” are our three
core value that makes our products competitive in the market.

(3) PRINCIPAL BUSINESS STRATEGIES IN 2011 (3) ==

AREBERBI L HHTAREE
E2N BRERMEI —F—
—FREFTRREBEBREEXRML -
BRSSRESFENERES
HEAEBXBERMBBEN
B nBAmSRETRR BAX
SENMBRBEARZEN - —F
——F AREREERRRREY
B EEMBER MREERE
BRESAH BERMBZEME
ERTELRFERR-

—E-—F FXEERETHE(L
RAE BtERGEE HERSE
mEES BEheamEERE X
TR EBEEMREAR
SEE— @B TeRmERREET
A NEEGSERZH UG ZE
e AREEBBE MR SEERDA
BIRE MR AE T35 R B H &

REEREZVHLELER RN
R REEKMNR - RWNHEL
HMEMENBR BLEEBEMN
WAGERE ZREERENEZESE
REBREBEREARBRER @R -

AEBERBETERFEERRE
1K'Hﬂ%ﬁkﬂﬁuuli{j§tt%wﬁbﬂ
B EBAMEHEMDLE MEE
mELAR BAER®E - BH
EERHBEDVENRE - 15 amiE
MRBAAERER TEEMN
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mE+RB IO = —REMBEM
BREEBAR L ﬁﬁffiﬁﬁ’\]éu%?iﬂ%ﬁ
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(3)

(4)

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS STRATEGIES IN 2011

(Continued)

As mentioned above, the Group possesses abundant land reserve for
the development needs in the coming three to five years which
enables us to be more prudent in further land acquisition. We are
well aware of the vast demand for property arising from economic
development, urbanisation and construction of high-speed rail
network. We will continue to do research on land market, evaluate
our cash flow position and adhere to the principle of “acquiring land
resources according to sales progress”. We will seize opportunities
to acquire land plots in core and neighboring areas of first-tier cities
in the three Core Economic Zones, namely Pearl River Delta,
Huanbohai area and Yangtze River Delta, and also other second and
third-tier cities with development potential to comply with our
strategic and regional planning while adding new growth drivers for
our long-term strategy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to improving its corporate governance and
transparency and at the same time enhancing the shareholders’
interests. During the year, the management and respective
committees continued to operate in accordance with the “Corporate
Governance Practices” under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Details of the corporate governance report of the Group is set out
on pages 107 to 117 of the annual report of the year.

(4)

—E-—FRREEMW
KREXTBEZTHE e

WMEX AEELMEEREE
= AIHEBARKISFIHEERMN
FOEEAEEEIHMKRBLER
ZEERE-BER AMABLEORHIE
BER BHEALRSEHBKER
HEMEMSNEENES - #
BN LHHENME EER
WwHBRERMRR SHKELEE
ERERK UBEAARRAL
ER=A K= BRYPBF=X
OB — T e L B EST R
MEMBEZERBENN Z  ZRWH
BMEE LA AN S EEE
MEMEREBRRAETE B
SERHERNERIAFNNER
e

TEER

AEBRRBORTERACEE
AR BRREEEHAE BRK
RMEWMIBEEE - FA SEK
REEEMBREXZEEHRRE
BMERZAARARES LR
AIZ(EERERAERTRDIEREE -

AEBHFAZCEERREFEHN
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(5)

(6)

AWARDS

During the year, value and investment remained the theme and the
Group was keen to boost its brand image and value. In the “Research
Results of 2010 Listed PRC Developers” published by the TOP 10
Research Team on PRC Developers, the Company was among the
top 3in “2010 TOP 10 HK-listed PRC Developers in terms of overall
“2010 TOP 10 HK-listed PRC Developers in terms of
“2010 TOP 10 HK-listed PRC
Developers in terms of investment value”. The Company also ranked
“2010 TOP 10 HK-listed PRC Developers in
terms of financial position”.

strength”,
wealth creation capability” and

among the top 4 in

The Group's projects in different regions were also widely recognised
and well received by the market and the community. For instance,
Block D2 of No. 8 Xiaoyun Road project in Beijing was awarded the
Great Wall Cup Gold Medal for the outstanding structure; Beijing
Kylin Zone was awarded the Great Wall Cup, Chaoyang Cup and
Beijing Safety and Civilized Construction Site Award; Shanghai
Sheshan Dongziyuan was awarded the 2010 Bojin Luxury Home
Award by the Committee of the China International Luxury Property
Exhibition; Shanghai Dongjiao Villa received two awards, namely the
Garden Cup by the Shanghai Landscape and Gardening Association
and the 2010 2nd Golden Stone Award for Exterior Decorations of
Outstanding Stone Constructions in Yangtze River Delta, China
jointly organised by three industry associations, namely the Shanghai
Stone Trade Association, Zhejiang Construction and Decoration
Association and Jiangsu Decoration Association. Cixi Hangzhou Bay
Project was awarded the 2010 Asian Pacific Best Urban Property
Developer by the Committee of the Asia Pacific International Finance
Forum.

INCLUSION IN THE MORGAN STANLEY
CAPITAL INTERNATIONAL (“MSCI”) CHINA
INDEX

In August 2009, our shares have been included in the MSCI China
Index as one of the index constituents. It reflected our works in the
past are recognised internationally.

(5) ¢

(6)
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continued)

(7) APPRECIATION (7) =25
I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our management AANZEHEEEBEERSMNE T
and all staff members for their commitments and dedications to the Y ES 5705 R B o
Group.

Xue Hu T AEE

Chief Executive Officer BER

Hong Kong, 31st March 2011 B ZE——F=A=+—H

-

@5 apms

Guangzhou Jiahe Commercial City
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Property. Profile #1541

Beijing dt X

1. Beijing Regal Court
EFRTHR

2. Citta Eterna

3. Hopson International Garden
& EBERIEE

4. No. 8 Royal Park
EEEEHER

5. Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project
JERERF XEIER

6. Beijing Desheng Building
EREBARE

7. Kylin Zone
il

4. Dreams World
5

9. Yuhe Project
FRIEHE

10. Tongzhou Yongshun Project
EMKIEEE

11, Times Regal
RS

Tianjin K&

12, Jingjin New Town
TR

13, Tianjin Hopson International
Tower
REEEBBEARE

14, Tianjin Hopson
International Mansion
REGEBBREAS

Dalian KX

15. Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore
RNEEETINTR

Taiyuan KJ&

16. Taiyuan Project
ANIRIEE

Qinhuangdao Z£ 8

17. Seasky Villa
REA

H uanbohai Economic Zone

R S anm

Qinhuangdao

=28
Beijing ]
GlA= Dalian
m Tianjin RE
RiE u
| |
Taiyuan
KR
||

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone

BI=AMNarm

Kunshan
E
B Shanghai
Hangzhou m LB

Pearl River Delta Economic Zone

BI=AMenm

Guangzhou
EI}‘.N Huizhou
u =M
||

Zhongshan
Al



Shanghai £

18. Hopson Town
&L

19. Hopson Golf Mansion
EERRRIAE

20. Sheshan Dongziyuan
RILFREE

21. Hopson Lantern Villa
& ERAEE

22. International Garden
&£ BERIEE

23. Hopson Dongjiao Villa
SHERHNE

24. Hopson Yuting Garden
& E TR

25. Hopson International Plaza
& E RIS S

26. Hopson Fortune Plaza
SEMERES
27. Shanghai Songjiang Guangfulin
Project
ST A E
Guangzhou E /M
34. Gallopade Park
BRItE
35. Pleasant View Garden
36. Huanan New City
ERHTH
37. Gallopade Park — South Court
Sy
38. Regal Riviera
Hims
39. Regal Palace
RIS
40. Yijing Huayuan
(3T
41. Guangzhou Zhujiang International
Tower
BEMNERIERXE
42. Yunshan Xijing
FhER
43. Regal Villa
A LT

28.

29.

Shanghai Pudong Sanlin Project
EBER=MIER

Shanghai Jinshan New District
Project

EEEIFEIER

Hangzhou #t

30.

Hangzhou Hopson
Guomao Centre
& EBEEH L

Kunshan E L

Bjl%

Kunshan Project
EITEH

Ningbo 2§

32.

Hopson International City

B BRI

Cixi &%

33.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49,

50.

51.

52.

Hangzhou Bay Project
HiMEE e

Junjing Bay

ERE

Guangzhou Jiahe Commercial City
BEM = AR 30

Hopson Yujing Mid-Level
BEMSFEL

Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project
BB ERIEE

Guangzhou Nam Fong Garden
Project

BEIMNmEHEEER

Hushan Guoji Villa

L B

Qianjin Road Project

AIERSIE B

Huizhou =M
Huizhou Golf Manor
EEEBRREERE

Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay
B R

DS

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

Hopson International New City
& HE BT
Wangxiangying Project
282 IEE

Shidai City

iSpe7

Binhai City

b=t

Zhongshan AL

Regal Court

=¥ )

Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
FILRTIAR

Zhongshan Rainbow Project
RILFATIRE
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Beijing Regal Court

23, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
bR EBE T A ERK235% (HH 100% &)

FHK
Sqg.m.
= Construction completed 111,570
R ATERBTT Construction to be completed
e — T —F kAR in 2014 and after 248,843
R-ZE—FTF+=-A Land bank as at
=t+—BztHkEE 31st December 2010 360,413
Citta Eterna
107, Chaoyang Bei Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
it SR B3 B3 & 2 15 3t B% 107 5% (5 100% R 25)
F K
Sqg.m.
=L Construction completed 18,524
RZZT—ZF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztitEE 31st December 2010 18,524
Hopson International Garden
31, Guangqumenwaida Street, Chaoyang District,
Beijing (100% owned)
T RBBERERMII K315 (FEH 100% # =)
F IR
Sqg.m.
T Construction completed 5,867
NR-ZZE—TFE+=-HA Land bank as at
=+t—HztmEE 31st December 2010 5,867
No. 8 Royal Park
8, Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (80% owned)
TRHBEESZEKSH (HEH80%EHE)
F K
Sqg.m.
B Construction completed 37,345
& P LA TR B S 52 T Construction to be completed
T ——4F in 2011 47,254
e —_F—— in 2012 152,547
e — T —— in 2013 33,344
o —E—UF LA in 2014 and after 385,385

—E—FF+ A Land bank as at
=t+—BzttEE 31st December 2010 655,875
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Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project

No. D4 Dongsi Redevelopment Area, Dongcheng District,
Beijing (97 % owned)
EtRRBER B KR EDASK (FEHIT7% )

TR
Sqg.m.
Eioas Construction Completed 53,906
HE R LA T B R 52 T Construction to be Completed
——4F in 2012 87,437
R-ZE—ZTF+_H8 Land bank as at
=t+—Hz i E 31st December 2010 141,343

Beijing Desheng Building

No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing (100% owned)
b= E RS PIIRET 1157 (HEH 100% &)

FHK
Sg.m.
BRATERBTL Construction to be completed
T —1F in 2011 53,542
RZZE—ZTF+=H Land bank as at
=t+—BZz ik 31st December 2010 53,542
Kylin Zone
Interchange of Wanjing Street and Futong Xida Street,
Wangjing, Beijing (100% owned)
TREFEBAAHMNEREHRER (HEHF100% #E %)
FHK
Sg.m.
BT Construction Completed 14,505
A TN 5 T Construction to be completed
o — T ——4F in 2011 117,737
RZZT—ZTF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—BzLtHFEE 31st December 2010 132,242

Dreams World

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1, Majugiao, Majugiao Town,

Llangshm River south, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)
3t ZUE N B 75 5 R 2K T B 55 B AR 9 55 B0 45 1 5% 48 R 500 3K (#EH 100% #E &%)

FHK
Sg.m.
B 5 I Construction completed 13,931
AT 52 T Construction to be completed
o —T——4 in 2011 157,155
o —EFT——&F in 2012 181,170
o T —=4F in 2013 8,042
o — T —PUF A in 2014 and after 146,173
RZT—TF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HZzLHHEE 31st December 2010 506,471




Yuhe Project

Plot 11, Southern District of Yuhe Wenbao Area, Dongcheng District,
Beijing (100% owned)
ERRHEEFREGEAEE 115 it 52 (EHF 100% =)

F 75K
Sqg.m.
BRATEETL Construction to be completed
o — T —UFFK B in 2014 and after 10,000
R-ZE—FTF+_-A Land bank as at
=t+—BZLIHEHE 31st December 2010 10,000
Tongzhou Yongshun Project
Qiaozhuang Village, Yongshun Town, Tongzhou District,
Beijing (100% owned)
B MNEKIEE B HEN (FEH100% E )
SSE S
Sqg.m.
BRATEREST Construction to be completed
o — T =4 in 2013 158,377
e — T —[UF KUK in 2014 and after 175,820
RZZE—ZF+=A Land bank as at
=t —HztmEE 31st December 2010 334,197
Times Regal

Xin Tian Jia Yuan South Zone, No. 21, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing (100% owned)
TRHEEAEARER2IRHAEEEE (FEH100% &%)

F 7K
Sqg.m.
NN Construction to be completed
o —_ T —[NFEKLAR in 2014 and after 138,021
RZZT—ZF+=A Land bank as at

=t+—B 2zt 31st December 2010 138,021

45

10

1



12

Jlanjin

V

Bl

Baodi District
EiK[E
B[R

Tianjin

Heping District

=
Nankai District
A A [
12. Jingjin New Town
SURHT I
13. Tianjin Hopson International Tower
REEEEBKRE
14. Tianjin Hopson International Mansion
RREEEEBRAE
Jingjin New Town
1, Zhujiang South Road, Zhouliangzhuang Town, Baodi District,
Tianjin (92.3% owned)
AREEBEFRFER TR — % (FEF2.3%EH)
FIR
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 255,299
P LA T 52 T Construction to be completed
o — T ——1F in 2011 42,227
o — T ——4&F in 2012 89,645
o —_ T —— in 2013 58,793
-:?*P_Tliﬁl,ﬂé in 2014 and after 3,574,152

—E-—FTFE+-H Land bank as at
+—HZz L FHE 31st December 2010 4,020,116




47

Tianjin Hopson International Tower

Interchange of Fuan Main Street and Xingan Road, Heping District,
Tianjin (at Beian Bridge) (98.9% owned)
AENFERRAHEARER O (X REBEHE) (HEH98.9% # )

F 75K

Sqg.m.
N Construction to be completed
o — T —[PUF UK in 2014 and after 197,590
R-ZE—ZTF+_A4 Land bank as at
=t+t—BzLH#E 31st December 2010 197,590
Tianjin Hopson International Mansion
Interchange of Weijin South Road and Shuishang North Road,

Nankai District, Tianjin (100% owned)

REEFEEZEBEKELERO (EH100% )

F K

Sqg.m. q.
NN S Construction to be completed -—
o —T—MFEH A% in 2014 and after 159,119
R-ZE—ZTF+=A Land bank as at
=+—BzLibfEE  31st December 2010 159,119

iy o s R W s
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Dalian A&

)
7
_# Dalian City Centre
X~ RET R

N Lushunkou Station

\ R IE B 34

=
Y S

e

15. Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore
RBEETILFES

Dalian Hopson Regal Seashore
XESEILFR

808, Yanbei Road, Tieshan Town, Lushunkou District, Dalian (100% owned)
R E R IE O & 88 1L 85 7E b 3% 808 5% (#E & 100% #& &)

FHK
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 18,047
LN R A TN 52 T Construction to be completed
o T ——%F in 2011 52,947
T ——F in 2012 1,957
e in 2013 50,314
o — T —UF AR in 2014 and after 312,363
A—E—FT&E+— A Land bank as at
=T—HztimEE 31st December 2010 435,628
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Jlalyuan

I Provincial Government
R B BT
T
= Municipal Goyernment
= 16
(7]
[
=2 o
g )
N )
g >
2 ; &
z e}
z g 2
: > -
& R 2
: :
=3 ::t
= =
— Yingpan Street
he< PO
< =l L)
Il o
R
o

Changfeng Street £ & #7

Shanxi University
. iy -
Xuefu Street E2 i 17 =

16. Taiyuan Project
KRER

Taiyuan Project

West of Bingzhou Road, East of Tiyu Road and North of Eryingpan Street,
Taiyuan, Shanxi (100% owned)

ARIRFFMEZLAFE - AR UAR - & BRE LI (EH100% &)

F TR
Sqg.m.

BRI TERBTL Construction to be completed —
o — T =4 in 2013 177,800
e —E—FEH & in 2014 and after 155,866

N-_ZE—FFE+_-H Land bank as at
=+—BztHkEE 31st December 2010

333,666
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17

Qinhuangdao Z=£5

17. Seasky Villa
REA

Seasky Villa
XA

Intersection of Hebei and Liaoning Provinces, Northwestern coast of

Liaodong Bay (51% owned)
BEREFLE HEWMERAE (EAS1%ER)

FHK
Sg.m.
NV N Construction to be completed
o —T—_F 2012 20,000
o — T —— 2013 35,497
o _ T —NFERKURE in 2014 and after 843,444
RN-ZZE—ZTF+_-H Land bank as at
=t+—HBztREE  31st December 2010 898,941
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Shanghai £i&

Hongkou District \
4T A &

\
|
\
\
\

Shanghai Honggiao International Airport

8 4T 5 B BR # 35 Pudong New District

R AR

%
Shanghai Civil Aviation Airport
R EEERS

¥a

Sheshan
R I
18. Hopson Town 22. International Garden 26. Hopson Fortune Plaza
CEX 2 BHEERIEE BEMEES
19. Hopson Golf Mansion 23. Hopson Dongjiao Villa 27. Shanghai Songjiang Guangfulin
EEBHEADE & E R ABRIEE Project
LR E M
20. Sheshan Dongziyuan 24. Hopson Yuting Garden LB REMRE
SLUREE EEHER 28. Shanghai Pudong Sanlin Project
S5 R = M IE
21. Hopson Lantern Villa 25. Hopson International Plaza LBRR=MEH
SEBER &4 ERES 29. Shanghai Jinshan New District
project \
BB ILFHHIER

Hopson Town
BEH

518, Anning Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
FREITERERS5185 (HEH 100% )

FF K

Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 97,328
A TERBTLI Construction to be completed 0
o —FT = in 2013 102,563 \

RZZE—ZTF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t— Bzt E 31st December 2010 199,891




Hopson Golf Mansion
BEREXAR

19

1095, Jiangpu Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
545 58 B S 2% 1095 5% (5 100% /& 55 )

20

21

22

TR
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 14,804
R-_E—ZTF+—HF Land bank as at
=+t—HBztHFEE 31st December 2010 14,804
Sheshan Dongziyuan
RIURRE
1189, Linhu Road, Shanghai Sheshan National Holiday Resort,
Shanghai (100% owned)
£ 38510 B =R iR 3 B R & AROH BB 1189 5% (5 100% #E 58)
FHK
Sg.m.
BxEL Construction completed 56,362
BRI TERETEL Construction to be completed
o — T ——4F in 2011 8,876
o — T — 4 in 2012 42,473
e T —=4F in 2013 5,463
R-_ZE—ZTF+_F8 Land bank as at
=t+t—BzLMfFEE 31st December 2010 113,174
Hopson Lantern Villa
SEER
199, Zhenle Road, Zhaoxiang New City, Qingpu District,
Shanghai (100% owned)
EEEHEES N MELRK199F (FEHF100% &%)
F K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 3,314
R-E—ZTFE+— 8 Land bank as at
=+t—BztHFEE 31st December 2010 3,314
International Garden
SEERER
1290, East Changxing Road, Dongjing, Songjiang District,
Shanghai (94% owned)
ESRTERR R ERE 129055 (HEH 4% =)
FFK
Sg.m.
Bx L Construction completed 29,120
RZT—ZTF+=HR Land bank as at

=t+—HzIHFE 31st December 2010 29,120




Hopson Dongjiao Villa
BERBHE

7,699 Nong, Cuibai Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai (100% owned)
L8R B2 M 699F 75 (HEH 100% & =)

FHK

Sqg.m.

SEL Construction completed 39,976
R-_ZE—ZTF+_H4 Land bank as at

=t+—BHztiREE 31st December 2010 39,976

Hopson Yuting Garden
AEHER

99, Xiangju Road, Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LEEREEBESEKIIR (HEH100% E )

F K
Sqg.m.
gL Construction completed 7,443
&P A T B 8 52 T Construction to be completed
e T — 4 in 2012 13,070
e T =4 in 2013 9,332
e —T—MFH AR in 2014 and after 71,232
RZZ—ZF+-A Land bank as at
=+— Bz T HhFEE 31st December 2010 101,077
Hopson International Plaza
BEERRES
292 Jiefang, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LB BEE29247 3 (HEH 100% # %)
SSE
Sqg.m.
BRI TERBTL Construction to be completed
o« — T ——14F in 2011 22,711
o T —_—1F in 2012 98,755
o —EF——F in 2013 198,524
o — T —PUFIAIZ in 2014 and after 40,156
R-E—TFE+_F Land bank as at
=+ —Hz-mfFEE 31st December 2010 360,146
Hopson Fortune Plaza
BEMERE
483, Feihong Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai (100% owned)
£ 4T O & 7R 4T 3% 483 5% (B 100% fE %)
TR
Sqg.m.
BRATEETL Construction to be completed
o — T ——1F in 2012 52,656

R-ZE—ZFEFE+=-H Land bank as at
=t+—BztiEE 31st December 2010 52,656
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Shanghai Songjiang Guangfulin Project
IBRIREHERE

Lot Nos. 2-5, Guang Fu Lin, Songjiang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EBMIEBEEME2ESH (HEHF100% E =)

FHK
Sg.m.
N~ LA T 52 T Construction to be completed
N e T —FE AR in 2014 and after 94,476
R-ZZE—ZF+_H8 Land bank as at
=+t—HztHRFEE 31st December 2010 94,476
Shanghai Pudong Sanlin Project
LBBAR=MIEH
:
Lot A14-1, Sanlin Ji Zhen, Sanlin Zhen, Pudong New District, Shanghai
(100% owned)
EBERHE=ME=MEEA14-1(FEF100% E )
F7K
w Sq.m.
o~ R AT EET T Construction to be completed
o — T UL AL in 2014 and after 40,901
RZT—ZTF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—HztHFEE 31st December 2010 40,901
Shanghai Jinshan New District Project
LBeMBRE
Lot E25, Jinshan New District, Shanghai (100% owned)
£38 € 1L 345 B E25 (JEH 100% #E %)
FHK
Sg.m.
(@) HRATRRETT Construction to be completed
PN e —T—F KA in 2014 and after 88,449

RZZE—ZTF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiFEE 31st December 2010 88,449
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Hangzhou T

\ B T \

B

Municipal Government

T

—
Provincial Government

E B

Zhejiang University
AN

Hangzhou Hopson Guomao Centre
RHEEERDRL

327, Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou (95% owned)
MMNFE M EX B 1L B%3275% (FEH95% =)

F IR
Sqg.m.

BExL Construction completed 92,418

R-ZZE—FTF+_-H4 Land bank as at
=t+—Hz A 31st December 2010 92,418

30
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Kunshan gl

g Zhoushi Town
5 8 JE A
) 2 .

' ingbing
\ Ymg‘ﬂ

Kunshan Project
EWLRA

Yingzhou Road and south of Xintang River Zhoushi Town, Kushan City
(100% owned)
B2 1Ly 7 /) i 4 0 FE % T 55 BT 4E W LA (HEH 100% R &)

FI5HK
Sq.m.
F
m 1SR LA TR fE 52 T Construction to be completed
o — T —PUFEKE in 2014 and after 609,748

R-ZZE—FFE+=-A Land bank as at
=t+—BztiFEE 31st December 2010 609,748




Ningbo £

4
) Jiangbei District
\9% 5
D B, L&
Sz J
% o, "3,
95/)/%
oeo,/\
Uy 8
)ﬁ@( 20 0o
» podgel
2
&
o]
<4
N G
3 @@ >
<L S
o Q®
§ \)aﬂ\*\
SR
2
2%
an RO il
Zhongdy
; ~Ya Ningbo University
y BE A
Q00
\(o(\gl\(\

Kongpu Park
AHAE w@%ﬁ
° Jiangdong District
TR

32. Hopson International City
=3

Hopson International City
B HE B PR

1, Zhongbao Road, Zhenhai New City, Ningbo (100% owned)
ERESHAECRK1R (HEHF100% Ex)

FERHK

Sq.m.
BExT Construction completed 69
BRATEETL Construction to be completed
o —T——1F in 2011 221,836
T in 2012 46,696
e T =% in 2013 28,859
o — T —FkAE in 2014 and after 100,000

R-ZE—FTF+_H Land bank as at
=t+— Bz E 31st December 2010 397,460
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Cixi 2%

angzhou Ba

|
33
i

Ci Dongulndustria

Cixi City

LRS-
:

L3

BUOA ‘

zd
femssaidha Uil

)

Hangzhou Bay Project
mMERE

Northwestern region of Hangzhou Bay New District, Cixi
(100% owned)
ZERMEBHEFEL B (EHF100% E =)

FAR
Sq.m.
m HRATRREZT Construction to be completed
o — T —F kAR in 2014 and after 2,690,463
RZZE—ZTHF+=H Llandbankasat

= t+—HBZXHif##E  31st December 2010 2,690,463




Guangzhou

X

.

N
6 >

Huadu District
TE#B =

—
X
N Guangsan Express

LS BE=m&
Foshan %

gl N Nanhai District m,_
*:::\‘ fﬁ/@li ”‘—K" =

e Vi
1\3; I ‘
= N

42. Yunshan Xijing Z L E S
43. Regal Villa & & 1L 5
44. Junjing Bay & £ &
45. Guangzhou Jiahe
Commercial City
EYNERITSE 307
46. Hopson Yujing Mid-Level
BEMERF¥ L
47. Guangzhou Jiufo
Machao Project
BN ERIER
48. Guangzhou Nam Fong
Garden Project
EBMNEALEEER
49. Hushan Guoji Villa 3# 1L B B

50. Qianjin Road Project Aif 3 % 18 H

Baiyun
% ® International
‘ Q Airport
" S ATEBRKS 34. Gallopade Park B =7t E
\ i o . S
foe e 35. Pleasant View Garden #%& & 2 &
\ S) 1
A &giﬁ 36. Huanan New City £ & 3
x Luogang District 37. Gallopade Park —South Court
X 7w - .
¥ Baiyun District HREmMi
BEE 38. Regal Riviera %I % 2
T'angﬁﬁgr'“ G”a'éége%%press B 39. Regal Palace % 5 %38
/ Qan = e
Guangzhou e U 40. Yijing Huayuan B8 £ # %5
y &M T 7 EiHE 41. Guangzhou Zhujiang
N e T International Tower
BEMNEIER AKE
m Guangzhou
Tianhe Railway Science City
Station EMB 2
7 RN Bk 8
Baiyun District T

HEE, »~ "
‘f
>

- *

>
* Yuexiu District

=
=
S
o

=
Tianhe District

-
=
o

y RAR e T Ea L
« o T =
i . : R
Y Metro,Line No.5 .
= 1] 2!
Dongshan District " SERIER

Rl

E x

Haizhu District

4]
N

B Pearl River ¥5/T

BN

BIRIE

Metro'Line No.3

Guangzhou
= SR AR University City
X MK

Panyu District
EBE

e =

Gallopade Park

190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
BN RS E 1L K E 19055 (B 95% )

F 75K
Sqg.m.
[ Construction completed 4,795 q.
BRI TERBTL Construction to be completed m
o — T —FE AL in 2014 and after 439,529
R-ZE—ZF+=-A

Land bank as at

=t+—BztHiEE 31st December 2010

444,324
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35

36

37

38

Pleasant View Garden

Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (94.98% owned)

MR E M KB (FEH94.98% i)

F IR
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 51,996
HER A TR fE 52 T Construction to be completed
o — T —FEHE in 2014 and after 69,437
RZZT—ZTF+_H Land bank as at
=t+—HztHEHEE 31st December 2010 121,433
Huanan New City
Xingnan Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BMNESEEREAE (EHF100% & &)
FHK
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 69,065
HERIA T B 52 T Construction to be completed
o — T ——4F in 2011 28,959
o — T ——4F in 2012 28,834
e — T —PUE LA in 2014 and after 1,614,254
R-_ZE—ZTF+_H8 Land bank as at
=t+—HzIHFE 31st December 2010 1,741,112
Gallopade Park - South Court
190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
B M K ST & R 1L K GE 190 5% (EH 95% fE #5)
FIR
Sq.m.
BT Construction completed 32,014
BRATERTT Construction to be completed
e — T —UFKLAIE in 2014 and after 92,637
R-ZT—ZTF+_H4 Land bank as at
=t+t—HBzLHFEE 31st December 2010 124,651

Regal Riviera

1, Haojing Street, Yizhou Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (99.5% owned)

BB E MR AR 157 (EH99.5% )

F5K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 67,114
R A TR R e T Construction to be completed
o — T —PUF AR in 2014 and after 765,431
RZE-—TF+_H Land bank as at
=t+—HZziEHE 31st December 2010 832,545




Regal Palace

Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

&N 8 2R & IR i B N KB (FEH 100% & a%)

P75 K
Sqg.m.
BxEL Construction completed 6,013
N-_ZE—ZFTF+_H4 Land bank as at
=t+t—BztHHE 31st December 2010 6,013
Yijing Huayuan
Dongxiaonan Road South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (50% owned)
ENEHRBERBERER (FEH50%EH)
F 75K
Sqg.m.
SEL Construction completed 53,917
R-_ZT—ZTF+_F Land bank as at
=f+—BZztif#E#  31st December 2010 53,917

Guangzhou Zhujiang International Tower

No. 114-116 Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

-
S WA BMER114Z 1165 (FEH100% B i)
.:EEE K
i Sq.m.
. Hwas EL Construction completed 97,975
I T R-_TE—ZFF+=A Land bank as at
L =i =t+—BzEkEE  31st December 2010 97,975
Yunshan Xijing
Guangzhou Avenue North, Baiyun District, Guangzhou (70% owned)
BNBEBEMAREL (EH70% &)
F TR
Sqg.m.
L Construction completed 24,128
R-_ZE—ZTF+_4 Land bank as at
T =t+t—BzIH#E 31st December 2010 24,128

e
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43

44

45

46

Regal Villa

Aoti Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
J& N R 57 & 2R B8 % (BB 100% M 25)

FHK
Sg.m.
BEL Construction completed 6,211
BRATERTT Construction to be completed
:?——EF in 2011 17,779
== in 2012 20,214
o — T —UF AR in 2014 and after 59,791
RZT—ZF+=A Land bank as at
=+—HBztif#E@E  31st December 2010 103,995
Junjing Bay
Huanggi Beicun Avenue, Dali, Nanhai District, Foshan,
Guangzhou (100% owned)
BMGLEEEREZEEILNKE (EE100% &)
TR
Sg.m.
B 58T Construction completed 2,778
# HA LA "F BT Construction to be completed
o — T — in 2011 82,874
o — T — — 4 in 2012 90,729
-:g PO 4F 8 bA 14 in 2014 and after 414,298
A—_T—ZF+_A Land bank as at
= +—HAZziEE 31st December 2010 590,679
Guangzhou Jiahe Commercial City
Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (75% owned)
EMNESHREEMNKREB(HEB7%ER)
TR
Sg.m.
BRATERTL Construction to be completed
_3—— in 2013 116,338
— P4 sk LA 1& in 2014 and after 110,002
RZT—ZTF+=R Land bank as at
=+—HBztif#E®E  31st December 2010 226,340
Hopson Yujing Mid-Level
Honbenggang Reservoir, Shiling Town, Huadu District,
Guangzhou (95.5% owned)
[ M 15 &R B2 X S SR AL AR i K BB (5 95.5% fE #)
FIR
Sg.m.
H%E’;\L/( TEHBE=XI Construction to be completed
T—_4F in 2012 100,000
-_i PO 4F 8§ A 14 in 2014 and after 1,094,880
R-ZZE—ZTF+_H8 Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifFE 31st December 2010 1,194,880




Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project

Jiufo Machao Industry Town, Guangzhou (55% owned)

BN N3R489 T34 (B 55% )
SSE S
Sqg.m.

BRI TERBTL Construction to be completed
o — T —[UEH LA in 2014 and after 193,513

N-_ZE—-—FFE+_-H Land bank as at
=t+t—BztH@EE 31st December 2010 193,513

Guangzhou Nam Fong Garden Project

———
M| 168-170, Canggang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
= BN Sk E S B 35 168-170 5% (5 100% R 23)
-:II F 75K
| Sq.m.
BRA TR T Construction to be completed
e —T—= in 2013 60,227
— PO 4E Bk A 14 in 2014 and after 40,100
R-_ZE—ZTF+_F Land bank as at
=t—BzLImfEE 31st December 2010 100,327
Hushan Guoiji Villa
Yuanzhang Avenue, Xintang Town, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
B4 TH #TERRE KB (EH 100% R %)
F 75K
Sqg.m.
25w Construction completed 21,367
l'.__.,---"' N S Construction to be completed
_.r—-"" T —f in 2012 13,629
—=F in 2013 10,419
o — T —F KA in 2014 and after 1,241,380
R-_TE—TF+_—F Land bank as at
1nnﬁ =t+t—BztifEE 31st December 2010 1,286,795
Qianjin Road Project
South of Qianjin Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
& M 8 Bk & Al A B LA FS (5 100% #E &)
F K
Sqg.m.

1R A TRETT Construction to be completed
o — T —UERLAIL in 2014 and after 244,300

RZZT—ZTF+=A Land bank as at
=+—RBzLtif##H  31st December 2010 244,300
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Huizhou
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Huizhou Golf Manor

1, Longhe Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
M T Kk O BE A0 3% 1557 (B 100% #E 25)

TR
Sqg.m.
BExEL Construction completed 32,944
ERUTERRT Construction to be completed
o« —F——4& in 2011 173,959
e —T—_F in 2012 349,427
e T —=4F in 2013 302,373
o —EFE —[OFEKLAB in 2014 and after 1,230,323
R-_E—ZTF+_F Land bank as at
=+—Hz-MfFEE 31st December 2010 2,089,026
Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay
1, Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou (100% owned)
EMTIEXE — K15 (HEH 100% R )
F 75K
Sqg.m.
EE=n Construction completed 59,445
BRATERETT Construction to be completed
e T ——4F in 2011 92,630
o — T — 4 in 2012 76,146
o —E—[UFIAE in 2014 and after 214,373
R-_ZE—ZTF+_A4 Land bank as at
=t+—BztikEE 31st December 2010 442,594

Hopson International New City

Yaxin Garden, Lianhe Village, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
RO K O SEBE AN A B 3 TE B (EH 100% fE 28)

F 75K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 41,576
%P A T B 8 52 T Construction to be completed
o —EF =& in 2013 60,000
e — T —FIARE in 2014 and after 903,496
R-_ZE—ZTF+_H4 Land bank as at
=+ —HzZ:HFEE 31st December 2010 1,005,072
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Wangxiangying Project

Taipingxu, Taiping Village, Licheng Street, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
BE T B RN AR FEFEE100% EH)

FHK
Sg.m
<J 1A T B 52 T Construction to be completed
LN o — T —UF AR in 2014 and after 1,383,667
R-ZZE—ZTF+_H8 Land bank as at
=+t—HztHRFEE 31st December 2010 1,383,667
Shidai City
Xiangshuihe South, West side of Daya Bay (100% owned)
K EE ) 7 [ 2 K ST R P it BR (HEH 100% fE =)
FHK
Sq.m.
BRATERBTL Construction to be completed
Ln T —= in 2013 173,856
LN .-z _maegpr  in2014and after 1,303,243
R-ZZTE—ZTF+_A8 Land bank as at
=t—HzLinHEE 31st December 2010 1,477,099
Binhai City
Houzaiwan, Aotou, Daya Bay Area (100% owned)
REEE ERER & (FEE100% &)
FHK
Sq.m.
BRATERBTL Construction to be completed
O .—z__& in 2011 104,162
LN -z -#« in 2012 4,410
e —T—=4F in 2013 67,199
o« T —YFEH B in 2014 and after 1,472,540

R-ZZE—FFE+=-A Land bank as at
=t+t—Hz LG 31st December 2010 1,648,311




Zhongshan

Rainbow Bridge

[ ]
Yixian Lake Park

B A E

Zhongshan Park
ARII/N

57. Regal Court
wR

58. Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
PILRIER

59. Zhongshan Rainbow Project
L ITIE R

%
N
<
A7
s
%
2.
\%
%
%
(33%
%
QoL
Go\le‘(\“\e
(\\C,\Q )«\%S\ﬁ
°
Zhongshan
AL
Regal Court

L T K KB BA B B R R E (B 100% RE )

Linggang District, Huoju Development Zone, Zhongshan (100% owned)

F TR
Sqg.m.
BExL Construction completed 12,886
7% B A T B 8 5 T Construction to be completed
o — T ——1F in 2011 20,000
o —_E—= in 2013 50,133
e — T —EFHLAIE in 2014 and after 50,713
R-ZZE—ZTF+_H1 Land bank as at
=t—HztifFEE 31st December 2010 133,732
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Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
RILFRRIRE

Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
RILTEERN (EHI5%ERE)

FK
Sq.m.
w BRATERTEL Construction to be completed
LN o —T—PUFE AT in 2014 and after 537,257
R-E—ZTFE+— 8 Land bank as at
=+t—HztHFEE 31st December 2010 537,257
Zhongshan Rainbow Project
RILFIIRE
Caihong Planning Zone, West District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
PLTABRIREE (HEH5%ER)
FRK
Sg.m.
(@)} R A TR 7T T Construction completed
LN o« —E —EK in 2014 and after 479,499

R-_ZE—ZTFE+_A4 Land bank as at
=t+—HzLiHEE 31st December 2010 479,499




Investment Property Factsheet

Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st December

2010 are as follows:

Location

Guangzhou Jiahe Commercial City
Guangzhou Avenue South,

Haizhu District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

Mainland China

Hopson International Plaza
292 Jiefang

Yangpu District

Shanghai

Mainland China

Guangzhou Zhujiang
International Tower

No. 114-116 Yuehua Road
Yuexiu District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province
Mainland China

Hangzhou Hopson Guomao Centre
327, Tianmushan Road

Xihu District

Hangzhou

Zhejiang Province

Mainland China

Beijing Desheng Building

No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street
Xicheng District

Beijing

Mainland China

Hopson Fortune Plaza
483, Feihong Road
Hongkou District
Shanghai

Mainland China

A=
REAEERE
MR
BN KER

Y ER IS

REARE &
1SRE 29274
BHEERES

hEKREERS
BN TS
R

114ZE 1165
BEMET

B AE

RBIKEENT T A
TN FEHA R
X B ILBE3275%
NG E
Bl

F B R e
LR
=PI
1158
EREBRE

F B K B
e nE
FREUT PR A835R
BEMEES

Group's interest

KEfREER

BYMEFHIIOT

Existing use

BEATRAE

75% Commercial/office/

retail and carparking
BE/MAE

TERERS

100% Commercial/office/
retail and carparking
mEMRES
TERIFES

100% Commercial/office/
retail and carparking
BE/MAE

TERIFES

95% Commercial/office/
retail and carparking
BE/PRES

ZERIFES

100% Office/
retail and carparking
WA=/

TERFES

100% Commercial/office/
retail and carparking

BE MO
ZERFES

R_Z-TF+-A=+—AI £EH

Approximate
gross floor area
A EE
BHEHES
(sq-m.)
(F 7 K)
226,340

360,146

97,975

92,418

53,542

52,656
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Directors’ Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HBITES

CHU Mang Yee, aged 50, has been a
Director since 1997. He is the Chairman
of the Company and one of the
founders of the Group. Mr. Chu has
over twenty years’ experience in trading,
construction, property investment and
development. He is also a member of
the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative
Conference, an Honoured Citizen of
Meizhou of Guangdong Province and
the Vice Chairman of Guangdong
Research Institute for the Development
of Corporate Strategy. Mr. Chu is the
sole director of Sounda Properties
Limited. Sounda Properties Limited is a
substantial shareholder of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

KB S50% B - NAALFHER
RAEE - RBEARAETERAEHE
WEPR—fBIRA - REEREES
BE - NERERBERTEHERR -
TFEER - BAREZBEBRHBEZE &
REGMNMEAETRMERLE SR
REBHARGREGR - KREERIE
EXFERAFZE—EE REFF
MHIEEAEXVE HEEXERAR
RAZEBRER -

XIANG Bin, aged 64, has been a
Director since 2001. He is the Deputy
Chairman of the Company and director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Xiang is a Chinese Registered
Superior Career Manager in the PRC and
a senior engineer. Mr. Xiang was a
senior management staff of a public
listed company before joining the Group
in February 2001. He has over thirty-
seven years’ of experience in
construction and administration
management.

B 6455 BZETE—FREAR
RAEE -FAARAEEIERARF
ETHERARZESR -BEEHEED
BEREMBELENSRTIZE
B R T -—F - ANMBEAEE
Bl BAEAR - LW ARNERER
AB-fERERTHRERETERE
BB=tLtFER-

XUE Hu, aged 48, has been an Executive
Director since 23rd October 2007. He
was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 22nd March
2010 and director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Xue graduated
from Zhongshan University in
Guangzhou and obtained a Master
degree in Business Administration. He is
a senior economist and worked for
higher education institutes and large
state-owned enterprises in the PRC. Mr.
Xue joined the Group in 1994 and has
over ten years' of experience in real
estate investment, marketing and
enterprise management.

BR 485 B_FTEEFTA-T
—HELERTEE - — T —ZTF=
AZ+-RAHESETHRAR - K
RERRETHBRBAZEE - &
EEREREMNPLURBLETH
BRELTEM  BRASRKHE - B
ETRABASEREREAEEE D
e —NMNEFMBEAKE  EFH
ERE HHEE CEEBFIERE
RETFLER-



Directors’ Profile (continued)

AU Wai Kin, aged 54, has been an
Executive Director since 1997. Mr. Au
joined the Group in 1995. He is also a
director of our other member
companies. Mr. Au graduated from
Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and
has over twenty years’ of experience in
construction of buildings, town
planning, real estate investment and
property development.

BE2 s4 B - AN EFHESR
TEE -BAELER NN AFMBER
S8 YRAEBEHEMKERARZE
E-REEREMPILAZ -BEE
EEFRE WMRE HERKER
MEZRTHER - TFELR-

ZHAO Ming Feng, aged 55, has been
the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
since 17th January 2008 and an
Executive Director since 19th May 2008.
She is also director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Ms. Zhao holds a
Bachelor degree in Economics. She is a
senior accountant and a certified
accountant in the PRC. Prior to joining
the Group in 2007, she was Vice
President of a large listed group. Since
1982, Ms. Zhao had held different
financial management positions at
provincial level and municipal level of
the People’s Bank of China as well as in
large enterprises. She has extensive
experience in financial management and
monetary expertise.

HHAE S5 R-_ZEENF—A+
tHRBEEREEP KRS X8 -
ZZNFEATABRRBEELRARF
HITEL -RABRERAETHER
AZEZ - BEXLIAREBEREEL B
Rtk P EEMEE e —FF
TtEMBAREEZA G E—FARE
EHEEBAE — W\ ZFUARD
MERBEARRITET W7 KA
CEECHMBEERY RAEEE
MM BERERERERTEHNITE
e

LIAO Ruo Qing, aged 46, has been an
Executive Director since 21st January
2010. He is also a Vice President of the
Group and director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Liao graduated
from Zhongshan University in
Guangzhou and obtained a Master
degree from the University of Western
Sydney of Australia. Mr. Liao joined the
Group in 2003. He worked in
government department and engaged in
real estate investment and business
management for over ten years and has
extensive experience in working with
government departments, legal affairs
and investment development.

BEE 46m B-ZE-TF A=
T-ABEERTESR - WITALRE
BERH LR ARAETHERARZ
EFE-BEAFEREMNPILARSZA
BRMABBRBELTEM - Bt
RIEZE=FNEAER - KREHEK
REPIER  tEFHERE MK
BETETHF BRTEENHE
BFRRFIMOERER WERB TIE
BE R -
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Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Directors’ Profile (continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BYFHITES

LEE Tsung Hei, David, BBS, JP, aged 61, is an Independent Non-Executive Director.
Mr. Lee is the Chairman of DH International Group Holdings Ltd. He qualified as a
Chartered Valuation Surveyor in 1973 and registered as an Authorised Person in 1977.
He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional
Surveyor, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an associate of the
Incorporated Society of Valuers and Auctioneers, and an associate of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Lee is a former member of the Central Policy Unit, which is
known as the Government “Think Tank”, a past Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing
Society, a former member of the Supervisory Board of the Hong Kong Housing
Society, a former director of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, a
former Council member of Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a former member of
the Land and Building Advisory Committee. He is currently a member of the Steering
Committee on Review of the Urban Renewal Strategy, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nominating Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a member
of the Salvation Army Advisory Board and Chairman of the Property Advisory
Committee of the Salvation Army. Mr. Lee has been a member of our Board since
1998. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the
Company.

TEER WEHEE XTFHL 65 BUFATEF - FTELERREH
BERZRERARZER BN -NEL=FERHERFFUSMES
TR-NAELFEAMRRBATAL BRABEIEMNBESERGE TEEM
BEXRNER BEEFREERGER HREGEMNEMBEEEBREER
FHBEAREEE FALACRBTERNTPREREAAIBRFERE) 2/
B BEAFEHENIE BAFEHEESEENEZE BTRBBEEEAR
RAZMEE BFEEIARBIRENBELIWIERETAZEGNZE -
FREATREZRERIEEZECZE AEFEBREFHZESERE
HREEER NUEEHZEEZERNEEYXEMZECEIR -FX
EFE-NMANERREFEXRE BARARAZERZES FHZES
FAERS,/ EHEALRHEEGKE -



Directors’ Profile (continued)

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver, aged 58, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director. Mr. Wong obtained his professional
accounting qualifications in both Hong Kong and Canada. Mr.
Wong is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United
Kingdom. Mr. Wong is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an ordinary member
of The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and an
associate member of the Certified General Accountants of
Canada. Mr. Wong had worked in various renowned auditing
firms in Hong Kong with over 15 years’ experience in handling
auditing, financial accounting and taxation matters. Mr. Wong
is currently appointed as an independent non-executive director
and a member of Audit Committee of several listed companies
in Hong Kong. He has also assumed the duty of financial
controller for several listed companies in both Hong Kong and
Canada for over ten years. Mr. Wong is presently practicing as
a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He has expertise in
financial accounting, taxation, import-export business and
company management. Mr. Wong has been a member of our
Board since 1998. He is also a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Connected Transactions/
Related Party Transactions Committee of the Company.

HAE 8o BUFMITEF EXRARBERNERX
EREMEtmER R RRBEST 200 MR
AREFAMAEEREE BEAGHMAGHREERER
B BEEZEAGHMAETERMEARTMES A - B
REBRBZHARBZEHMEBAIFERA RS
AREENEN VBt ANBRELR ELERR
RETERBLTRABAZBIYFATEEZREFLZESGZ
B -MAGHESHBEERNERLTRARZFKEER
ETHF RAREBEATMEFAMEORE - TELL
HROBE: Mg #HOXEBRARERHEEREY
RB-HAEB-NNANFRAEFERE - RITR/AR
RAZEREES FHERESGRUEBERS BHEALR
HREEKE -

-

TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron, aged 55, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director since 2nd July 2010. Mr. Tan currently
serves as Senior Advisor to a global financial services firm. Prior
to this, Mr. Tan was the managing director and head of the
Hong Kong investment banking business of Barclays Capital.
Mr. Tan holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the
University of Alberta and has obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree from City University in the United States
of America. He is an Associate Member of the Canadian
Certified General Accountants and a Fellow Member of the
Institute of Canadian Bankers. Mr. Tan has over 25 years of
experience in the banking industry in both Canada and Hong
Kong. Mr. Tan had held senior positions in several major and
international financial institutions including Citicorp, JP Morgan
Chase and HSBC. Mr. Tan has a wide breadth of experience in
corporate and investment banking as well as capital markets.
Mr. Tan was formerly the Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong
Capital Markets Association.

BREF S5 BT —TFL-A-_HBRBREEBIIER
TES -RAEEBR A RRBRREMRB AR 2 S REERE -
Ik BT BR %C 4 A Barclays Capital 7 E E QKB R F AR EIR
TTE 2 EE o BRI E£45 5 University of Albertail £ 25 + 2
fi7 » I B 18 3= B City University T i & 1218 £ B - A
eXRFMetMEegERNERNRTRHEE L K
EERNMEARBBZBRITEREED2FLER -REA
& 72 Citicorp * JP Morgan Chase & JE 2 R 17 5 % R A AU B B
CEREBETRABMA -MRAEERTERKRERITUK
BAMGHEEERBR RILEBASEAEEEAT
HBREZREIER -
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Senior Management’s. Profile

ZHU Guoxing, aged 62, Vice President of the Group, President of Commercial Property Headquarters and General Manager
of Eastern China Commercial Property Company. Mr. Zhu holds a Master degree. He is a senior economist and a certified
accountant in the PRC. He was appointed as Head of Financial and Taxation Bureau in Zhabei District of Shanghai, Head of
Financial and Taxation Bureau and Head of Audit Bureau in Pudong New Area of Shanghai and the President of Shanghai
Lujiazui Holding Company since 1988. He is the Chairman of Building Association in Lujiazui of Shanghai, Vice Chairman of
Commercial Association in Pudong New Area of Shanghai. Mr. Zhu has substantial management experience in commercial
property industry and has in-depth knowledge in the operation and administration of office building, hotel, shopping mall
and hi-technology software park. He is familiar with the macro economy and capital market activities.

KEH o2 AEERERRDEHELALAELNERHEHELTNALE - RELHARLEN  SREE
Ahig - RPEEAMEAM - B - AN\N\FEEFLEFILENHRERER LEBEHRFIRYNBREE BFBABRB
ERERERNAFERETR RLEEEZEETHEER LEBRFER SR eR RELEABLEENEE
WETEEELR HBRFR2 BEE B% SHREGENEFEERIFAET HRBREF TR BE
BAREE-

XU Hong, aged 43, Vice President of the Group, Chairman of Tianjin regional company. She holds a Master degree in
Business Administration from the University of Western Sydney in Australia, a PhD in Economic Management from Macau
University of Science and Technology. Prior to joining the Group in 1994, she worked in the real estate sector for over ten
years and has extensive experience in investment, development and management of land bank, real estate and project
operation. She possess good relations with the government and a vast network in the community.

BA BR ASEEIFRREREAFAEFR -BXITERNARERBIHERBR T2  RPFIRIKRKE
REEEEELEM - — W NOFNMBAEE EFHETETHT ELHRFE FHEREMBEEERA
BEFTHLREE BRERFNBRNBEENLEER

LIU Jian, aged 43, Vice President of the Group. Mr. Liu graduated from the Chongging Institute of Architectural Engineering
with a Bachelor degree. He is a certified first-class architect and a professor-level senior engineer in the PRC. He served as the
Vice-President of China Institute of Aerospace Construction and Design, Deputy General Manager of Beijing Zhujiang Real
Estate Development Limited and Deputy General Manager of Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Development Limited
respectively since 1989. He joined the Group as Vice President in 2002. Mr. Liu has wide exposure in real estate planning,
design and engineering management with extensive practical operations experience.

g2 BR A5EREH -BEELERENEERETRESRR 220U -BER-AETMEEM HERS
AT BN/ \NFEEETEMREERFHARRRE ERKIEHERZAR QA RAEIE R
REEETEHEREARARAAKLE  —_ TS _FNEAEETRAE EALHAELENFHEREIR
A ITREELR BERBREEREE -

ZHANG Liming, aged 44, Assistant to President of the Group. She graduated from the Xinjiang University of Education and
is an economist. Prior to joining the Group in 2002, she worked in Shenzhen Taxation Bureau and had been engaged in real
estate investment, operation and management for over ten years. She has substantial experience in government public
relations and investment and development.

RER M AKEEHDE - BEXNHMEBMEASE £FHM - —TT_FNEAKHE - R+ ZHBR R
MHER REFHERBEIZEZEETFTHE FEENBNAABERRERESTIELR -



Financial Review

TURNOVER O]

The economic stimulus measures in 2009 and the implementation of
the 4,000-billion investment plan fuelled economic growth and
facilitated property market development. In 2010, however, a series
of measures were introduced to stabilise the overheating market.
The Group recorded a satisfactory turnover of HK$14,379 million in
2010 (2009: HK$11,225 million), up 28%. The overall GFA delivered
by the Group in 2010 was 766,030 square metres (2009: 896,934
square metres), of which the GFA delivered in Huizhou and Beijing
increased by 55% and 7% respectively due to the delivery of a new
phase in Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay and the delivery of new projects
such as Kylin Zone, No. 8 Royal Park and Dreams World in Beijing.

The average selling price for delivered and completed properties in
2010, increased by 49% to RMB15,474 per square metre (2009:
RMB10,385 per square metre) as a considerable volume of higher
price products and high-end new projects were delivered during the
year. All the regions recorded higher average selling price where
Beijing witnessed a 92% growth due to the delivery of three new
projects and the average selling price in Shanghai grew 65% with
the delivery of the Hopson Golf Mansion project.

EENFHRBEERBERM
BIR B R & 2 F e B 48 5 18
R UYRETEHEMBZER-
AMm  BERR-ZE—ZEFHE—F
HEHEUNIRTRBRMG A& B
RZE—ZEFHRBRBEZIEER
14,379,000,000%8 T ( = E T N, F -
11,225,000,000%7T) + EF28% ° A
—E-ZEHE - AEEERNZBER
S HEERT66,030F FRK(ZZEZEN
% :896,934F 5 K) - R EM KL
R E AR - HEMN SR E U
RAZMIE R BB 5B EHKS
FRMHANENEE  HEXHE
SEEED B EF55% K T% °

ol

MR BHEEHEERAEERR 2E
BEREmMEBEBERFRARNMN Bt
ZE—ZTHFEERNREXDEZT
HEBLHAIOREEF T RKARE
15474 (ZEZFNF : FFF KA
R#¥10,38570) - FT A Hh R EEF K
Al TPHER AP RERN=
EFBE MEEBRUIERER LEHR
RNTEERREAABEEMESF T
HEEBLEH65% -
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Financial Review (continued)

TURNOVER (Continued)

The Central Government implemented a series of austerity measures
to curb rapid rising home prices and speculative activities in 2010
with the aim to maintain an orderly and stable real estate market.
Amid the fluctuating market conditions, the Group yet recorded a
total of RMB11.04 billion contracted sales (2009: RMB15.09 billion).
Average contracted selling price grew 20% to RMB15,684 per
square metre (2009: RMB13,041 per square metre).

The combined contracted sales of Beijing and Tianjin was RMB4,496
million, representing 41% of the total contracted sales of the Group
in 2010. Nine property projects were on sale in Beijing and Tianjin,
of which No. 8 Royal Park, Dreams World and Kylin Zone and Dalian
Hopson Regal Seashore were the major sales contributors.

Seventeen property projects were on sale in Guangdong and the
contracted sales were RMB3,021 million in 2010, representing 27%
of the total contracted sales of the Group. Huizhou region recorded
a growth in contracted sales by 16% to reach RMB1,074 million.
The major projects in Guangdong were Yijing Huayuan, Junjing Bay,
Regal Riviera, Gallopade Park — South Court, Huanan New City,
Zhongshan Regal Court, Huizhou International New City, Hushan
Guoji Villa, Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay and Huizhou Golf Manor.

There were seven property projects on sale in Shanghai, comprising
Hopson Town, Hopson Golf Mansion, International Garden, Sheshan
Dongziyuan, Hopson Dongjiao Villa, Hopson Yuting Garden and
Hopson International City. Contracted sales of Shanghai amounted
to RMB3,520 million and representing 32% of the total contracted
sales of the Group.

SE R

PRABEMR-ZE—ZSFEE— R
AEEEBNEREANEERE
MR K NEBBEREFREEZ
EHEMSB EmRESHT K&
ENHESAEOHEEEARARK
11,040,000,000T( Z T F N F : A
E #15,090,000,0007T ) ° & #) #4 &
CHEHEBNRAF LHA20%ESE
FHAXAREISGBIT(ZET N
FBERARARKE13,0417T) ©

IRRERREZEAHEESHEHRA
K #4,496,000,0007T ' {h AN £ B —
T TFEEANEEBBE 2% 1L
REREENEEEYMHEIEER  H
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Financial Review (continued)

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales included land and construction costs, decoration and design
costs and capitalised interest. In line with the increase in turnover and
higher cost absorption due to some extent to change of development
plans and improved quality decoration and design in certain projects and
elevated capitalised interest, cost of sales raised to HK$8,692 million (2009:
HK$6,558 million) and, as a percentage of turnover, up by 2% to 60%
(2009: 58%)

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit margin dropped from 41.6% in 2009 to 39.6% in 2010 due
primarily to the increase in cost of sales.

OTHER INCOME/GAINS, NET

Other income/gains amounted to HK$1,124.1 million in 2010 (2009:
HK$734.0 million) comprising (1) a net gain of HK$958.2 million from the
disposal of subsidiaries; (2) grants amounting to HK$150.0 million from
the government authorities in the Mainland China; (3) a dividend income
of HK$15.3 million, and (4) a fair value gain of HK$0.6 million from
investment in listed securities.

OPERATING COSTS

The net operating costs relating to expenses for selling, marketing, general
and administration amounted to HK$1,528 million representing an
increase of 11% from 2009 of HK$1,374 million. The increase was
primarily attributable to (1) greater amounts expended on promotional
activities and staff costs for new projects; and (2) donations made to
charitable organisations in the Mainland.

OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit in 2010 was up by 4% to HK$9,079 million (2009:
HK$8,728 million) due primarily to the delivery of a considerable amount
of higher price products.
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FINANCE COSTS

Gross interest before capitalisation increased 10% to HK$1,268 million
from HK$1,148 million in 2009. The increase was mainly caused by the
additional bank borrowings made in the second half of 2010. The effective
interest rate in respect of the Group’s bank borrowings was approximately
5.8% per annum (2009: 6.2%).

SHARE OF LOSS OF A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY

Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity represented the Group's share of
loss of HK$0.7 million from a jointly controlled entity located in Beijing.

TAXATION

The effective tax rate was 29% in 2010, slightly down 2% compared with
last year. Excluding the (1) non-taxable items comprising gain on disposal
of subsidiaries of HK$958 million, dividend income from investment in
listed securities of HK$15 million, government grants of HK$150 million
and interest income of HK$17 million, and (2) share of loss from a jointly
controlled entity of HK$0.7 million and share of profit from associates of
HK$1.1 million, the effective tax rate would have been 33% (2009: 35%).
The decrease was to a large extent attributable to the decrease in the
provision made for Mainland China’s land appreciation tax during the
year.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$5,889 million for 2010 (2009:
HK$5,800 million). Basic earnings per share was HK$3.43. Excluding the
effect of the net of tax gain from revaluation of investment properties
amounting to HK$2,846 million, underlying profit was HK$3,043 million,
up HK$768 million or 34% as compared with previous year.

Bt 35 B AR

BAEBEARZ2MNBRBER-_ZTZAN
F 21,148,000,000% JT # M10% =
1,268,000,000 L FZEFRAL_T—F
FTHFENRITEENS - AEEE
BEEBRENERHAESSE(ZTEThF
6.2[E) °

ThE—EHEZHEREE

AR EEBSEREAESEE
5 b Rz %2 B R ¥ 6 B §8 &5 18
700,000/ JT °

B 1A

CE-TEZEBRMER29%  BEFE
OB 2% o W T Er R EHE R FK
%3 958,000,000% 7T M EM & 5 MR &
JEHL 2 B% B Ug A 15,000,000 JT ~ BT #E
B 150,000,000% 7t K& # 2 42 A 17,000,000
BLTEDEARBERE: RQoh—HAH
m 51| 2 42 &5 18700,000 58 7T & 9k Bk 4

A) % #/1,100,000%8 7T - ER B X E A
BR(ZEZFTNF :35%) - BEEBKIIE IR
RIEE LR F A E AT Ig(E
MR BEHER D -

ARARRERE AEMSERR

—TE-ZEFEUCREFAAEBMGERER
#$5,889,000,000%8 T( = T T 1 F:
5,800,000,000% 7T ) R E A AT &
3A3B T oM RRAREMEEHT
TH U 25 7% 5 2,846,000,00078 TT 2 & - #%
2 F) 8 A 3,043,000,0007 7T 8 2= & 10
768,000,0007%5 7L 8k 34% °



Financial Review (continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Property development continued to be the Group’s core business activity
(95%). In 2010, the Group continued to develop its business in the three
core economic regions, namely the Pearl River Delta, Yangtze River Delta
and Huanbohai Area. Beijing contributed 41% to the total revenue of the
Group, followed by Guangzhou and Huizhou (35%), Shanghai (20%) and
Tianjin (4%).

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31st December 2010, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$91,161 million and its total liabilities came to HK$50,168 million,
representing an increase of HK$20,506 million and HK$10,013 million
respectively over the previous year. The increase in total assets was mainly
attributable to the increase in (1) surplus from revaluation of investment
properties; (2) fair value of available-for-sale financial assets; (3)
development cost incurred in the construction and completion of projects,
and (4) investments in new sites of Shanghai. Aligned with this, total
liabilities also increased, primarily due to (1) additional bank borrowings
obtained, and (2) increase in accounts payable, accruals and other
payables and tax liabilities.

Current ratio was 2.75 in 2010 (2009: 2.19). Equity increased to
HK$40,993 million at 31st December 2010 from HK$30,499 million at
31st December 2009, due primarily to (1) current year's profit attributable
to equity holders; (2) share placement of 185,461,463 shares, and (3)
increase in assets revaluation reserve and currency translation differences
reserve.
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LIQUIDITY AND BORROWINGS

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely monitors its
current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain its rolling cash
flow at a level which is considered adequate by the Group to finance the
Group's operations according to its cash flow projections and to maintain
sufficient cash to meet its business development requirements.

As at 31st December 2010, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio (i.e. the ratio
between total liabilities and total assets, excluding non-controlling
interests) was 55% (2009: 57%). The net debt-to-equity ratio (i.e. total
debt less cash and bank deposits over shareholders’ equity) was 51% (2009:
32%).

As at 31st December 2010, the Group had cash and short-term bank
deposits amounting to HK$2,697 million (2009: HK$6,714 million) of
which approximately HK$77 million (2009: HK$107 million) was charged
by certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage facilities granted
by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties. 98.1% of the cash
and bank deposits were denominated in Renminbi, 1.7% in Hong Kong
dollars and 0.2% in United States dollars.

Total borrowings from banks amounted to HK$21,022 million as at 31st
December 2010 representing an increase of 83% or HK$9,519 million as
compared to those at 31st December 2009. Gearing measured by net
bank borrowings and Guaranteed Senior Notes (i.e. total bank borrowings
and Guaranteed Senior Notes less cash and bank deposits) as a percentage
of shareholders’ equity, was 51%, increase 19 percentage points from
32% as at 31st December 2009. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in bank borrowings and decrease in cash and bank deposits
during the year.

All of the bank borrowings were either secured or covered by guarantees
and were substantially denominated in Renminbi with fixed interest rates
whereas the United States Dollar denominated Senior Notes due 2012 was
jointly and severally guaranteed by certain subsidiaries with fixed interest
rate, representing approximately 82% and 10%, respectively of the

Group's total borrowings.

All of the other borrowings were unsecured, interest-free and substantially
denominated in Renminbi.
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Financial Review (continued) B7#5 = (48)

LIQUIDITY AND BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group’s borrowing repayment profile as at 31st December 2010 was

RBEEREE®

AKEBR-_ZE—ZEF+_A=Z=+—RH2

as follows: BEEFKRERAT
As at 31st December 2010 As at 31st December 2009
R=Z2-BF+=A=+-8 RZETNET-A=1—H
Guaranteed Guaranteed
LENS Senior Other Bank Guaranteed  Convertible Other
Borrowings notes borrowings Borrowings ~ Senior notes bond  borrowings Total
Ri# R RE
RITHE BEAFEE HiEE ROEE  BEER  TEREF HbE it
(HKS million) (HK$ million)
(FB#ER) (B8%T)
1 year —F 3,672 - 2,060 5732 (22%) 4,063 — 2,170 2,022 8,255 (45%)
1-2 years —FEME 5,626 2,698 — 8324  (32%) 1,907 — — — 1,907 (10%)
2-5 years MEERF 8,863 - — 8,863  (35%) 4771 2,677 — — 7,448 (41%)
After 5 years TF% 2,861 - - 2,861 (11%) 761 — — — 761 (4%)
Total st 21,022 2,698 2,060 25,780 11,502 2,677 2,170 2,022 18371
Less: Cash and bank deposits  Jii : 3B & MER{T1ER (2,697) (6,714)
Net borrowings BEEBE 23,083 11,657

As at 31st December 2010, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$55,561 million (2009: HK$36,976 million) for short-
term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$34,539 million (2009:
HK$25,474 million) were unutilised.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

As at 31st December 2010, the Group provided guarantees to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the Group’s properties which
amounted to HK$10,502 million (2009: HK$9,981 million).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st December 2010, certain assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$11,853 million (2009: HK$7,355 million) were
pledged with banks for loan facilities used by subsidiaries.
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COMMITMENTS

The Group’s commitments as at 31st December 2010 were as follows:

iR

AEEFR-_ZT—ZTF+_A=+—82
AEMAT

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2010 2009
R=Z—FF RZZETNGF
TZA=1+—H [Ray;iEs =
HK$ million HK$ million
BRER BEAT
Capital commitments BAREAE
Contracted but not provided for BRI 4B R BE
— Property construction costs —MEFERKAK 1,785 880
— Acquisition of land and equity interests —IREETHEKEETRE
in certain Mainland China entities 2 T R R A R = 6,245 170
— Capital contribution to a jointly — Y — R HERIEHE 2
controlled entity ([EEEAFXE]) 2
(“BJ Dongfangwenhua”) N — 258
8,030 1,308
Authorised but not contracted for EEBERITLY
— Acquisition of land and equity interests in —lEETEE IR
certain entities AR AN = 7,859 66
— Property construction costs —MEREK A 3,526 3,531
11,385 3,597
19,415 4,905




Financial Review (continued) B/ #5[ElEE ()

COMMITMENTS (continued) A )
As at
31st December
2010
R-Z2-2F
+=A=+—-H
HK$ million
BEAET
Property development commitments W) 2B R R R
Contracted but not provided for BRI #BREE
— Property construction costs —EFEEKAK 13,066 10,184
Authorized but not contracted for EEEBRRITD
— Property construction costs — W EE KA 66,221 38,258
79,287 48,442

83

—BEER

-=

SHEAREEBRAT -



84

- Annual Report 2010

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Financial Review (continued) B 7%l (48)

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of premises under
various non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as

A @)

AEERZNEREENE Z TR EH
REBEBZEMEKLLHERE - RET
AEHGEHOR AR RERNEAS

follows: MM
As at As at
31st December 31st December
2010 2009
R=2—%F RZTTAF
+=—B=+—H +=ZA=+—~”
HKS$ million HK$ million
BERER BEAT

Amounts payable T3 ER A E T 2 5RIB

— Within one year — &R 30 27
— Within two to five years —WFEERFNA 74 76
— After 5 years —HFi& 40 49
144 152

With continuous cash inflow from property sales, the banking facilities
available and the cash in hand, the Group is expected to be in an
adequate liquidity position to meet these on-going commitments by
stages.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that
are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries,
associates and a jointly controlled entity are principally engaged in
investment holding, property development, property investment, property

management and hotel operations.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and their respective contributions to
operating profit for the year ended 31st December 2010 by geographical
locations is as follows:

EEeMAREGLAREBEERAA
(TRRADEEWMB AR (SHEIAEE])
BE_ZT-TF+_A=+—RHLHFE
MERERKEXZY RBEK -

AR 7%—%&@;
A7 BEAT

5 m%%@
R A

/N - =S N =
HREAZEHEEZENE
MERE YWEE

AEEHE_T-ZTF+_A=1t—H
TFEEZRMRE N CEXEBREZEEY
REnMzBERONWT

Contribution to

Turnover operating profit

HEERF

EXH Z B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Guangzhou =30 3,331,772 2,236,845
Beijing it = 5,837,780 3,004,583
Shanghai B 2,891,854 2,540,747
Tianjin RE 514,740 (109,704)
Huizhou L 1,803,107 174,718
Others HAty — 1,231,783
14,379,253 9,078,972

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments for the year
ended 31st December 2010 is as follows:

MEHE
MEEIBIRA
B 5 = E WA
HE WA

Sales of properties

Property management income
Income from hotel operation
Rental income

AREBE-_ZFT-THF+TA=1+—H
LHEEREBIBEDOHEXRES W
T

Turnover
=201
HK$'000
FET
13,696,356
410,634
179,792
92,471

14,379,253
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31st December 2010, the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for approximately 2.46% of the Group’s turnover
while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
22% of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 0.65% of the Group’s turnover while
the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 9% of the
Group's purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in Note
41 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December 2010 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 122 of this annual
report.

No interim dividend was declared and paid during the year. The Directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK17.15 cents per
share, which will bring the total dividends for the year ended 31st
December 2010 to approximately HK$300,531,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note
27 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 371st December 2010,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$525,776,000 (2009: HK$596,215,000).

TEEEREER

BE_ZT-TF T+ _A=Z=1+—BL*#F
B AEEBLBEARTFPEAREERE
#)2.46%  MASKE R B RAHER ARG
REBRBEN2% - I REBKAKA
BEPIEAEEEXFEN065%  MAKE
M AEEEAEAEBERBENI%

BB mARMIEAMEESE TRERA
EBMBI HMEES RENBEAXT
MERRBESMAEE RN ARAER
5%) R AKEBMARAZATF AR RKK
HERTHEEdEm -

FE kDK

AEEHE_ZT-ZTF+_A=1t—H
HEEXEFRENAFREI12EKEE
BaERA-

AFEVHESREINTRBERE -EF&
FEEARBRBEFTRR715BM - Bt
BHE-_Z-ZF+_A=+—HBILtFE
2 1% B 4858 4% 49 2 300,531,000%8 T ©

RN
7D IS 2P B R L B RS R
27

fi& 8

AEBEARBRANFEZHEZL S H
R TS ¥R M 7528

RZE—ZTF+-_A=+—B  RE
BRERAIEHE AAaAA#H DK
f# # /525,776,000 T ( — T T N F -
596,215,000 7T ) °



Report of the Directors (continued) EE=E & ()

DONATIONS

During the vyear, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$202,771,000 (2009: HK$35,640,000) to various charitable
organizations.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in properties and equipment and investment

properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to
the financial statements, respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company'’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 12 and 13 to the financial statements, respectively.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2010 are set out in Note 24
to the financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 250 to 252.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 30th April 2009, the Company and Guangdong Hanjiang Construction
Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”), being the respective holding
companies of the Group and the Hanjiang Group (comprising Hanjiang, its
subsidiaries and its associates), entered into a framework agreement (the
“Framework Agreement”) setting out, among other things, the principal
terms in respect of services/leased premises to be provided to the Group
by the Hanjiang Group and of services/leased premises to be provided by
the Group to the Hanjiang Group. The Framework Agreement is effective
for a term commencing from 16th June 2009 to 31st December 2011.
Hanjiang, a company owned by the brother of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the
controlling shareholder and chairman of the board of Directors of the
Company) (“Mr. Chu”) as to 90 percent and the brother-in-law of Mr.
Chu as to 10 percent, is a connected person of the Company under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Hence, the
transactions between the Group and the Hanjiang Group as contemplated
under the Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of such
continuing connected transactions are set out as follows:

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out construction works for
certain property development projects of the Group and the
Hanjiang Group agrees to carry out such construction works for the
Group. The construction fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for carrying out construction works for various property
projects of the Group in the PRC shall be determined by the parties
by reference to the prevailing market rates charged by independent
third parties for similar construction projects and the stipulated
standards prescribed by 7#:ZZ &€ (Construction Committee) of
such area where the particular property project is located. During
the year ended 31st December 2010, total construction fees paid/
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$2,275,708,000 (2009: HK$1,899,903,000).
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Report of the Directors (continued)

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to manage certain properties developed
by the Group in Shanghai. The amount of management fees payable
by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for providing management
services to the said properties in Shanghai shall be determined by
the parties by reference to the prevailing market rates charged by
independent third parties for providing similar property management
services in similar locations, which shall conform with the stipulated
standards prescribed by FEEL#EERE (Housing and Land
Administration Bureau) of such area where the particular property is
located. During the year ended 31st December 2010, management
fees paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$ 1,104,000 (2009: HK$899,000).

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out design works for certain
property development projects of the Group and Hanjiang agrees to
procure any member of the Hanjiang Group which is engaged in the
business of property design, to carry out such design works for the
Group. The amount of design fees payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group for carrying out the design works for various
property development projects of the Group shall be determined by
the parties by reference to, and shall not be higher than, the
prevailing market rates charged by independent third parties for
similar design projects and the standards or guidelines prescribed by
the relevant government authority on the fees chargeable for the
provision of similar services (if any). During the year ended 31st
December 2010, design fees paid/payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$2,759,000 (20009:
HK$13,787,000).
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Report of the Directors (continued)

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out installation and decoration
works for certain property development projects of the Group and
Hanjiang agrees to procure any member of the Hanjiang Group
which is engaged in the business of installation and decoration, to
carry out such installation and decoration works for the Group. The
amount of installation and decoration fees payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group for carrying out the installation and decoration
works for various property development projects of the Group in the
PRC shall be determined by the parties by reference to, and shall not
be higher than, the prevailing market rates charged by independent
third parties for similar installation and decoration works and the
standards prescribed by the relevant governmental authorities of
such area where the particular property is located. During the year
ended 31st December 2010, installation and decoration fees paid/
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$42,487,000 (2009: HK$39,871,000).

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Hanjiang Group
agrees to lease certain premises in Guangzhou to the Group for use
as office. The rent payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group will
be determined by reference to the prevailing market rents charged
by independent third parties for the leasing of similar properties in
the vicinity. During the year ended 31st December 2010, rental paid/
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$1,203,000 (2009: HK$2,363,000).
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Report of the Directors (continued)

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out electrical power installation
and intelligent building installation works for certain property
development projects of the Group and to provide consultation
services to the Group in relation to budgeting and construction cost
control. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for carrying out electrical power installation works for the
property projects of the Group will be determined by reference to,
and shall not be higher than, the prevailing market rates charged by
independent third parties for similar works and the standards
prescribed by the relevant governmental authorities of such area
where the property is located. The amount of fees payable by the
Group to the Hanjiang Group for carrying out intelligent building
installation works for certain property projects of the Group in the
PRC will be determined by reference to, and shall not be higher
than, the prevailing market rates charged by independent third
parties for similar works and the standards prescribed by the relevant
governmental authorities of such area where the property is located.
The amount of fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for
the provision of budgeting and construction cost control
consultation services to the Group will be determined by reference
to, and shall not be higher than, 2R 2RI BIZ% (Standard
Fees for Tender Agencies) issued by 1t 2R E L 8 € (Beijing
Municipal Commission of Development and Reform) in respect of
the provision of services to assist in the tender process and 2% (8
BRARSWBEIEE1THHE (Provisional Administrative Measures on
Consultation Fees for Construction Budgeting) issued by the relevant
department of E:&#B (Ministry of Construction) now known as {£
= RO 4832 5% B (Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development)
in respect of the provision of budgeting services. During the year
ended 31st December 2010, fees for electrical power installation
works, intelligent building installation works and budgeting and
construction cost control consultation services paid/payable by the
Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$109,403,000 (2009: HK$76,579,000).
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Report of the Directors (continued)

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group may
appoint the Hanjiang Group to supervise the construction of certain
property development projects of the Group. The amount of
construction supervision fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group for supervising the construction of certain property projects
of the Group shall be determined by the parties by reference to the
prevailing market rates charged by independent third parties for the
provision of similar construction supervision works and the standards
prescribed under E:& TFZESIP ERAHRI AR TSI & 41Z % (Construction
Project Monitoring and Related Services Fees Standard). During the
year ended 31st December 2010, construction supervision fees paid/
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$6,418,000 (2009: HK$1,968,000).

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Group agrees
to lease certain premises in Guangzhou, Beijing and Tianjin to the
Hanjiang Group for use as shops. The rent receivable by the Group
from the Hanjiang Group will be determined by reference to the
market rents charged by Group for the leasing of the same or similar
properties to independent third parties in the vicinity. During the
year ended 31st December 2010, no rental was received/receivable
by the Group from the Hanjiang Group (2009: nil).

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Hanjiang Group
may appoint the Group to manage certain vacant properties of the
Hanjiang Group located in Guangzhou, Beijing and Xi'an. The
amount of management fees receivable by the Group from the
Hanjiang Group will be determined by the parties by reference to
the standards on property management fees and related costs
prescribed by the Guangdong Provincial, Beijing Municipal and Xi'an
local authorities and the property pricing guidelines issued by the
local government. During the year ended 31st December 2010,
vacant property management fees received/receivable by the Group
from the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$5,967,000
(2009: HK$13,919,000).
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Report of the Directors (continued)

For the three years ending 31st December 2011, the Hanjiang Group
may appoint the Group to carry out design works for certain
property projects of the Hanjiang Group. The amount of design fees
receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group will be determined
by the parties by reference to the prevailing market rates charged by
independent third parties for undertaking similar design projects and
the standards and guidelines prescribed by the relevant local
authority on fees chargeable for the provision of similar services (if
any). During the year ended 31st December 2010, design fees
received/receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$16,312,000 (2009:
HK$19,917,000).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
transactions and confirmed that:

@i a. the above transactions have been conducted at arm'’s
length between the parties on normal commercial terms
or, if there are not sufficient comparable transactions to
judge whether they are on normal commercial terms, on
terms no less favorable to the Company than terms to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties;

b. the above transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

c.  the above transactions have been carried out in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole;

(i) during the year ended 31st December 2010, total construction
fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$2,275,708,000 (2009: HK$1,899,903,000),
which have not exceeded the annual construction fees paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the vyear
concerned as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 30th April 2009 (the “Announcement”);
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Report of the Directors (continued)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

during the year ended 31st December 2010, management
fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$1,104,000 (2009: HK$899,000), which
have not exceeded the annual management fees paid/payable
to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2010, design fees paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$2,759,000 (2009: HK$13,787,000) which have not
exceeded the annual design fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2010, installation and
decoration fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted
to approximately HK$42,487,000 (2009: HK$39,871,000)
which have not exceeded the annual installation and
decoration fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect
of the year concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2010, office rental paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,203,000 (2009: HK$2,363,000),
exceeded the annual office rental paid/payable to the Hanjiang

which has not

Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2010, fees for electrical
power installation, intelligent building installation, and
budgeting and construction cost control consultation services
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$109,403,000 (2009: HK$76,579,000),
which have not exceeded the annual fees for electrical power
installation, intelligent building installation, and budgeting and
construction cost control consultation services paid/payable to
the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the Announcement;

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

(viii) during the year ended 31st December 2010, construction
supervision fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted
to approximately HK$6,418,000 (2009: HK$1,968,000), which
have not exceeded the annual construction supervising fees
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

(ix)  during the year ended 31st December 2010, no shop rental
was received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group (2009: nil),
which have not exceeded the annual shop rental received/
receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

(x)  during the year ended 31st December 2010, vacant property
management fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang
Group amounted to approximately HK$5,967,000 (2009:
HK$13,919,000), which have not exceeded the annual vacant
property management fees received/receivable from the
Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed
in the Announcement; and

(xi) during the year ended 31st December 2010, design fees
received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$16,312,000 (2009: HK$19,917,000), which
have not exceeded the annual design fees received/receivable
from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the Announcement.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the abovementioned
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31st December 2010, the Group entered into the
following connected transaction:

On 3rd November 2010, the Company entered into a share purchase
agreement with Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”) (the “Share
Purchase Agreement”), whereby, Farrich has conditionally agreed to sell,
and the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued
share capital of Sun Excel Investments Limited (“Sun Excel”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands for a sum of RMB6,875,066,000
(the "Original Consideration”). On 13th December 2010, the Company
and Farrich entered into supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Agreement”) to vary and amend certain terms and conditions of the Share
Purchase Agreement, including, among others, (i) the reduction of the
Original Consideration to RMB6,605,066,000 (“Consideration”) and (ii)
the increase of the issue price of the 523,246,625 new shares of the
Company (“Consideration Shares”) to be allotted and issued to Farrich or
its nominee(s) upon completion pursuant to the terms of the Share
Purchase Agreement from HK$8.806 to HK$9.5 per share. The
Consideration will be satisfied partly by allotment and issue of the
Consideration Shares and partly by cash. Farrich is a company indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Yat Hong, the son of Mr. Chu Mang Yee who
is the controlling shareholder (through Sounda Properties Limited) of the
Company, executive Director and chairman of the Board. As such, Farrich
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The said
transaction was approved by independent shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting held on 22nd February 2011.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions and connected
transaction, the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules in force from time to time.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)

Mr. Xiang Bin (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chen Chang Ying (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 21st January 2010)

Mr. Xue Hu (appointed as Chief Executive Officer on
22nd March 2010)

Mr. Au Wai Kin

Ms. Zhao Ming Feng (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Liao Ruo Qing (appointed on
21st January 2010)

Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip (resigned on 2nd July 2010)

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron (appointed on 2nd July 2010)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David,
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver and Mr. Chu Mang Yee retire from office by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all the Directors appointed
by the Directors during the year retire at the annual general meeting next
following their appointment. Accordingly, Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron
retires from office and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David,
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver and Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron and
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 41 to the accompanying financial statements, no
other contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled
entity or holding company was a party and in which any of the Company’s
Directors had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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Report of the Directors (continued) EEE i (&)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st December 2010, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in shares

Number of shares of the Company

(CE-R:

gl 1‘
Z 1

0 =
<

ot 5

E)l:

)

53
%

T 535 4
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Approximate

AATRGEHE percentage of

Personal Family Corporate Other shares

Name of directors interests interests interests interests Total outstanding

HEBTRA

ESpR BAEZ REER 7 ) Hip iz &a&t BMABD

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) & @& & 5t 4 (a) — — 1,101,003,809 — 1,101,003,809 62.83%

Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) B {2 22 % A (b) — — 34,500,000 — 34,500,000 1.97%
Notes: HtaF -

a. Mr. Chu Mang Yee held 1,032,363,809 shares of the Company through Sounda
Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him, and 68,640,000 shares of the
Company through Hopson Education Charitable Funds Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Chu.

b. Mr. Au Wai Kin held 34,500,000 shares of the Company through a company wholly-
owned and controlled by him.

a. FEREEBEBRELEEF AR EESE
ERAAREEHBEEER S HFRAALF
# B K 2\ 7]1,032,363,809 % 68,640,000 8% A2 17

b. BEESFEFRAREDEREARIFHZ DA
A 7 2 /134,500,000 8% 2 17
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2010, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company and their respective associates had any
personal, family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or any of their spouses
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, and no Directors or chief executives or their respective spouses
or children under 18 years of age had been granted any right to subscribe
for equity or debt securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, as at 31st December 2010, according to the register
of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the
following entity had interests or short positions in the shares of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity and nature of interests

IR R & B SR REEME
Sounda Properties Limited Beneficial owner
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Number of percentage of
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1,032,363,809 58.91%




Report of the Directors (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other persons
who, as at 31st December 2010, had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the

SFO.

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted on
4th November 2002. The following table is a summary of the Scheme
disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules:

1. Purpose of the Scheme

At & B8

2. Participants of the Scheme
Zrtdlz2mE

3. Total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme and
percentage of issued share capital as
at 31st March 2011
BARZ T8I AT B TR BB R R
—E-—F=A=t—RHE2%
TRAB D

4. Maximum entitlement of each
participant under the Scheme
RiIEZAEGR2HENERZ
= BB IR B A

BREXEBREN BREERA BEMSM
HMATHRZZE—ZF+=_A=+—8H
EAZ}S AlzBROSEERGO T HEERE
BERHEKMEXVEEE 2R E3IDEAE
FMS’AT?&&%ZTE 5 2Ok B B ZE B AR
BEFLRBEEMNEIBETUFEEZE
R R KR -

BRESENESR

ARmlzBERESE(ZAT DR -F
L F+— AMBERMA - RE ETARBH
ZETEIMMEMEREMNT

As recognition of the contribution of the participants by granting options to
them as incentives or rewards.

AZ2EERTEREARSREOER @ LA ERE @&

Any executive, employee, director (including non-executive director and
independent non-executive director), consultant, adviser and/or agent of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

RABIHEERMMPBERR ZERMTHAE -
ERBIRITES)

BE EX(8
AN BREEHREA -

EIEHITE

100,200,000 shares unless shareholders’ approval has been obtained pursuant
to the terms of the Scheme (approximately 5.72 % of issued share capital).

B SEAR 45 52 At B R FRIE AR #E /& - 45 BI1/3100,200,000 A% (18 B B 17 IR A
#)5.72%) °

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of share
options already granted or to be granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital as
at the date of grant. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the rules of the Scheme.

BHE2EEAIMNBERHEH(BRER L+ ZHEABRAEER
AR ERBRETATERABETRBETZRMEB(BRETE

RERITENERE)  TREARNKEBHCBEITRE1% - E— K
HAERER DR 2 BAE - AETRASRAUANTRHAZETRE -
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The period within which the shares
must be taken up under an option

AITEBBRERBRN ZHR

The minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised
AINITREA A B E 2 %A H
R

The amount payable on application
or acceptance of the option and the
period within which payments or
calls must or may be made or loans
for such purpose must be paid
REEMNBREZEN SN
RNZBMNRZHRAER
HEBREERZHAR

The basis of determining
the exercise price
EBETHEBEIEE

Commencing on the date of grant of an option and expiring at 5:00 p.m. on
the earlier of the business day preceding the fifth anniversary thereof and the
business day preceding the tenth anniversary of the day on which the Scheme
was adopted.
EERERLEHEEZREBAPERBEF 2 L —EALXAHERS
ZiBlEHBEFZ F—EEXBUREERE) TFAKERER -

Completion of half year’s full-time services with the Company or a subsidiary.

MRARBH—HMNBRABETFFERBRE -

Nil

The exercise price is determined by the board of Directors and shall at least be
the highest of:
TEEREFRSET  THRERUTZESE

the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of the relevant

options;
RREEAERESEARAROMONRBIMSERER 2K
Ef

the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the relevant options;
REEEHEHAEREEEINAEEEB AR AIRNDRE TG
HWmEXRZ FHWRHE:

the net asset value per share as determined in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and with reference to the latest
published audited financial statements in the annual report or the latest
published unaudited accounts in the interim report (whichever is more
recent) of the Group on the date of offer of the relevant options; and
RIBHERBEREZH RREBVBRELNFAELZ2ELRE
BT EZFRALEZVYBRRASIATNE 2P RS
NAKEZEE UBOHRERE)METEREEFE &

the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

AT R EAE -



Report of the Directors (continued)

9.  The remaining life of the Scheme
ZET A FIsR R

MHAR-TT=

¥HTTFABELKIL-

FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar and US dollar. However,
the Group has not experienced any significant foreign exchange
movement and the Directors do not anticipate any significant foreign
exchange loss as a result of changes in exchange rate between Hong Kong
dollar, US dollar and Renminbi in the foreseeable future.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2010, the Group, excluding its associates and jointly
controlled entity, employed a total of 7,239 (as at 31st December 2009:
6,816) staff, the majority of which were employed in the Mainland China.
Employees’ costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$445
million (2009: HK$401 million) for the year ended 31st December 2010.

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive
scheme is to link total compensation of executive Directors, senior
management and employees with the achievement of the Group’s annual
and long-term corporate goals and objectives. Remuneration package is
performance-based and takes into account business performance, market
practice and competitive market conditions in order to attract, motivate
and retain talent. The remuneration package of executive Directors and
senior management comprises salaries, bonuses, discretionary bonus and
other benefits-in-kind.

The Scheme was adopted on 4th November 2002 and will expire at 5:00 p.m.
on the business day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof.
F+—ROBHRM ZEREATEFAZ E—E%
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Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly represent
their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee
meetings. The recommended remuneration package of the independent
non-executive Directors comprises annual director's fee and fee for
representation on board committees.

The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year is set out in
Note 31 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Directors’ and senior management’'s emoluments
disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance and
Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION AND SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2010, the Company repurchased
25,462,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, details of which are as follows:

FERTEEZHFMO AT RN RRKE
REFErREMZESGEMTHE D
REBABR - BRRAZBUIFNTE
EFMEAERFEESRENEFE
FZEeeEME-

AHBEE2REEZ2HFMHCERNUG
WRMFE3 -

RIE R FEPIE 16165 K& L AR BT 816
BRECEERSAEEEMEFHE AN
BTSSR M L3 -

CBERHEAXARFZ L

 E T —ZEFF+A=+—BLF
B AARBBEABERSIMBRAA
8% [0125,462,000 8 A R B R A& &R E A
0.10B T2k - BEFBNT :

Aggregate

Number of consideration

shares  Highest price Lowest price (excluding

Month of repurchase repurchased paid per share paid per share expenses)
ENER eNER BRE

BE A5 BE RGO HE EEE REE (FEEMX)
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

(&) (Bx) (A7)

February 2010 25,462,000 11.00 10.18 269,402,280

—EF-LTF-RA

The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of the repurchased shares which had been cancelled. The premium
paid for the repurchase of the shares and related expenses totaling
HK$267,752,000 were charged to the reserves.

RAARBETRACHATERE T HK
MZEEMER LEERMNI N2 EE
N 48 B8 & $£267,752,0008 T E 5T A
& -
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The repurchase of shares was effected by the Directors pursuant to the
general mandate approved by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 16th June 2009, with a view to
benefiting shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value per
share and earnings per share of the Group.

On 2nd February 2010, the Company redeemed the full amount of its US$
settled zero coupon convertible bonds due 2010 in the principal amount
of RMB1,830,400,000 at an aggregate price of US$280,418,000.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2010.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 107 to 117 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(@  On 21st January 2011, the Company issued 11.75% senior notes
with an aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,340,000,000). The senior notes mature in five
years (January 2016) and are repayable at their nominal value of
US$300,000,000. The Company will be entitled at its option to
redeem all or a portion of the senior notes on or after 21st January
2014 at the redemption prices, plus accrued and unpaid interests to
the relevant redemption date.
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(b) On 22nd February 2011, the Company’s acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Sun Excel from Farrich and the terms of the
Share Purchase Agreement (as varied and amended by the
Supplemental Agreement) relating to the acquisition of the project
located in Majugiao Town of Tongzhou District in Beijing for a
consideration of RMB6,605,066,000, which constituted a major and
connected transaction of the Company was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting of the Company.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor for the ensuing year is
to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of Directors

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31st March 2011
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective corporate governance will continue to
improve transparency, risk controls and ultimately enhance shareholders’
value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year 2010, except
that the non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for
specific terms as they are all subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by shareholders at the annual general meeting at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company which in the
opinion of the Board meets the objective of the Code and the Chairman
of the Board did not attend the annual general meeting for year 2010 due
to other business commitment.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions during the year under review. Upon enquiry by the Company,
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31st
December 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six executive and three independent non-
executive directors, whose biographical details are set out in the Directors’
Profile section on pages 70 to 73 which demonstrate a balance of core
competence having regard to the business of the Group. Pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-laws, all directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
their re-election is subject to a vote of shareholders at the annual general
meeting. The Board believes that the independent non-executive directors,
with diversified backgrounds and industry skills, shall offer experience,
independent judgement advice on issues relating to strategy, performance,
conflict of interest and the overall management of the Company such that
the interests of all shareholders are considered and safeguarded.
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The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control of
the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Group and its business by directing and supervising the Group's affairs.
The Board oversees the Group's strategic development and determines the
objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The Board also monitors
and controls operating and financial performance in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. The Board members have access to timely information
in relation to the Group’s business and make further enquires when
necessary. The Directors may seek independent professional advice on
issues relating to the Group’s business at the Group’s expenses. The
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
actions against its directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. There was no such relationship as
between Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Xue
Hu, the Chief Executive Officer who succeeded Mr. Chen Chang Ying as
the Chief Executive Officer on 22nd March 2010. Mr. Chen resigned from
the Board on 21st January 2010.

All independent non-executive directors have offered sufficient time and
efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company and possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related
management experience and have contributed to the Board with their
professional opinion.

Of the three independent non-executive directors at least one has
appropriate financial management expertise in compliance with the Listing
Rules. Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence, and the Board considers these
directors to be independent under the guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Four Board committees, namely the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee, the Option Shares Committee and the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee have been established
to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The Board has
delegated the execution and daily operations of the Group’s business to
the management. However, clear directions are given to the management
as to the matters that must be approved by the Board before decisions are
made on behalf of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met 10 times during year 2010 under review at which the
directors considered and approved significant matters including, among
other things, interim and final results of the Group, statutory financial
reports, change in Board members as well as acquisition of land sites and
investments.

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors were as follows:

Meetings attended

Executive Directors

Chu Mang Yee 2/10
Xiang Bin 3/10
Au Wai Kin 7/10
Xue Hu 7/10
Zhao Ming Feng 6/10
Liao Ruo Qing? 4/9
Chen Chang Ying™ 0/0
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Lee Tsung Hei, David 7/10
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver 8/10
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron® 4/5
Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip® 2/4

Notes:

1. Mr. Chen Chang Ying resigned on 21st January 2010.

2. Mr. Liao Ruo Qing was appointed as an executive director on 21st January 2010.

3. Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip resigned on 2nd July 2010.

4. Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron was appointed as an independent non-executive director

on 2nd July 2010.

19 additional Board meetings were held during year 2010 for the purposes
of approving some operational matters such as approval of the provision
of guarantees by the Company in respect of bank loans granted to the
Company’s subsidiaries, change of Bermuda Share Registrar and Transfer
Agent, the entry into various transactions some of which constituted
discloseable transactions and one of which constituted major and
connected transaction of the Company under Chapters 14 and 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Board meetings attended by each of the Directors were as follows:

Meetings attended

Executive Directors

Chu Mang Yee 15/19
Xiang Bin 4/19
Au Wai Kin 12/19
Xue Hu 19/19
Zhao Ming Feng 17/19
Liao Ruo Qing 9/16
Chen Chang Ying 0/3
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lee Tsung Hei, David 2/19
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver 3/19
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron 3/11
Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip 0/8

One meeting of a board committee was held during the year 2010 for the
purpose of approving certain matters relating to share repurchase by the
Company. The said Meeting was attended by two executive directors,
namely Mr. Au Wai Kin and Mr. Xue Hu. In addition, during the year
2010, the board committee which comprised two executive directors,
namely Mr. Au Wai Kin and Mr. Xue Hu passed a written resolution for
the purpose of approving certain documents for disclosure in the
Company's circular.

Between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company
provides the directors with information on a timely basis regarding the
activities and developments in the businesses of the Group and meets with
the independent non-executive directors to seek their views on the
business and operational matters of the Group.

The company secretary keeps detailed minutes of each meeting which are
available for inspection by all directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The three independent non-executive directors are not appointed for a
specific term. This constitutes a deviation from Code provision A.4.1 with
respect to the appointment of non-executive directors for a specific term
subject to re-election. However, all directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, this meets the objective of the
Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Chu Mang Yee. The Chief Executive
Officer of the Company is Mr. Xue Hu. Mr. Xue was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 22nd March 2010 to succeed
Mr. Chen Chang Ying who resigned from the Board on 21st January
2010.

The role of the Chairman was segregated from that of the Chief Executive
Officer during year 2010.

The Chairman is responsible for managing and providing leadership to the
Board in terms of formulating overall strategies, business directions and
policies of the Company. The Chairman is also responsible for overseeing
effective functions of the Board, application of good corporate governance
practices and procedures, and encourages the directors to make full and
active contribution to the affairs of the Board. With the support of the
executive directors and the company secretary, the Chairman seeks to
ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive complete and reliable information in a timely
manner.

The Chief Executive Officer is directly responsible for the day-to-day
management of the business of the Company, co-ordinating overall
business operations and maintaining the operational performance of the
Company. With the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, he ensures
that the funding requirements of the business are met and closely
monitors the operating and financial results against plans and budgets,
taking remedial action when necessary and advising the Board of any
significant developments and issues.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
assisting the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and retaining
directors and senior management of the highest caliber and experience
needed to develop the Group’s business successfully. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
directors and senior management of the Company and for determining
their remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and has specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities and are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

o formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

o establishing guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief Executive
Officer and senior management;

o recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors (including non-executive directors and the
Chief Executive Officer) and senior management;

. determination of the remuneration of executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind and compensation
payments;

o review and approval of the compensation arrangements in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to executive
directors and senior management;

o determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance;
and

o consideration of the annual performance bonus for executive
directors, senior management and general staff and making
recommendation to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

One meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee during 2010 to
approve the remuneration of an executive director. The meeting was
attended by all members of the Remuneration Committee. In addition to
the aforesaid meeting, during 2010, the Remuneration Committee also
approved, by way of written resolutions, the remuneration of the executive
directors and the independent non-executive directors.

No director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
Remuneration of the independent non-executive directors was approved
by the shareholders of the Company at the 2009 annual general meeting.

Note:

Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip resigned on 2nd July 2010. Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David was appointed
and succeeded Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee on
2nd July 2010.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Group does not have a Nomination Committee. New directors, being
individuals who are suitably qualified and expected to make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board having regard to the balance
of skills and experience appropriate to the Company’s business, are
identified by existing directors and submitted to the Board for approval. A
director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election by shareholders at
the first annual general meeting after this appointment.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees payable to the Company’s auditor for audit and
audit related services amounted to HK$5,280,000 (2009: HK$5,000,000)
and no fee (2009: nil) was paid for non-audit services.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
directors. It is chaired by Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David. The Board is of the
opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to discharge
their duties. However, the Audit Committee is authorised to obtain outside
legal or other independent professional advice if it considers necessary.
The Audit Committee has written terms of reference which are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Audit Committee
include:

o to make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of external auditor and to consider the terms of such
appointments;

o to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

o to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and
interim reports and the auditor’'s report to ensure that the
information presents a true and balanced assessment of the Group's
financial position;

o to ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an
effective internal control system;

o to review internal audit programme and to ensure that it is allocated
with adequate resources and is effective; and

o to review the external auditor’'s management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response.

In year 2010, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an assessment
of the Group’s internal control systems, business management and
preventions against fraud and other irregularities. With respect to the
results of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2010, the Audit
Committee reviewed with the senior management and the external
auditor of the Company, their respective audit findings, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal control, risk
management and financial reporting matters. This review by the Audit
Committee included an appraisal of the integrity of the financial
statements and the annual report of the Company. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the external auditor's remuneration. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment or resignation of external auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued) 1% E 8% (18

The Audit Committee reports its work, findings and recommendations to
the Board after each meeting. During the year 2010, there were two Audit
Committee meetings. Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Wong Shing Kay,
Oliver recorded full attendance in respect of such meetings while Mr.
Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip attended one meeting.

Note:

Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip resigned on 2nd July 2010. Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David was appointed
and succeeded Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip as the chairman of the Audit Committee on 2nd July
2010.

BOARD COMMITTEES

In addition to the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee,
two other Board Committees have been established to assist the Board in
the execution of its duties.

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee

The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee
was established on 4th October 2005 and presently comprises the
three independent non-executive directors, and chaired by Mr. Lee
Tsung Hei, David. The primary function of the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee is to review all
connected transactions and related party transactions to ensure that
they are conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group and to recommend to the
Board corrective measures in such transactions if needed.

(2) Option Shares Committee

The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th November
2005 and comprises two executive directors. Its primary function is
to deal with the allotment and issue of shares of the Company upon
the exercise of options granted or to be granted under the
Company's share option scheme adopted on 4th November 2002.

Note:

Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip resigned on 2nd July 2010. Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David was appointed
and succeeded Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip as the chairman of the Connected Transactions/Related
Party Transactions Committee on 2nd July 2010.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced assessment of
the Group’s performance, position and prospects. It is also responsible for
preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Group’s
financial position on a going-concern basis and other price-sensitive
announcements and financial disclosures. The management provides the
Board with the relevant information it needs to discharge these
responsibilities.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2010, the directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and have made judgement and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits as laid down in the Listing Rules.

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interests. The directors confirm that the Group, through its Internal
Control Department, performs regular checks on office procedures,
practices and systems to safeguard assets from inappropriate use,
maintains proper accounts and ensures compliance with regulations. The
regular reviews also cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group. The Internal Control Department reports directly to the Group
Supervisory Committee which in turn reports independently to the Board.
The Internal Control Department is independent of all management
functions of the Group and has direct and independent access to the
Board. Summaries of major audit findings and control weaknesses, if any,
are reviewed by the Audit Committee.

In year 2010, no frauds and irregularities, internal control deficiencies or
infringement of laws, rules and regulations have come to the attention of
the Audit Committee to cause it to believe that the system of internal
controls is inadequate. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the
system of internal control of the Group.

Circulars or guidance notes were issued to directors where appropriate to
ensure that they are aware of their continuing obligations as directors and
corporate governance matters.
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations and
communications with its investors. Communication have been maintained
with the media, analysts and fund managers through meetings.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments.

The Company provides detailed press releases and reports to its
shareholders on the Group’s business and financial positions with timely
annual report and interim report, to ensure that they are effectively
informed of the Group’s status and developments. General presentations
are made immediately after the announcement of financial results. The
website of the Group is also updated regularly to keep investors and the
general public informed of the latest development of the Group.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the directors to meet and
communicate with shareholders, providing a forum for the shareholders’
views to be communicated to the Board. Both directors and senior
management make an effort to attend. External auditors are also available
at the annual general meetings to address shareholders’ queries. Separate
resolutions are proposed for each issue considered at the annual general
meetings. The 2010 annual general meeting circular was distributed to all
shareholders not less than 20 clear business days prior to the annual
general meeting, setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting
procedures and other relevant information. The procedures for conducting
a poll were explained by the chairman presiding at the annual general
meeting at the beginning of the meeting.
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Report of the Independent Auditor

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORKESTMERHR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the "Group”) set out on pages 120 to 249, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st December 2010, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated cash flow statement and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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Report of the Independent Auditor (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
December 2010, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31st March 2011
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Balance Sheets

BEBER

— g4

Asat 31st December 2010 R -ZFE—FF+ _—H=+—H
Consolidated Company
RE A FE
As at
As at 31st December 1st January As at 31st December
W+t=A=+—-H R—A—H Rt+t=A=+-8
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
=L 2N —TTNF —TTNF ERRR A —TTAF
Restated Restated
HEpl Tl
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
i FTER THET THET FEx FHET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Land costs =+ 3t Y AR 6 622,193 329,440 749,663 — —
Prepayments for W g T Ta I FRIE
acquisition of land 19 209,795 266,962 2,436,630 — —
Properties and equipment MR E 7 3,199,845 3,175,029 2,405,623 — —
Investment properties BEME 15,405,498 8,378,105 2,856,094 — —
Properties under development  #{E & HI1R & ~
for long-term investment BRPYE — — 125,856 — —
Intangible assets BREE 11 124,837 120,660 120,455 — —
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRZZE 12 - — — 15,228,037 14,665,885
Investments in associates REERRZEE 13 43,433 40,925 42,201 — —
Investment in a jointly R — R
controlled entity ERIRE 14 1,512,923 1,188,692 801,240 — —
Available-for-sale AEEENBEE
financial assets 16 3,316,388 2,671,719 476,250 — —
Deposit for proposed BERERE KRS
investment 17 560,210 — — — —
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 25 167,541 191,287 173,378 — —
25,162,663 16,362,819 10,187,390 15,228,037 14,665,885
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments for W B8 + 3t 78 < 5018
acquisition of land 19 18,053,335 7,363,482 6,142,999 — —
Properties under AHEEZ
development for sale BREBYE 9 31,967,756 30,556,607 30,544,173 — —
Completed properties for sale  AJ#t & 2 B &R % 10 10,487,033 7,835,600 7,336,763 — —
Financial assets at fair value BRATEEBRER
through profit or loss SRR E) B 75 & B 18 11,693 11,083 11,655 — —
Accounts receivable & 5 BR 3K 20 171,953 146,895 72,577 - —
Prepayments, deposits and BRNRE -Re Rk
other current assets HEtng i E 19 2,565,026 1,620,126 1,528,568 290 224
Due from an associate W —MBA AR ZHE 41 30,382 29,365 26,538 — —
Due from related companies JEURRRE A A 2 FIE 41 13,644 13,664 6,979 — —
Loans to subsidiaries MBARIZER 12 — — — 218,274 217,638
Pledged/charged bank deposits & & /# 2 iR 177 X 21 123,671 168,479 271,450 — —
Cash and cash equivalents BENRIRESEEBY 21 2,573,604 6,546,144 2,142,696 20,449 21,303
65,998,097 54,291,445 48,084,398 239,013 239,165
Total assets MEE 91,160,760 70,654,264 58,271,788 15,467,050 14,905,050
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EERER

As at 31st December 2010 R —-ZE—ZF+_-_H=+—H
Consolidated Company
e D
As at
As at 31st December 1st January As at 31st December
W+=A=+-H” W—A—H Rt+t=A=+—-H

2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
b S Ll —TTAFE —TTNF bRl —TTHF
Restated Restated
Kl Tl
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FTER FET FET TERT FET

EQUITY s
Capital and reserves ERARREREA
attributable to the EERARFEE
Company’s equity holders
Share capital % 7K 27 175,237 159,237 147,237 175,237 159,237
Reserves 1 28 38,011,918 28,034,506 20,032,657 12,538,507 9,845,968
38,187,155 28,193,743 20,179,894 12,713,744 10,005,205
Non-controlling interests FEPR G 2,805,944 2,305,733 2,384,179 — =
Total equity ERAHE 40,993,099 30,499,476 22,564,073 12,713,744 10,005,205
© UABILTIES a®
Non-current liabilities *rBERE
Land cost payable JE £ £ #b B AR 22 111,178 271,028 106,173 - —
Borrowings =g 24 20,047,524 10,116,598 12,330,211 2,697,576 2,676,697
Due to minority shareholders KB AR D E
of subsidiaries IR R 2 78 41 432,323 419,411 49,983 — —
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAR 25 5,551,128 4,502,743 3,890,102 — —
26,142,153 15,309,780 16,376,469 2,697,576 2,676,697
© Current liabilities | wBE®
Accounts payable JE& T BR 3R 23 5,645,612 2,941,424 2,933,721 — —
Land cost payable JE < 3 K 2K 22 264,271 302,418 323,696 - —
Borrowings BE 24 3,671,919 6,232,260 4,262,798 — 2,169,685
Deferred revenue EEWA 5,544,615 7,260,538 4,458,379 — —
Accruals and other payables R RIBEREM
JE 1 RIE 2,196,200 1,728,752 2,249,864 37,947 37,146
Due to an associate A ) =N
I 41 6,486 6,269 6,258 — —
Due to related companies ERBEARZHKIEB 41 344,057 173,721 174,920 — —
Due to a jointly controlled entity & < — 5 £ [ #22 41
BREZHIE 41 1,709,345 1,842,289 759,380 — —
Current tax liabilities AEFEA & 26 4,643,003 4,357,337 4,162,230 17,783 16,317
24,025,508 24,845,008 19,331,246 55,730 2,223,148
Total liabilities BEEE 50,167,661 40,154,788 35,707,715 2,753,306 4,899,845
Total equity and liabilities EEREELE 91,160,760 70,654,264 58,271,788 15,467,050 14,905,050 W
h&,
Net current assets/(liabilities) FEEE (BE&) FE 41,972,589 29,446,437 28,753,152 183,283 (1,983,983) By
|
Total assets less HEERRBEE ke
current liabilities 67,135,252 45,809,256 38,940,542 15,411,320 12,681,902 |
T
2
CHU MANG YEE XUE HU .];_i
= T
REAK BE e
Director Director e
EE #E -
. ) . o . £yl
The notes on pages 128 to 249 are an integral part of these financial FI128FE20B v MF AT BHREES «

statements. — B °
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Consolidated Income Statement

mERER

For the year ended 31st December 2010 # 2 —E—ZFF+ _H=+—HIFFZ
2010 2009
—E—=F —EENF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E THE T FET
Revenues g &= 5 14,379,253 11,225,246
Cost of sales S5 & A AR 30 (8,692,021) (6,557,985)
Gross profit E F 5,687,232 4,667,261
Fair value gains on investment properties 1% & 4 2 2~ T E W 25 3,795,624 4,700,097
Other income/gains, net Hildg AU zs - %58 29 1,124,053 734,033
Selling and marketing costs 5 &= N T % HEE AR N 30 (410,225) (378,757)
General and administrative expenses — R R{TERE A 30 (1,117,712) (995,041)
Operating profit REHA 9,078,972 8,727,593
Finance income R TN 32 17,039 13,551
Finance costs B 75 A 2N 32 (253,307) (333,639)
Share of profit less loss of associates oG A Al MR B 18 13 1,071 (1,346)
Share of (loss)/profit of Sfh—E A RE S E 8
a jointly controlled entity (B518), & 7 14 (666) 385,759
Profit before taxation % 1 B a1 8,843,109 8,791,918
Taxation Fi 18 33 (2,550,097) (2,699,383)
Profit for the year FERF 6,293,012 6,092,535
Attributable to: P&
Equity holders of the Company NN IEEEE A 34 5,889,412 5,799,573
Non-controlling interests FEVE ) 1 2= 403,600 292,962
6,293,012 6,092,535
Earnings per share for profit REREQATREZEEA
attributable to equity holders EBEEftEz8R
of the Company during the year ER(BRETR)
(in HK$ per share)
— basic —EK 35 3.43 3.77
— diluted — 35 3.42 3.69
Dividends % & 36 300,531 146,498

The notes on pages 128 to 249 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FEEZEHBARE

For the year ended 31st December 2010 &% —E—FF+ -_H=+—HItFZ
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHET FA T
Profit for the year FERF 6,293,012 6,092,535
Other comprehensive income Httz2mEmWA
Fair value gain on AHEENBEE L
available-for-sale financial assets N E W 2 542,775 1,082,325
Assets revaluation reserve realised upon HERIEHEDMER
disposal of properties held for sales BN EEEMEE 28 (86,447) (282,222)
Deferred tax IR T Fi 18 24,880 47,106
Currency translation differences BHEE X ERE 1,302,553 92,369
Other comprehensive income FEHMEZEmBA -
for the year, net of tax HKRBHEE 1,783,761 939,578
Total comprehensive income FEXEKRALE
for the year 8,076,773 7,032,113
Total comprehensive income THALTELREZR
attributable to: ON-E-
Equity holders of the Company ARAIIEERE A 7,586,266 6,735,283
Non-controlling interests JE 50 ) M ARE S 490,507 296,830

8,076,773 7,032,113

- ZE-TEFR

The notes on pages 128 to 249 are an integral part of these financial F128F20B MR BHRERASD
statements. — & fn o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MEEERER

For the year ended 31st December 2010 #; %

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt & FTER FAT
Cash flows from operating activities RETE2EHERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations KL (A, EExzRE  37a) (6,193,801) 6,251,936
Interest received =& NS 17,039 13,551
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded (BR)/ REBE
MG (15,028) 2,678
Mainland China corporate SRR ETPN S
income tax paid st (1,220,350) (1,301,248)
Mainland China land B AT R B K BE £ 3
appreciation tax paid 1% (8 F (256,876) (186,234)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities &L &EE (FFA) E4 2
e (7.669,016) 4,780,683
Cash flows from investing activities REFZBHz2RERE
Additions of land costs B8 A bk A (282,056) =
Additions of properties and equipment N NS (71,347) (856,999)
Proceeds from disposal of certain HE—FWBRARSET
equity interest in a subsidiary % 7N 4 25 BT 15 3018 — 5,561
Deposit for proposed investment EEREZES (550,678) —
Dividend income NI PN 15,292 31,313
Additions of an available-for-sale BAHEENBEE
financial asset — (1,112,197)
Additions of properties under BABERBREZ
development for long-term BRTYE
investment — (24,357)
Additions of investment properties BAKREME (471,920) (342,555)
(Increase)/decrease in deposit paid B i< (4 m), e (175,589) 44,261
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARFAEHRE 37(b) — 212,837
Capital injection to a jointly ) — £ R4 )
controlled entity ERIE (278,925) =
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments W+t iERBIRE 2
for acquisition of land for long-term TEfR RIER D
investment (3 ) 64,843 (266,891)
Increase in amounts due from JE Wit B 38 N ] RRIE
related companies 3 0 — (8,163)
Decrease/(Increase) in pledged/charged B R IBITER
bank deposits A, (35 hn) 49,779 (7,293)
Net cash used in investing activities KREEBMAZ
INEET (1,700,601) (2,324,483)



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Contlnued) wmEe

For the year ended 31st December 2010 &,

125

2010 2009
—E—-ZF ZEThF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FER T
Cash flows from financing activities AMEITEHCEERE
New short-term bank loans Mg ERITE R 2,019,084 124,838
Repayments of short-term bank loans BEREEHRITER (4,228,791) (736,608)
New long-term bank loans i EERTE R 12,786,036 6,411,204
Repayments of long-term bank loans EERBARITER (1,610,374) (5,376,865)
Redemption of convertible bonds EE ] BmRES (2,211,510) —
Repayments to an associate B2 —FHEEQFN — (2,779)
Advance from a minority shareholder — ALV EREBARK — 155,600
(Repayment)/advances from —E R e (193,378) 1,080,695
a jointly controlled entity (BE#BR), " BK
Advances from related companies BAE RN Al B R 162,011 —
Interest paid EATFE (1,250,864) (993,077)
Net proceeds from share placements BATIRD 2 F P18 58 — 1,579,663
Capital contributions by non-controlling FEFESI RS A 16,635 —
interests
Repurchase of own shares BB Bl A & Bt (270,298) —
Dividends paid to a minority shareholder REF—ZLHBREZ — (1,722)
i 2
Dividends paid to Company's K B F AN R) AR i — (301,097)
equity holders REAZKRE
Net cash from financing activities MEEIELZ 5,218,551 1,939,852
ReFHE
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%f’%i (4,151,066) 4,396,052
cash equivalents WD), E R
Cash and cash equivalents W—HA—Bz2 6,546,144 2,142,696
at 1st January ReMBESEEY
Exchange gain on cash and RekREEEBEYWZ 178,526 7,396
cash equivalents M 5 Y 2
Cash and cash equivalents Nt+—_A=+—82 2,573,604 6,546,144
at 31st December ReEMREEEDY b
¢
iy
o
I
B
«
=
T
i
The notes on pages 128 to 249 are an integral part of these financial ~ £ 128EF249B v M RUL M MK A F o
statements. — &b o \t
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company
RRRIREREE AR

Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
FE 28 il 14
N @ & #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FTAET TAT
Balance at 1st January 2009 RZEZENF
—A—HZ &% 147,237 20,032,657 2,384,179 22,564,073
Profit for the year F E % A — 5,799,573 292,962 6,092,535
Other comprehensive income: Ef2mUkA :
Fair value gain on AIHHERBEE L
available-for-sale NFE W =
financial assets — 1,082,325 — 1,082,325
Assets revaluation reserve HERIELHEMER
realised upon disposal of BN BEEEM
properties held for sale f# & (P9 52 28)
(Note 28) — (282,222) — (282,222)
Deferred tax EEF IR = 47,106 — 47,106
Currency translation HHEEH Z5
differences — 88,501 3,868 92,369
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEBA -
for the year, net of tax Mk IR — 935,710 3,868 939,578
Total comprehensive income FEZERARE
for the year — 6,735,283 296,830 7,032,113
- Proceeds from issue of shares,  Z£17IX1D 2 Fr 18 30 7E -
§ net of share issue expenses MR EITRAY
E — Placements —BE 12,000 1,567,663 — 1,579,663
§ Disposal of certain equity HE— W E AR E]
© interest in a subsidiary = TR = = 5,697 5,697
E Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB QA — = (379,251) (379,251)
. Dividends paid BT & = (301,097) (1,722) (302,819)
12,000 1,266,566 (375,276) 903,290
Balance at 31st December 2000 R-_ZEZEHF+ = A
=T —RZH#&ER 159,237 28,034,506 2,305,733 30,499,476

Hopson Development Holdings Limited




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) #R& = E B & (1)
For the year ended 31st December 2010 #Z —E—FF+ - =4+ —HIFFZ

Attributable to equity

holders of the Company

AATRESEAEMN
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
Ik 42 il 4
(S e R BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
Balance at 1st January 2010 R-ZZE—FF
—A—BZ&E% 159,237 28,034,506 2,305,733 30,499,476
Profit for the year FEER A — 5,889,412 403,600 6,293,012
Other comprehensive income: Ef2mkA :
Fair value gain on AHEENBEE

available-for-sale NFERE

financial assets — 542,775 — 542,775
Assets revaluation reserve HERIELHEYWER

realised upon disposal of WMo BESR

properties held for sale f# (P 5 28)

(Note 28) — (86,447) — (86,447)
Deferred tax EIEFLIE — 24,880 — 24,880
Currency translation EHEEN Z5E

differences — 1,215,646 86,907 1,302,553

Other comprehensive income FEHMEEEA -
for the year, net of tax MR IE — 1,696,854 86,907 1,783,761
Total comprehensive income FEEEBAEE
for the year — 7,586,266 490,507 8,076,773
Proceeds from issue of shares,  Z&77 P& {D 2 Fr 13 58
net of share issue expenses B H TR
— Placements — e 18,546 2,692,900 — 2,711,446
Repurchase of own shares B[O K & iR 5 (2,546) (267,752) — (270,298)
Acquisition of additional equity ¥ — 2 U B —
interests of a subsidiary B BB A 7 By AR — (34,002) (6,931) (40,933)
Capital contribution by FEHEHI RS A
non-controlling interests — — 16,635 16,635
16,000 2,391,146 9,704 2,416,850
Balance at 31st December 2010 RN—-ZE—ZF+ - f
=t+—Hz#&# 175,237 38,011,918 2,805,944 40,993,099

The notes on pages 128 to 249 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the
development of residential properties in Mainland China. The Group
is also involved in property investment, hotel operations and
property management.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 31st March 2011.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the two years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Change in accounting policy

During the year, the Group changed its accounting
policy for land held for development for sale.

Land held for development for sale meet the definition
of both inventories under HKAS 2 “Inventories” and
leasehold land under HKAS 17 “Leases”.

Previously, land held for development for sale were
classified as prepaid operating lease and payments were
amortised on a straight line basis over the period of the
lease in accordance with HKAS 17. During the period of
time that is required to develop the properties for its
intended use, the land amortisation was capitalised as
part of the costs of the properties under development. In
all other periods, the land amortisation was charged to

the income statement.

Subsequent to the change in accounting policy, land
relating to property held for development for sale are
classified as inventories in accordance with HKAS 2 and
measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Management believes that the new classification of land
held for development for sale as inventories results in a
more relevant presentation of the financial position of
the Group, and of its performance for the year. The
revised treatment reflects the management’s intention
on the use of the land and results in a presentation
consistent with the industry practice.

2 FTEETBREE

(a)
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g}
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EHBEZRE
AEBEEFAERHESR
BERERELEREN T
B & 5 BUR

FEZRRIFLHERED
T A EFE G ER
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[AEJETWHEE LR
EE e

A HEZRRIFLER
BT D BEREN
REEE - MR IER
RiEEE G ERFE17
TRESKENEEHRA
B -ERTERERER
ERE2MEZHRA
THEHEBEAN R
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BEANERETARRE
BEACA LI @A
BR - RAEZ25 A ETT
EEH -

129

TEFR

—E—T
. =B

BEAREERRAR



130

- Annual Report 2010

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Change in accounting policy (Continued)

The change in accounting policy has no material impact
on the retained earnings as at 1st January 2009 and 31st
December 2009, and the profit for the current and prior
years. Land costs relating to properties developed for
sale were reclassified to properties under development
for sale and completed properties for sale in the
consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 1st
January 2009 and 31st December 2009 as follows:

As at 1st January 2009

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #r& BF 753 ki &E (48)

2 FESTHEBRE

21 RBEE )

(@) TEIHEZZEH)
B REZEREEHR =
ZEENLF-—A—B K=
EERNF+_A=+—
BZ2REBRBFUKAKF
EEBETFENRFIL
MEREATE HER
ERERB 2 MEEH
MEIHRAEEERAEER
RZEZENF—A—H
FZZETAE+ZZARA=
+T—HHEEEBRRE
xRN EFoBATMHEE
EZBERPYERAH
HEZEEXMENT :

R-ZZRF—-—A—H

As previously Reclassified
reported  Re-classification balance
BEZ7 EFOR DR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FABT THETT TR
Current assets REBEE
Land costs THIRC AR 24,163,460 (24,163,460) —
Properties under AftHEZERR
development for sale LES 8,910,522 21,633,651 30,544,173
Completed properties AHEHEZEEK
for sale /S 4,806,954 2,529,809 7,336,763
As at 31st December 2009 R=ZBBAE+=A=+—-H
As previously Reclassified
reported Re-classification balance
BAEZ5 ENSE DEERRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHExT THET
Current assets RBEE
Land costs 1) %N 24,580,807 (24,580,807) —
Properties under A EZERES
development for sale LS 9,611,470 20,945,137 30,556,607
Completed properties AHEHEZEEK
for sale /S 4,199,930 3,635,670 7,835,600




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The adoption of new/revised HKFRS

In 2010, the Group adopted the following new
standards, amendments and interpretations of HKFRS,
which are effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1st January 2010 and relevant to the Group's

operations.

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HK-Int 5 Presentation of

Financial Statements

— Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

2.1 REEE (@)
(b) ERMFEHEANEET &

vt %5 R B = (49)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) % & B %R & M 5% (48)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRS published in May
2009

HKAS 1 Amendment Presentation of Financial
Statements
HKAS 7 Amendment Statement of Cash Flows

HKAS 17 Amendment  Leases

HKAS 18 Amendment  Revenue

HKAS 36 Amendment  Impairment of Assets
HKAS 38 Amendment  Intangible Assets

HKFRS 5 Amendment Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

HKFRS 8 Amendment  Operating Segments

The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption of
these new standards, amendments and interpretations
and considered that there was no significant impact on
the Group’s results and financial position nor any
substantial changes in the Group’s accounting policies
and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements, except for HKAS 27 (Revised) and HKFRS 3
(Revised) as set out below:

2.1 MEBEZE )
(b) PR 4EEET &

2 FESTHEBRE

Bt

BB EER ()
R-BENFEARM
TEBHBREEAF
EE

Ergies  HBERL
BIR(ETR) 23
gl RONER

E75 (BFIA)
BREL LR ME
F17% (BT A)
BB G AR g
£18%: (BT AK)
BREH R BERE
£365 (BF14)
BREH R EFEE
£38% (BT 4)
BRMBRE FIELE
ERIESH E ikl
CHES BERE
RibEe
#7%

BERBRE 2EDH
ERIE8H
CHEY)

AEEDRERARE
SATRR - B RBREY
pE ARALEYAE
B> B RO
REAFE  FmEEA
EEEHBRERES
e EEE N Y
B M T BB e sk
ER(BET) REB
Bt 75 45 25 2 B H 3% (&
EET) B4 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHEME W

(b) The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Continued)

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires the effects of all transactions
with non-controlling interests that do not result in the
change of control to be recorded as equity transactions
and these transactions will no longer result in goodwill
or gains and losses. When control is lost, any remaining
interest in the entity is remeasured to fair value, the
difference between its fair value and carrying amount is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The adoption of HKAS 27 (Revised) has resulted in the
difference between the consideration paid and the
relevant share of the carrying net asset value acquired
from the non-controlling interest of HK$34,002,000 to
be recorded in equity.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) continued to apply the acquisition
method to business combinations, with some significant
changes. For example, all acquisition-related costs should
be expensed. The cost of acquisition includes the fair
value at the acquisition date of any contingent purchase
consideration. In a business combination undertaken in
phases/stages, the previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured at fair value and the difference
between its fair value and carrying amount is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. There is a choice,
on the basis of each acquisition, to measure the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets.

(b) R AEERT &
BB HEER (8)

(== A

B GRTERE275 (&
& 5T) R 7E P A B2 IR 42
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BEHEEH 2P 2
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B - MAFERKEEZ
ZHRERABERERAA
HE o

S =l
7R(EIEFT)E B
2R E &8 IE =
HHEZKEMGEER
HMFEEBEMNECERE
34,002,000 7t © B AT &8
PR o

e

BB mEERFEIR
(RIETTBEHEB S
ERWES L YEET
EREF - Flan - A S
W BB K AE T
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ABERERKERS
ZAFE - HR DB E
TREBEHMS KAl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) does not result in any
impact on the Group's result in the current year nor the
financial position at the year end.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to
existing standards that are relevant but not yet

2 FESTHEMEW

(b) ERMAFEAENEET &
BRI &R (#8)
R E B Y% ®EEA
EELACECEIDE RS
REFZREEMFRZ
MBI ETMNZE -

EREMRERZER -
BREERNRERER

effective

New or revised standards, interpretations and amendments

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTBE#RHZ2E
FATRBET 2 ER RBREFT Mmzast BEER
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosure 1st January 2011
A ERIE 245 (BEFT) MEALT 2 RE —E——%—H—H
HKAS 32 Amendment Classification of Rights Issues 1st February 2010
BEGFEREI25 (BFTAR) Rz —EZ-ZTE_H—H

HKAS 12 Amendments Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 1st January 2012
BEGHEAFE 125 (EFTA) EERE - R EREEE —E——%—H—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1st January 2013
BEMBREERF IR eRIA —E-—=%—H—H
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendment Prepayment of a Minimum Funding Requirement  1st January 2011
EEBRYBREZREZER) RELZLERZBAMNEA —E——%—Hf—H
-BRBE14% (BT AX)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with 1st July 2010
Equity Instruments
ER (AR BREREZES) UBRTIAEHMKEE —E—FTEL H—H
-REE19%
HKFRSs Amendments Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 1st January 2011
BB B mEER (BT A) R -TERBUBRELER 2 BE —E——%—H—H

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new or revised standards,
interpretations and amendments, certain of which are
relevant to the Group’s operation and will give rise to
changes in accounting policies, disclosures or
measurement of certain items in the financial
statements. However, the Group is not yet in a position
to ascertain their impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

AEBECEREFHILS
el KT ER - 2
REFIHmR2TZE  EF
ETHRASBEZEBKA
B L ERAHSF K
RIELNE HKEFER
AEMBBRETER-
AT AN E R R BEREE
HHEAGEEEEXER
MBERRERZ T E -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up
to 31st December.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies,
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

2 FESTHEME W

HAMBmRREEARARE
EMBAREBET A=+
—BIUEMFBERE -

(@)

18 2 7]

B REASEA %
EREFBRELERRE
BB TR —RHHR
BEBEEENRE - &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

2 FESTHEMEW
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(@)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
considered as indicator of impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost together with advances by
the Company, which are neither planned nor likely to be
settled in the foreseeable future, less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests, the
difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

2 FESTHEME W
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

(©

(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition (see

Note 2.8).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

©

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the group’s
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Joint ventures

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture where the
Group and other parties undertake an economic activity
which is subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity. Investment in jointly controlled entity
is accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
whereby the investment is initially recorded at cost and
is adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results, distributions received, other
necessary alterations in the Group’s proportionate
interest in jointly controlled entity arising from changes
in equity of jointly controlled entity that have not been
included in the income statement of the jointly
controlled entity. The excess of cost of investment over
the Group’s share of the aggregate fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired at the date of acquisition
is tested annually for impairment, as well as when there
is indication of impairment, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The Group’s share of
post-acquisition results after taxation of jointly controlled
entities is included in the income statement.

2 FEEHBRBE@®

(d)

T
N—

S & IE
LRERERD —ES
EhE B AEEHE
HiAagHh2E—EE
EOEE) - Mz ELBEE
Th % H RS %ﬁ Vil
I 4% B8 E P 4 o M
I%aLZ&§E&%
EEEAR BRI %
HIR B s VR KA 8%
WREELANEEE
%ET%f%W%%&
FE KRB ERESE
m%ﬁ~lﬁ$ﬁk%“
KA ZHERESERBE
BB MELEZAEE
BT 46 3£ A 4% I & 88 # =
b B B E 4b 2R 2 1 A
B REKAEBBALRSE
B A h i B Ay Al
BRAEEFE2ZATE
BB 2ZHE9851LE
B YRR E R HET
BRI - R AR A B R
REREBEEIER A&
B AT 4G FE R 2 6 E e
WEEHREEED T A
BmEA-

= n>

k[]

m



141

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FTEETBREE

)
1\\

/

(d) Joint ventures (Continued) (d) &&1tEE

A joint venture which does not involve the establishment
of a separate entity but involves the joint control and
ownership by the Group and other parties of assets
contributed to, or acquired for the purpose of, the joint
venture is accounted for as a jointly controlled asset. The
Group’s share of jointly controlled assets and any
liabilities incurred jointly with other joint venture partners

LAY N B E AKX
YmpkaAREERRE
AL HEKEZES RESR
ZBEZEHEBEERRMX
BREERBUBCEE
T35 1E KA 2 5 & E A
fr- REBEEMLZHRE

are recognised and classified according to the nature of HIBEENEEMEEE
the relevant items. Income from the sale or use of the HEHBRBHHEEEE
Group's share of the output of jointly controlled assets is IR EEBEIN MY
recognised when it is probable that the economic FUERE B A&

benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group, whilst the Group’s share of expenses in respect
of jointly controlled assets is recognised as incurred.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with

RE
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ﬁﬁﬂﬁ?%?izw

T RBZEBEXZHEL
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R e
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the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision- ARBEZARIBLHFE B2 H
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible REFHF-BENEE 5)? &%EF fh

for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Executive
Directors who make strategic decisions.

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured in Renminbi, which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Company and its subsidiaries operate (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(©

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHEME W

(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the

(c) 5B LA )

MARBE  BRERIE

translation of the net investment in foreign operations, BrZREFBEREER
and of borrowings and other currency instruments EMETCEAEZERE
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to EHMEBTAEMES
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, ZIERXEZFE ARRE

exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Properties and equipment other than construction in progress
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of properties and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’'s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Construction in progress is investments in buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and which, upon
completion, management intends to hold for providing goods
or services in the ordinary course of business. These properties
are carried at cost which includes construction expenditures,
borrowing costs directly attributable to construction of such
properties and other direct costs, less any impairment losses.
On completion, the properties are transferred to the
appropriate categories of properties and equipment at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation is
provided for construction in progress until they are completed
and put into commercial use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHEME W

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property. Investment property also
includes property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held
under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted
for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs and borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are performed
annually by external independent valuers.

Fair value measurement on property under construction is only
applied if the fair value is considered to be reliably measurable.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar
basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognised as a
liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect of land
classified as investment property; others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values of investment property are recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as properties and equipment, and its fair value at
the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes.

If an item of properties and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and
taken directly to equity as a revaluation of properties and
equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
the income statement.

Investment property held for sale without redevelopment is
classified as non-current asset held for sale, under HKFRS 5.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale are included in current assets at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

The costs of properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale consist of land costs,
construction expenditures, amounts capitalised in respect of
borrowing costs directly attributable to construction of such
properties and other direct costs. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business as
determined by management with reference to the prevailing
market conditions, less further costs expected to be incurred
to completion and selling and marketing costs.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate/jointly controlled
entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on
acquisitions of associates and jointly controlled entities is
included in investments in associates and investment in a
jointly controlled entity respectively.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually for
impairment, as well as when there is indication of impairment,
and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Gooadwill (Continued)

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose identified according to operating segment.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

receivable and available-for-sale. The classification depends on

the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its financial

assets at initial recognition.

(@)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet
date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“other income/gains, net”, in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of “other income/gains, net” when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHEME W

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale debt securities calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “other income/gains, net”.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of
“other income/gains, net” when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and
option pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs
and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets in impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of accounts receivable is described in Note
2.11.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Accounts receivable are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of accounts receivable is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivable. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity
holders until the shares are cancelled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset or financial liability, including fees
and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers,
levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holders, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments which
contain both a liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is determined using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option as equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost, calculated using the effective interest method, until
extinguished on conversion or maturity. The equity component
is recognised in equity, net of any tax effects.

When the bond is converted, the relevant equity component
and the carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion are transferred to share capital and share
premium for the shares issued. When the bond is redeemed,
the relevant equity component is transferred to retained
earnings.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying
assets are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred.

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entity operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, if the deferred
income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHEME W

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

(@) Pension obligations

Group companies operate defined contribution plans
only. The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory or contractual basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options
is recognised as expenses. The total amount to be
expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable for the sale of properties and services in the

ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is recognised

as follows:

(@)

(b)

©

(@)

(e)

Sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of the properties are
transferred to the buyers, which is when the construction
of the relevant properties have been completed,
notification of delivery of properties have been issued to
the buyers and collectability of related receivables
pursuant to the sale agreements is reasonably assured.

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to transfer of the significant risks and rewards of
the properties are included as deferred revenue under
current liabilities.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the relevant leases.

Property management fees, property design
fees and marketing consultancy fees

Property management fees, property design fees and
marketing consultancy fees are recognised when the
services are rendered.

Hotel operations

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised upon
provision of services.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(")

©)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching with it and that the grant will
be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in
the income statement over the period necessary to
match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate. Grants relating to the purchase of
properties and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets. Amounts received
for which the earning process has not been completed
are accounted for as deferred revenue.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of

ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating

leases.

()

The Group is the lessee other than operating
lease of land use rights

Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor), are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHEME W

ZNE JL W R

(i) The Group Is the lessee under operating lease (ir)

of land use rights

BEEHE T 2 *&
HA

The Group made upfront payments to obtain operating AEBHREDNEREY =
leases of land use rights on which properties will be 2T FE R RER

developed.

For land use rights to be developed for investment
properties which are measured at fair values, the upfront
payments are included in the cost of investment
properties and accounted for as finance lease (Note 2.6).

For land use rights to be developed for hotel properties
and self-use buildings, the upfront payments are
separately recorded as assets and amortised over the
periods on a straight line basis. The amortisation during
the period of time that is required to develop the
properties for its intended use, the land amortisation is
capitalised as the cost of construction in progress. In
other periods, the land amortisation is charged to the
income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Operating leases (as the lessee) (continued)

(i) The Group is the lessee under operating lease
of land use rights (Continued)

For land use rights to be developed for properties for
sale, there is change in accounting policy during the
year. As described in Note 2.1(a), the land relating to
property held for development for sale are included as
properties under development for sale or completed
properties for sale which are measured at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

2.21 Insurance contracts

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect
of mortgage facilities provided to certain property purchasers
and guarantees provided to its joint ventures and subsidiaries
as insurance contracts.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the liabilities
under its insurance contracts using current estimates of future
cash flows. Changes in carrying amount of these insurance
liabilities are recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHEME W

A 7R 23 A B3R 99 I 9 BB AR
BEARRER/RR 4
HARE AR AN 58 [ 1O B 7 R A
JIRBE-

Dividend distribution to the Company’'s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s Directors/shareholders.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BKERER

REBZEBTHAXRZE
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow R IERRE  EER
and fair value interest-rate risk. The Group’'s overall risk - mehEcER LIRS T
NEENXER - NEERNHE
BRRBREEBRIFTNERHT
5 B9 A 8] TR - 37 0 KR
HAEBBMBRANEETH
TE - AEBTHERHEAR
R ER WRAZEB AL
78RR bk 55 B RS L B 1T
Ea

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effect on the
Group's financial performance. The Group regularly monitors
its exposure and currently considers not necessary to hedge
any of these financial risks.

(@) Foreign exchange risk (a) SME R fz

Foreign exchange risks as defined by HKFRS 7 arise on
account of monetary assets and liabilities being
denominated in a currency that is not the functional
currency; differences resulting from the translation of
financial statements into the Group’s presentation
currency are not taken into consideration.

Majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operates in
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Mainland China with most of the transactions HRBE R E - oA %
denominated in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to A T B A AR =t Eﬁw
foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of g o KEFEERST ZINE %‘<~‘
Renminbi against US dollar and Hong Kong dollar. It has BERE AREHZETR _
not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk. BT ZEXRS| B - K& \F
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of the
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Mainland
China government.

At 31st December 2010, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against US dollar with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$26.7 million (2009: HK$22.7
million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of USD

denominated senior notes and bank deposits.

At 31st December 2010, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against HK dollar with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$0.4 million (2009: HK$1.2 million)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HK dollar denominated
bank deposits.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
deposits with banks and credit exposures to customers.
The Group has credit policies in place and exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group manages its deposits with banks and financial
institutions by monitoring credit ratings. At 31st
December 2010, deposits with banks amounted to
HK$2,697 million (2009: HK$6,714 million) were placed
with a number of international/national/provincial/
municipal financial institutions with sound credit ratings.

In respect of credit exposures to customers, the Group
normally receives deposits or progress payments from
sales of residential properties to customers prior to the
completion of transactions. In addition, the Group
monitors the exposure to credit risk in respect of
amounts due from joint ventures through jointly
controlling their financial and operating policy decisions
and reviewing their financial positions on a regular basis.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of property units and provided guarantees to
secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments. If
a purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage
during the term of the guarantee, the bank holding the
mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount under the loan and any accrued
interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is
able to retain the property sales proceeds received from
the customers and sell the property to recover any
amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is minimal (see also Note 38).
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(©

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset (other than
equity securities included in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets) in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance, and guarantees provided to third
parties. The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts receivable is set out in Note 20.

Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and
closely monitors its current and expected liquidity
requirements to maintain its rolling cash flow at a level
which is considered adequate by the Group to finance
the Group’s operations and to maintain sufficient cash
to meet its business development requirements.
Management has periodically prepared cash flow
projections and the Group has a number of alternative
plans to offset the potential impact on the Group’s
should
there be circumstances that the anticipated cash flow

business development and current operation,

may be affected by any unexpected changes in global/
Mainland China economic conditions. The Company’s
Directors consider that the Group will be able to
maintain sufficient financial resources to meet its needs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEBREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 AR EZE®
Liquidity risk (Continued) © REBE=ZERE)
The table below analyses the Group’s and the TERBERNEREKNA
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity Rz aE  HRBRMAEH
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance FIEAAER - BIEHREEH
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The ZEE5 45 H B 2 F & H
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual MET O - RNFTIRE
undiscounted cash flows. ZEBEAAEKHMERMIIR
REME °
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
15/ 1824F 2ZE5F BiB5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT FHAT FHET
Group £
At 31st December 2010 RNR-—EBE—FF
+=-A=+—H
Borrowings (including interests) & & (&5 # &) 5,112,513 9,577,647 9,874,834 3,164,628
Accounts payable and FETBRER - IEETRIB R
accruals and other payables H i JE A~ 08 7,841,812 — — —
Land cost payable JE < 4 b B AR 264,271 111,178 — —
Due to an associate FE — B & A R 2 5KIB 6,486 - - —
Due to related companies FET A& R A 2 FIE 344,057 — — —
Due to a jointly FE A — R R
controlled entity EREZHA 1,709,345 — — —
15,278,484 9,688,825 9,874,834 3,164,628
At 31st December 2009 R-BEBENEF
+=-A=+—H
Borrowings (including interests) & & (85 # &) 7,171,431 2,599,710 8,143,341 1,030,226
Accounts payable and FERTERER - FEETRIE K
accruals and other payables H i JE A~ XA 4,670,176 — — —
Land cost payable JE A5 £ Hh AR A 302,418 271,028 — —
Due to an associate FE A — BB & A R 2 OE 6,269 — — —
Due to related companies JEH R 3E A B) 2 508 173,721 — — —
Due to a jointly JE A — RS 3 B 22
controlled entity BRE I8 1,842,289 — — —
14,166,304 2,870,738 8,143,341 1,030,226
Company AT
At 31st December 2010 R-ZB—2F
+=—A=+-—8
Borrowings Be 221,326 2,945,340 — —
Accruals and other payables FE =T 7R I8 % H b FE 3k 18 37,947 — — —
259,273 2,945.340 — —
At 31st December 2009 R-ZBENE
+=A=+—H
Borrowings Be 2,395,070 220,561 2,935,161 —
Accruals and other payables FE =T 7R I8 % H b FE {5 3% 18 37,146 — _ _
2,432,216 220,561 2,935,161 —
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(©

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table above excludes guarantees given to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to certain buyers of the
Group’s properties (see Note 38 and 3.1(b)) as
management considers the risk as minimal.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from interest bearing
bank deposits and borrowings. Bank deposits and
borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
The Group has not hedged its cash flow and fair value

interest-rate risk.

At 31st December 2010, if interest rates had increased/
decreased by one percentage-point and all other
variables were held constant, the finance income and
the finance costs, net of amount capitalised in the
properties under development, would increase/decrease
the Group’s post-tax profit by approximately HK$19

million (2009: HK$49 million).

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

in order to provide returns for equity owners and benefits for

other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure

to reduce the cost of capital.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity owners,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
current and non-current borrowings, as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less pledged/charged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
represents total equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2010 and 2009 were as

4= A f

by E )

WRR

3

BEERERE®
3.2 5 REBRERE »)

NS B RLE B B T g
RAEAZBREHE BITHMK
KHEBERDER  BAME
FEABREARRE -

AEERERAABLELREER
EER - BRBRALETINE
BEFERUNRBRELRAFE - BE
FREDAEEE(BREEAR?

ERBRM T IR RIERD
fEE)REEM WIRTHE
AERERREEFEWTHE -
MERDEDAR(MEA?

ERERMR) -

R-B-—2FER-FFAFT

follows: ZA=T—HBZEARAELE
LU
2010 2009
—E—FF ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Total borrowings wEs 23,719,443 16,348,858
Less: Pledged/charged bank deposits B B IR W RTT
and cash and cash FERBESEES
equivalents (Note 21) ZEY (H7E21) (2,697,275) (6,714,623)
Net debt BEFE 21,022,168 9,634,235
Total equity BmE 40,993,099 30,499,476
Gearing ratio BEARBELX 51% 32%

The increase in the gearing ratio was mainly due to the
increase in bank borrowings and decrease in cash and bank
deposits during the year.

BARBELXEMEEHRF
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3

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been

defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived

from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

(level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

measured at fair value at 31st December 2010:

3

BEERER )

TRAGEED MR A FERT
BZHMBITAR - TRMBIZE
AT -

MEREEXBERE
BHigzRE(KRAE)
(FB14R) »

FIRAMBEREES
BETBEEZERBA
2 (BB S H & &
ABE (BB EBMEEE)
(HRERRIN) (F24) °

BEEXBEMS LI
REABEMSHE 2
W A BUR (Bl A A 8 R &
1) (E34%) -

TREJIN-_ZF—FF+_H
=t-—HBRAFEFEZERE

BE:
Level 1 Level 3 Total
R Y E3R ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT BT T
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value BEAVESZBER
through profit or loss FIBR R BT 15 & B
— Trading securities —BE &S 11,693 — 11,693
Available-for-sale financial A ENKEE
assets
— Equity securities — IR AR F A 2,164,706 1,151,682 3,316,388
Total assets mEE 2,176,399 1,151,682 3,328,081




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm'’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included
in level 1 comprise primarily Mainland China and Hong Kong
equity investments classified as trading securities or available-
for-sale.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
There is no instrument included in level 2 at 31st December
2010.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
Instruments included in level 3 represent unlisted equity
securities.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instruments.

3
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cContinued) 3 MKEREE®
The changes in level 3 instruments for the year ended 31st Bz 2—ZZF+-_A=+—
December 2010 are as follows: BItFEE F3IRTAE2FHN
T

Available-for-sale

financial assets

AHHEMKEE

HK$'000

FET

Opening balance F ) KR 1,113,144

Exchange difference E W =R 38,538

Closing balance F AR 1,151,682
The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of FEUNBE RN « FEfSBR X - B g &
accounts receivable, accounts payable, balances with related ANLTZEHREMNTHERZ
parties and land cost payables are assumed to approximate HEREGTEEARERE 1
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for BEEEAFEHES MEE
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future ms BHEBEZAFEIIR
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that AEBEARESEzEUem T A
is available to the Group for similar financial instruments or ZIHATEN XS BIEMEIR
based on the current bid price in the market. Rz2BEAE BERREHNES

MERBELGHE -
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EgTtHEER AR

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

MERABTDFEET2AME 1
NBTABREME=IERER
BREEERNBRATHRREHZAE
IETEHE -

AEERRRELER R
R-EEEL BAUMAEZE
REEBOERARCERER
MR - B8 E RS BT E B
HERzEERBEKRMERE
EAABZEERBRERT
St o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Estimated impairment of properties and
equipment and intangible assets

Properties and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each
balance sheet date or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of properties
and equipment and intangible assets have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations, taking
into account latest market information and past
experience. These calculation and valuations require the
use of judgements and estimates.

Estimated provision of properties under
development for sale and completed
properties for sale

For the purpose of determining provision, properties
under development and completed properties held for
sale are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows. The recoverability of
the carrying amounts of these asset is assessed based on
their fair value less costs to sell. The fair value is
determined taking into account costs to completion
based on past experience and net sales value based on
prevailing market conditions. Provision is made when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
assessment requires the use of judgement and estimates.

4 EESTTHHERHAE

(@)

(b)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(©

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar lease and other contracts. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject
to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences, by reference to
independent valuations; and

(i)  recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices, by
reference to independent valuations.

4 EESTTHERHAE »

(c)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4 EESTTHHERHAE

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and AL EEZESHHERRBR
assumptions (Continued) (#)

© REVWEZAFHE

(c) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

(Continued)

In the case of investment properties under development,
their fair value reflects the expectations of market
participants of the value of the properties when they are
completed, less deductions for the costs required to
complete the projects and appropriate adjustments for
profit and risk. The valuation and all key assumptions
used in the valuation should reflect market conditions at
the balance sheet date. The key assumptions include
value of completed properties, period of development,
outstanding construction costs, finance costs, other
professional costs, risk associated with completing the
projects and generating income after completion and
investors’ return as a percentage of value or cost. The
fair value is made by reference to independent valuation.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(©

(d)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties
(Continued)

[t may sometimes be difficult to determine reliably the
fair value of the investment property under development.
In order to evaluate whether the fair value of an
investment property under development can be
determined reliably, management considers the
following factors, among others:

The provisions of the construction contract
o The stage of completion

o Whether the project/property is standard (typical
for the market) or non-standard

o The level of reliability of cash inflows after
completion

o The development risk specific to the property

o Past experience with similar constructions

o Status of construction permits

Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China and
Hong Kong. Judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

4 EESTTHERHAE »
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4 EESTTHHERHAE

(d) Current taxation and deferred taxation (Continued) (d) 7N Bf 7% 18 K i G 7

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred taxation assets and taxation
in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in
Mainland China. However, the implementation and
settlement of these taxes varies among various tax
jurisdictions in cities of Mainland China, and the Group
has not finalised most of its land appreciation taxes
clearance and payments with the local tax authorities in
Mainland China. Accordingly, significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of the land
appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognised
these land appreciation taxes based on management’s
best estimates according to the understanding of the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the taxation and tax provisions in
the periods in which such taxes have been finalised with
local tax authorities.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e) Depreciation

(")

The Group's net book value of properties and equipment
as at 31st December 2010 was approximately
HK$3,199,845,000. The Group depreciates the hotel
property, building, furniture and office equipment and
motor vehicles on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful life of 28 to 30 years, 50 years, 5 years and 3 to 5
years, respectively, and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, commencing from the date the
asset is placed into productive use. The estimated useful
lives and dates that the Group places the properties and
equipment into productive use reflects the Directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s
assets.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

The initial accounting on the acquisition of subsidiaries
involves identifying and determining the fair values to be
assigned to the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquired entities. The fair
values of investment properties and development
properties held for sale are determined by reference to
market prices or present value of expected net cash
flows from the assets. Any changes in the assumptions
used and estimates made in determining the fair values,
and management’s ability to measure reliably the
contingent liabilities of the acquired entity will impact
the carrying amount of these assets and liabilities, as
well as the amount of goodwill from the acquisition and
the excess of fair value of the net assets of subsidiaries
acquired over the costs of acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(@)

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from the sale of
properties in the ordinary course of business, as disclosed
in note 2.19. The assessment of when an entity has
transferred the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to buyers requires the examination of the
circumstances of the transaction. In most cases, the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership coincides with
the date when the equitable interest in the property
vests with the buyer upon handover of the respective
property to the buyer.

As disclosed in note 38, the Group provided guarantees
in respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
relating to the mortgage loans arranged for certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties. These guarantees
will expire when the relevant property ownership
certificates are lodged with the various banks. In order
to obtain mortgages, the purchasers would have settled
certain percentage of the total contract amount in
accordance with the related PRC regulations upon
delivery of the properties. The Directors are of the
opinion that such settlements provide sufficient evidence
of the purchasers’ commitment to honour their
contractual obligations of the bank loans. In addition,
based on past experiences, there were no significant
defaults of mortgage facilities by the purchasers resulting
in execution of the bank guarantees. Accordingly, the
Directors believe that significant risks and rewards
associated with ownership of the properties have been
transferred to the purchasers.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial implication of requlations of idle land

(©

Under the PRC laws and regulations, if a property
developer fails to develop land according to the terms of
a land grant contract, including the designated use of
the land and the time of commencement and
completion of the property development, the PRC
Government may regard the land as idle and issue a
warning or impose a penalty on the developer or reclaim
the land. The Group has certain tracts of land for which
development has not commenced according to the
specified terms of the respective land grant contracts.
Judgement is required in assessing whether these tracts
of land will be subject to the penalty of idle land or may
be reclaimed by the Government and thereby resulting
in any adverse financial impact to the Group. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates the extent of
development of the whole tracts of land, status of
negotiation with the government authorities as to the
extension of time of commencement or revision of
development plans.

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
an investment property. In making its judgement, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash
flows that are attributable not only to property but also
to other assets used in the production or supply process.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c) Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately
under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold
separately, the property is accounted for investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property.
The Group considers each property separately in making
its judgement.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group's
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Executive Directors consider the business from both a business
and geographic perspective. Reportable business segments identified
are property development, property investment, hotel operations
and property management. Geographically, the Executive Directors
consider that the reportable business segments can be further
segregated into three main geographical areas, namely Southern
China (SC) (including Guangzhou, Huizhou, Zhongshan and Hong
Kong), Northern China (NC) (including Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian,
Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao) and Eastern China (EC) (including
Shanghai, Hangzhou and Ningbo).

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of adjusted segment results.
Corporate expense, finance income and finance costs are not
included in the results for each operating segment that is reviewed
by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets consist primarily of properties and equipment,
investment properties, investment in a jointly controlled entity,
properties under development for sale, completed properties for
sale, prepayments, deposits and other current assets and cash and
cash equivalents. They exclude available-for-sale financial assets and
deposit for proposed investments which are managed on a central
basis, and deferred tax assets. These are part of the reconciliation to
total balance sheet assets.

Sales between segments are carried out on terms equivalent to
those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The revenue from
external parties reported to the Executive Directors is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the consolidated income statement.

Revenue comprise turnover which included gross proceeds from sale
of properties, revenue from rental and hotel operation, and property
management income.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

SR BHRRME (&)

5. 7EER @)

Segment results by business lines and geographical

areas (Continued)

BREBRHUES 725 &

Lo
E 3 4¢ )

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ZETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Sales of properties Y HE 13,696,356 10,631,159

Property management income MESIEIA 410,634 431,355

Income from hotel operation B JE & WA 179,792 131,558
Rental income el A

— Investment properties —IREYE 98 —

— Others —H i 92,373 31,174

14,379,253 11,225,246

The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas for BE-—T-TEt-g=+—

the year ended 31st December 2010 are as follows:

FEREBRMWBE S Z 5 B%,\,\

e
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management
MERRE mERE BREEE MEEE
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC NC
E3) #R #1 E3) ¥R #1 #H E-34
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTERT TER TER TR FTERT TER TER TER TER
Year ended 31st December 2010 HE-ZE—ZT &
+=A=+-AR
HEE
Total revenues FellE 5,052,562 2,885,163 6,075,622 98 - - 31,693 240,515 411,347 14,697,000
Inter-segment revenues 2 Sk = (183,519) — (41,099) — — — — (92,416) (713)  (317,747)
Revenues Wi 4,869,043 2,885,163 6,034,523 98 — - 31,693 148,099 410,634 14,379,253
Adjusted segment results WRBESBER 1,891,116 962,895 2,516,914 1,687,466 1,579,726 514,979 13,187 (153,779) 28,968 9,041,472
Depreciation nE (8,336) (2,057) (6,850) (178) (118) — (6,750) (92,813) (1,820) (118,922)
Amortisation i — — — — — — (2,691) (3,154) — (5,845)
Fair value gains on REMEZ
investment properties NRELE - - — 1,694,803 1,584,659 516,162 — - — 3,795,624
Share of profit less loss of HEBE RS
associates A 1,258 — (187) — - - - - - 107
Share of loss of a jointly A — R
controlled entity BEER — — (666) — — — — — — (666)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment results by business lines and geographical
areas (Continued)

BB HRRME (&)

7 EBE R (2
%

% ¥
ES-4¢ )

RitE & 2 22 &8

The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas for BHE_TENE+_A=+—81
the year ended 31st December 2009 are as follows: FEREBRERMEE D2 D EPEE
wm
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management GI’OUP
MERR MERE EE 48 MEER £
Ne EC NC sC £C sC NC
£ ER #i £ ER E3) Zi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHET FET FHET FET FET FEL FET
(Note) (Note)
(W) (W)
Year ended 31st December 2009 EHZE-ZTETAF
TZA=ZT—-HItEE
Total revenues @ilas 3,880,730 3675466 3,165,270 31,174 — 24,631 106,927 444313 11,328,511
Inter-segment revenues 58 (70,911) — (19,396) — — — — (12,958) (103,265)
Revenues &3 3,809,819 3675466  3,145874 31,174 = 24,631 106,927 431355 11225246
Adjusted segment results KARDBEE 1,439,897 1,510,900 1,505,148 1,710,754 3,020,245 7,050 (144,681) 79,825 9,129,138
Depreciation nE (6,004) (1,953) (11,366) (11) 81) (7,306) (62,832) (1,697) (91,250)
Amortisation B (2,777) (1,962) (900) — (2,620) (1,150) — (9,409)
Fair value gains on REMEZ
investment properties NFEKR — - — 1,679,579 3,020,518 - - — 4,700,097
Share of profit less loss of HIEBERARF
associates AEE (522) — (824) — — = — (1,346)
Share of profit of a jointly AE—REREH
controlled entity BRI — — 385,759 — — — — 385,759
Note: Includes segment results of Tianjin which was separately disclosed in 2009. Hiat BRER-_ZEZENFLIHARBEZREZ S
EIES -
R _ — o
The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas as at K= FFE+-_A=FT—BERX

31st December 2010 are as follows:

= —
BRMES D ZDREEWT !

Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management
MERRE NERE BEEE MEERE
SC EC \[¢ SC EC NC SC EC NC
E3) R #1 #® R 37 -3 R #1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FRET FTERT FTERT TER TER TER TR FTERT TER TER
As at 31st December 2010 M=Z—ZF
+=-A=+—H 25831,989 13,098329 28,798,138 3,711,362 10,688,141 1,027,794 525,512 28,624 2,828,796 577,936 87,116,621
Segment assets include: SHBEERE:
Investments in associates REBEAFZ 1,939 — 41,494 — — — — — — — 43,433
®E
Investment in a jointly R Az
controlled entity BEREIEE — — 1,512,923 — — — — — — — 1,512,923
For the year ended BE_T-THF
31st December 2010 +ZA=+—-8H
E5FE
Additions to non-current R EFRBEE
assets (other than (TBRESR
financial instruments IARERE
and deferred tax assets) HELE) 15,122 2,527 21,244 134,721 270,042 69,309 6,179 17,662 208,015 394 745,215
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment results by business lines and geographical
areas (Continued)

The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas as at
31st December 2009 are as follows:

5.

SR BHRRME (&)

o EE R @)
REBRHWESE D25
#ﬁ%(ﬁ/

\ZEEAFT A=t RERE
BRBBED ZHBEENT

23

B0

Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
MEER MERE BELE MEER £
SC EC NC SC EC SC NC
£ ER 14 B £33 B ES1g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note) (Note)
(i &5) (Ff )
As at 31st December 2009 RZEENE
+-A=+-8 23,134,671 7,736,545 25,236,064 2,476,368 5,938,360 507,104 2,566,271 195,875 67,791,258
Segment assets include: DHEERRE:
Investments in associates REEARZRE 637 — 40,288 — — — — — 40,925
Investment in a jointly R—BLREH TR
controlled entity ZRE — — 1,188,692 - — - - - 1,188,692
For the year ended BE-TTNE
31st December 2009 +tZA=+—-BLFE
Additions to non-current assets ~ REFERBEE (TERE
(other than financial SRMIAREEFHE
instruments and EE)
deferred tax assets) 11,935 14,806 483,242 36,570 514,115 5,855 450,177 2,733 1,519,433

Note: Includes segment assets of Tianjin which was separately disclosed in 2009.

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit from operations to profit
before taxation is as follows:

K BRR-_FEFNFIARBEZREZS
BFEEE °

Al 2 882 A& & F B2 BR B A i

7 ¥ B 20

T~

2010 2009
—E—ZF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FA&T
Reportable segment profit A2 WmH EaeLm
from operations 9,041,472 9,129,138
Unallocated corporate KOBEARBA(FAX)  Fx
income/(expenses), net 37,905 (17,132)
Finance income B 75 U A 17,039 13,551
Finance costs B 75 Ak ZN (253,307) (333,639)
Profit before taxation B Bt A= A 8,843,109 8,791,918
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #r

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment results by business lines and geographical

areas (Continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment assets to total assets are:

=

N

BB HRRME (&)

TEER @)

REBERHMEE D25
E 3 4¢ )

2o M EERBEELRD

2009

—ETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET AT

Total segment assets DEEELTE 87,116,621 67,791,258
Available-for-sale financial assets At HEMEEE 3,316,388 2,671,719
Deposit for proposed investment BEBREZES 560,210 —
Deferred tax assets FEETRIEE E 167,541 191,287
Total assets BEE 91,160,760 70,654,264

The Group primarily operates in Mainland China. All revenues for
the year ended 31st December 2010 and 2009 are from Mainland

China.

As at 31st December 2010 and 2009, all non-current assets, other
than financial instruments and deferred tax assets are located in

Mainland China.

AEBTERTEAELEER-
BE_ZT-FTER-_FETAFET=
A=+—BLFEE mBEKZHR
BB R EE

RZZE—ZFER_ZTTAF+ A
=t+—B FAFRDEE(TEE
PRIARBEEREEE)HURS
Bl K BE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) % & B %% R & i 5% (48)

6 LAND COSTS 6 TR
Land costs represent prepaid operating lease payments for hotel T AREBEDEREAEFE
properties and self-use buildings. AR EHEEHIE -
Group
&
2010 2009
=il —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FA&T
At 1st January n—H—H 329,440 749,663
Additions 1 201,055 13,680

Transfer from/(to) investment properties, ®EEH (Z)REWE - At HE
properties under development for sale AR E R L TE A

and prepayments for acquisition of land ~ FXI& 78,750 (431,069)
Amortisation N (5,845) (3,526)
Exchange difference [E & =58 18,793 692
At 31st December R+—_A=+—H 622,193 329,440

Group
3
2010 2009
=il —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T
In Mainland China, held on: RAPBEARE - ZUTHARARFE :
Land use rights of between NFI0FEE50F 2 i
10 and 50 years 55 F 618,871 326,154
In Hong Kong, held on: RES - BHUATHAREFE :
Leases of over 50 years 50F A E2 M4 3,322 3,286
622,193 329,440
As at 31st December 2010, net book amount of approximately RZZE—ZTE+-_A=+—H & =
HK$90,069,000 (2009: HK$14,450,000) of the Group’s land was & 5 AR M )% {8 £790,069,000 7% 7T (= ﬁ
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 24). T N, 4E : 14,450,000 7T ) 2 1 B

EEREAEBZRTEEZER
an (FffE24) -

. —Em 3
==

BEAREERRAR
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7 PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT 7 YMERZRE
Group
8
Furniture
Construction in Hotel and office Motor
progress  properties  Buildings equipment vehicles Total
HiR
EEIR  BEME BF BAZRE RE fatcl
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AL TR T THx T
Year ended 31st December 2010  HZE-Z-—ZT&
TZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HARERE 1,180,351 1,566,295 222,664 181,650 24,069 3,175,029
Additions (including ME(BEERM L
capitalisation of land BH)
amortisation) 47,206 — — 18,179 5,962 71,347
Depreciation e — (63,919) (3.933) (46,169) 901)  (118,922)
Disposals HE — — (13) (1,335) (488) (1,836)
Transfer Eped (650,536) 643,235 7,301 — — —
Exchange difference ERES 30,421 29,415 7,767 5,781 843 74,227
Closing net book amount R RA 607,442 2,175,026 233,786 158,106 25485 3,199,845
At 315t December 2010 RZZ—-%F
+=A=+-A
Cost B 607,442 2,354,838 257,219 337,280 57,426 3,614,205
Accumulated depreciation ZFHME —  (179.812) (23433)  (179,174)  (31,941)  (414,360)
Net book amount REFE 607,442 2,175,026 233,786 158,106 25485 3,199,845
Year ended 31st December 2009  HE-ZZTHhE
TZA=T-HLEE
Opening net book amount HYEEFE 964,047 979,775 229,730 208,140 23931 2,405,623
Additions (including HE(RRERNML L
capitalisation of land BH)
amortisation) 836,709 = = 16,105 4,185 856,999
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBRAF — — — (101) — (101)
Depreciation & = (37,910) (7327) (42,289) (3,724) (91,250)
Disposals HE - — (92) (538) (365) (995)
Transfer B (622,229) 622,262 (33) = — —
Exchange difference ERES 1,824 2,168 386 333 42 4,753
Closing net book amount HREEEE 1,180,351 1,566,295 222,664 181,650 24,069 3,175,029
At 315t December 2009 R-_ZTENF
+-A=+-FE
Cost KA 1180351 1,677,240 241,445 310,922 51882 3,461,840
Accumulated depreciation ZEHME —  (110,945) (18,781)  (129,272) (27,813)  (286,811)
Net book amount REFE 1,180,351 1,566,295 222,664 181,650 24,069 3,175,029




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) % & B %% R & i 5% (48)

7 PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7

Hotel properties with a net book amount of approximately
HK$1,946,733,000 (2009: HK$90,104,000) as at 31st December
2010 were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note

24).

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings and hotel
properties, which will be held for the long-term. All construction in
progress is located in Mainland China on land held under land use

rights expiring from 2042 through 2046.

Depreciation expenses have been included in general and

(Bt5E24) -

BRA Lo

MERRKRE®

RZZE—ZFEF+-_A=+—H &
% (B #91,946,733,0008 T (=2 Z
JLE 90,104,000/ 7T) 2B IE W ¥
ERBEAERECTEEZEAR

ERIRIEZERREBAEZETR
BEME -EGERZIRURNF
RE - ARUARBER _FTMH_F
E_THERFHERER 2 LHER

FERAXCERERGERZ —RE

administrative expenses in the income statement. THBREMRA -
8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 KREWME
Group
=
2010 2009
—E-2F —EThF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FA&T
Completed investment properties BRI EY X 3,698,307 =
Investment properties under BRPREME
development 11,707,191 8,378,105
15,405,498 8,378,105
Group
S
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
At 1st January Wn—H—H 8,378,105 2,856,094
Ad(ditions (including capitalisation of i (BEENEFE)
interest) 471,920 342,555
Transfer from/(to) completed properties, B (Z) &MY - At H
properties under development for sale EXERTYERWELIME
and prepayments for acquisition of land it ZX & 2,335,722 593,199
Disposals HE — (122,120)
Fair value gains on wEYENFEKE
investment properties 3,795,624 4,700,097
Exchange difference [E 5 =58 424,127 8,280
At 31st December R+—_A=+—8H 15,405,498 8,378,105
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

All investment properties are located in Mainland China on land held
under land use rights expiring from 2037 through 2058 (2009: 2057
through 2058). They were stated at fair values with reference to
valuations performed on an open market value basis by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent qualified valuers, as at
31st December 2010.

As at 31st December 2010, approximately HK$4,137,958,000 (2009:
HK$504,743,000) of the Group's investment properties were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 24).

9 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR

BREWE #)

FTEREMEDMNR AP B KE KM
RBER-_ZE=LFE-_TANEF
—EENFE R _ZTRLEEFEE-ZT
ANE)BAEERN T HERERE
2T FTEREMEERESE
BB GEEMEERTERAARN
—E—TE+_A=+—HEKAHM
MEEREEETZ2MHE UAT
B3R -

W-ZT—THE+-_F=+—H" K
% [F #94,137,958,000/8 T (ZZEE 1
F 504,743,000/ 70) 2 EWMEE
BREAEBRITEE 2B G (M
5£24) o

9 THHEZRERYE

SALE
Group
£8
As at
As at 31st December 1st January
R+=—A=+—-H R—A—H
2010 2009 2009
=S T NF T NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT TAT
Amount comprises: SEBE:
Land costs = 3 B AR 20,970,601 20,945,137 21,633,651
Construction costs and BEKARBERNE
capitalised expenditures F X 9,386,290 8,213,274 7,676,606
Finance costs capitalised B & AN b B 7 A AR 1,610,865 1,398,196 1,233,916
31,967,756 30,556,607 30,544,173
Expected to be completed and TEHERERA T —EA
available for sale after BB T RAHEE
more than twelve months 26,131,885 23,256,452 25,702,782
Expected to be completed and FEEEN T @A A
available for sale within BT R HHE
twelve months 5,835,871 7,300,155 4,841,391
31,967,756 30,556,607 30,544,173
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10

1"

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE (Continued)

All properties under development for sale are located in Mainland
China and are located on land held under land use rights expiring
from 2037 through 2078.

As at 31st December 2010, approximately HK$4,055,569,000 (2009:
HK$4,677,986,000) of the Group’s properties under development
for sale were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities
(Note 24).

As at 31st December 2010, approximately 239,000 square metre
(2009: 239,000 square metre) of land with a carrying amount of
HK$259 million (2009: HK$241 million) was restricted for
development, transfer and pledge due to a pending litigation.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE

All completed properties for sale are located in Mainland China and
are located on land held under land use rights expiring from 2037
through 2078.

As at 31st December 2010, approximately HK$1,623,111,000 (2009:
HK$2,067,747,000) of the Group’s completed properties for sale
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note
24).

,.\.,
:%/T\/\

9

10

B RS ER 2R Y = ()

AHHEECRBRRYR

(&)

AR EZERTMEIUR
PEAE YURRER-_F=+
FE_FTELN\FHEERN L HE
RERB L -

RZE—ZEF+_A=+—H"' &K
£ 5 ,%’]4,055,569,000/5 T(ZZEZ N
F 1 4,677,986,0007%8 7t) 2 A 4 &
ERBTYEDEBERNERERT
SE A& (ME24) -

R=—ZZT—ZTF+ = A
H - #9239,000F 75 K( = 2
£ : 239,000 F 77 K ) HE
259,000,000 w( = & = i
241,000,000 7T) < TR 2 - B —
EFERFTAMZEERE  EE &,éf
PR %)

+_
F TN
B &

u%#@'w“l

AHEEZEERYE

EHAUHEEZEERDEIUR
EPI?W*&UEMETFE"_E_ti

“EENFHEERZ T HER
%%*ﬁZifmo

RZF—FFFT_A=FT—H" XK
EE#91,623,111,000 8 T(ZEZh
& :2,067,747,0007 70) Z Al &
ZEERYMEDEBERNERBET
=B ZHEF R (HE24) -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS BEEE
Group
5=
Goodwill

HE
2010 2009
—E—=F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET T
At 1st January R—H—H 120,660 120,455
Exchange difference X =5 4,177 205
At 31st December R+—_A=+—H 124,837 120,660
Cost [N 136,666 132,095
Accumulated impairment charge 2EREER (11,829) (11,435)
Net book amount BRHEFE 124,837 120,660
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #r& B %% R & M 5% (48)

11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) "M EBEEE @
Impairment tests for goodwill B2 2B E R
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (“CGUs") FESEZEZREHE D LERZ
identified according to operating segment. A segment level summary REBHRESELEBEN(HeELEE
of the goodwill allocation is presented below: D) EmESsE 2B EZ5 M
T

2010 2009
—2-EF —ZTNF
Property Property Property Property
development management 1118 development  management Total
MERR MEER Bt NERER WRER mst
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THER TERT FTERL TERT TERT

Southern China 2 96,809 — 96,809 93,570 — 93,570
Northern China FEif — 28,028 28,028 — 27,090 27,090
96,809 28,028 124,837 93,570 27,090 120,660
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in- HeEABEMN kD4 5ERE
use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based FREEIE - ZEFEFAE
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year EREEEMZ M EREEELE R
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated ERFHM 2B S B AE T B
using zero growth rate. HAEFHUAEZRERETNIRETE
B R HEUT -
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2010: —E-TEGHPHEEBHENE® R TE
B -

Property development  Property management

o
S MEER ES ok
E Southern China Northern China
o
& g #=i
©
2 Gross margin EF = 12.7% 13.8%
C
< Discount rate i = 14.0% 14.0%

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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1"

12

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill (continued)

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2009:

MNEBEEE®

Bz R E R @)
CETAGFEREEFEEZEE

B

Property development  Property management

L W) ¥ E 18

Southern China Northern China

] #=i

Gross margin ESp 25.7% 16.6%
Discount rate Hrig & 14.3% 14.3%

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU
within the operating segment. Management determined budgeted
gross margin based on past performance and its expectations for the
market development. The discount rates used are pre-tax.

SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Investments in subsidiaries

HEBRRDARITRESHAE
ReELBEU -EEEEREEAE
REMEEMSER ZBAER A
BEME - FIRBZHRRIA ARG
K BiIR °

12 B QT
() RIB AT ZRE

Company
AT

2010 2009
—E—EF —ETNF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETIRD - A AE 88,021 85,076
Due from subsidiaries A NG E @] 15,140,016 14,580,809
15,228,037 14,665,885

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and without pre-determined repayment terms. These
amounts due from subsidiaries are considered equity in nature.

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st December 2010
are set out in Note 42.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any
time during the year ended 31st December 2010.

FEW KB A B RIA R EER
BRI ETEEERFRE - &
% e WP B X ) ORI AR A R
BmIEE -

R=T-2F+=A=1—8
ZEBHEA R RN
42 -

RBE-Z-FTF+_A=1
—BIEFEREAERE - S
BrrEBEAEMNEETRE

191

- ZE-TEFR

BEAREERRAR



192

- Annual Report 2010

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Loans to subsidiaries

12 i 8 2 =@
(b) B AT ZER

Company
7~ H
2010 2009
il TTAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET

Current Vi)
Loans to subsidiaries

MEBRRZER

218,274 217,638

218,274 217,638

Loans to subsidiaries are unsecured and carry interest at 8% to

8.9% (2009: 8% to 8.9%) per annum.

13 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

MEBARZERVERE  F
MEAHIEESIB(ZZTE
F:8EZE8IE) -

13 RBELQXR2RE

Group
-

2010 2009

il —TTNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TExT FAT

At 1st January W—H—H 40,925 42,201
Share of profit less loss of associates D AEE A AR B 18 1,071 (1,346)
Exchange difference PE X =58 1,437 70
At 31st December mt+=—A=+—8H 43,433 40,925
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13 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 13 RBEQARZRE
The Group's interest in associates, which are unlisted, is as follows: AREFBRIELITEHBE AR 2SN
T
Particulars of Place of Principal Profit/  Interest
Name issued shares held incorporation activities Assets Liabilities Revenues (loss) held
wF

218 FBEERTROFEE SMRLELH FEXK BE a8 A (BB) sz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 %

TEr TiEx TiEx TEx

2010
—E-2F
Guangdong Registered capital of Mainland China  Operation of 3,919 1,979 1,691 1,258 40.0%
Huasheng Cultural RMB5,000,000 AR E oK B school
Development EERLT N EHER
Company Limited A B #5,000,0007T
BREAHEERE
BRAT
Beijing BHL Logistics Registered capital of Mainland China Property 47,954 14,747 50,333 (187) 25.0%
Limited US$20,000,000 lEibN development
ERRENREF A A A% 2% MEER
BERAF 20,000,000 7T
2009
ZEENE
Guangdong Registered capital of Mainland China Operation of 6,243 5,607 — (523) 40.0%
Huasheng Cultural RMB5,000,000 FR B K school
Development AR AR EPER
Company Limited AR #5,000,0007T
BRELHBEULER
BRAA
Beijing BHL Logistics Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 46,198 13,918 — (823) 25.0%
Limited US$20,000,000 B A B development
LRREYRE % RN MEE R
ARATE 20,000,000 7T f
s
Bl
Investments in associates at 31st December 2010 include goodwill N—_ZE—ZFTEFE+_A=+—8" m:‘@
of HK$8,286,000 (2009: HK$8,009,000). BENT 2R E BEREE 8,286,000 I
AIT(ZTZNEF : 8,009,000 7T) ° '

BEAREERRAR
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14 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 11 A—BHABEFERZ

ENTITY RE
Group
-
Share of net
assets Advance Total
PIEREE B et
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TERT TERT TERT

At 15t January 2010 R-FT-—FT&—A—H 571,470 617,222 1,188,692

Capital injection EE 278,925 — 278,925

Share of post-acquisition results DIEUWEE 1R ¥4 (666) — (666)

Exchange difference bE N E5E 24,604 21,368 45,972

At 31st December 2010 RZZE—FF

+=-—A=+—H 874,333 638,590 1,512,923

At 1st January 2009 RZZEZNF—HF—H 185,068 616,172 801,240

Share of post-acquisition results DG IERES 385,759 — 385,759

Exchange difference PE 5 =58 643 1,050 1,693

At 31st December 2009 RZTTNF

+=—A=+—H 571,470 617,222 1,188,692

As at 31st December 2009 and 2010, investment in a jointly RZBEENFRZZE—ZEF+A
controlled entity represents the Group’s investment in Beijing =t+t—H R—HE#* IE] EHEE
Dongfangwenhua International Properties Company Limited (“BJ KETDEASERI REH XE
Dongfangwenhua”), a company with a property development BEEXEARA A (L RE G CE |)
project in Beijing, Mainland China. ZERE IR RAXERERTF

R —EAMEERREEZAA -

° In 2007, the Group acquired 60.98% equity interest in BJ RZZEZLF - AEBRWEILERR
< Dongfangwenhua, for a total consideration and capital contribution 7N E 2 6098% RAER  RER
§ of HK$820, 190,000 (equivalent of approximately RMB795,584,000). & AN F & 4 %8 5 820,190,000 7T
% The Group is responsible for contributing 97% of the capital of BJ (FBZE R4 A K8 795,584,0007T ) °
E Dongfangwenhua and is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in AEBBEEADELRRAXEYZ
g BJ Dongfangwenhua. Ordinary resolutions of BJ Dongfangwenhua T%ERNERMEBEERBILRES
: require 75% of the voting of the Board of Directors. Besides, the NESTIA%E EE L RR T Y
Group is entitled to 100% of the profit arising from the office E7EBRRBARAEZTG 5% KR
building (South) and 45% of the profit arising from the office ot REBETEREDG il: =
building (North) in the property development project. RAXERBRFE(FE)Z2100% 4%

MEXREMEERREBERFE (L)
1 2 45% % A -

Hopson Development Holdings Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14 INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITY (Continued)

The Group's share of the assets and liabilities as at 31st December
2009 and 2010, and the Group's share of revenues and results of
the jointly controlled entity for the year ended 31st December 2009
and 2010 are as follows:

AN
=a

B RS ER 2R Y = ()

14 A—BHEEEHER 2

BE®

REBR-_ZZNFRZZTE—ZF
+ZA=t+—HROhZEEREA
B ARAEBREBEE_ZTZTLF
;FEZZE—ZFTF+_A=1+—HLHF
ERahiRES TR RS RE
RN

2010 2009
—E-E5F —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Assets: EE:
Non-current assets EREBEE 1,518 1,503
Current assets mENEE 2,478,739 2,408,512
2,480,257 2,410,015

Liabilities: =
Non-current liabilities EREBABE (837,145) (1,147,095)
Current liabilities nEBE (768,779) (691,450)
(1,605,924) (1,838,545)
Net assets EEZFE 874,333 571,470
Revenues &S 1,585 1,680,276
Cost of sales and expenses SHEKRA LY (2,251) (924,209)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB AT (B1E), 5 (666) 756,067
Taxation 518 — (370,308)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(EE), %A (666) 385,759

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ASSETS

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into a jointly controlled
assets arrangement with Guangzhou Zhuguang Real Estate
Development Company Limited, an independent third party, under
which each of the Group companies and Guangzhou Zhuguang Real
Estate Development Company Limited contributed land and other
assets for the development of properties located in Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, mainland China. During the year ended 31st
December 2010, the Group's participating interest in these jointly
controlled assets was 95.5% (2009: 95.5%). The Group's share of
the net gain of the jointly controlled assets for the year amounted to
HK$140,182,000 (2009: loss of HK$29,228,000) and the net assets
of the jointly controlled assets as at 31st December 2010 amounted
to HK$1,295,173,000 (2009: HK$1,112,228,000).

15 RAFEHEEZRE

AREBETHEARE —BBIE
“HTEMNKAEHERZEER A
AFIY—HAREHNEERZY &
I AEEET A REMNEKLE
HMERBEFRARSHABMLRF
Bl AEEREEMN 2 WERE L
MEMEE - REE-_T—ZF+
ZA=tT—HLEFER AEEE
BZEEREHEEBS%(ZEE
NEF:955%) 22 HiEZD - NEE
FEREERENEERSFES
140,182,000 (=TT L F : &5
$829,228,000/8 L) ' M A £ B K =
T-—FTF+_F=+—HEMGLLRA
& EFE S A&1,295,173,000
BIT(ZZEZNF :1,112,228,00078
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #r& B %% R & M 5% (48)

16 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 16. A HEMKEE

Group
£H
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FTET FHT
At 1st January »n—A—H 2,671,719 476,250
Additions iz — 1,112,197
Fair value gain recognised PR AT ERE
in equity (Note 28) (Pt £28) 542,775 1,082,325
Exchange difference & =58 101,894 947
At 31st December R+—_HA=+—H 3,316,388 2,671,719
Available-for-sale financial assets include the following: AHEEEMBEEBREATEIA
Group
£H
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Listed securities: FHRES
— Equity securities — Hong Kong, —RAEBS—BE KW E
at market value (Note (a)) (K% (@) 2,164,706 1,558,575
Unlisted securities: FELEMES
— Equity securities — Mainland China — & 7K 38 % — b B A P
(Note (b)) (Bt 7 (b)) 1,151,682 1,113,144
3,316,388 2,671,719
(@) The Group's investment represents equity securities listed on (@ AEBZEEERBABBZM

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The investment is denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

(b) The available-for-sale financial asset represents 5.09% (b)
attributable equity interest in a PRC financial institution (see
Note 41(f)).

The investment is denominated in Renminbi.

EWZERAES
BETIAETTETE

AL EMKEEREMHE [
BB B 5.09% 2 IR AR
= (R E41(H) -

BRETAARKESE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17

18

AN
FoN=ys

vt 35 3 2% B o ()

DEPOSIT FOR PROPOSED INVESTMENT 17. BB REZRE
The balance represents deposit paid for proposed investment in 4.73% ZEBRERLR —BP R e
equity interest in a PRC financial institution. The investment is yet to AR AR EEZREXINZ
be confirmed by the PRC financial institution. In January 2011, an e ZBEEYFZPES
additional sum of RMB953,400,000 (approximately WEER - R_E—F— A B
HK$1,120,421,000) was paid as additional deposit for the proposed 28 I\ % {1 A R 953,400,000 7T ( 4
investment. 1,120,421,0008 L) tE R B ZE KR E 2
BIMES ©
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18. FTEZEBERIE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2009
—ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Listed securities: EWREH:
— Equity securities — Hong Kong, —RABE—FE EME
at market value 11,340 10,742
Unlisted securities: FEETES:
— Equity securities — Mainland China ~ — & 28 3% %5 — A B K [z 353 341
11,693 11,083
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented REATEERAERIECHBEE

within operating activities as part of changes in working capital in
the consolidated cash flow statement (Note 37).

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in other income/gains, net, in the consolidated
income statement (Note 29).

REERERERKEETBHANIIE
LEESZH N #E (MFE37) -

ROV EEBREINRIMBEEE
ZAFEESHNIARAGBRRLZ
H A s - FFEA (M RE29) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

19 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONOFLAND 19 WLt tFBENHIE R FE
AND PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND NRE REREMLR
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS BEE

Group Company
-4 AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
TEZF bl — T — T ol
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FH T FE T FH T
Non-current FET B
Prepayments for 1 B 1 b
acquisition of land (j) TE - FIE (i) 209,795 266,962 — —
Current B
Prepayments for 15 B 1 b
acquisition of land () T8 - FE (i) 18,053,335 7,363,482 — —
Other receivables (ii) EL ), W IE (i) 579,345 488,175 — —
Deposits for acquisition L B AR S 2
of equity interests (iii) 2 & % (iii) 571,984 53,299 — —
Guarantee deposit EREZ® 24,679 23,853 — —
Prepaid construction FE s
expenditures 3 30,399 26,075 — —
Land tender deposits TR e 344,329 160,156 — —
Prepaid sales taxes TET 85 & A 337,794 334,690 — —
Utility and other deposits 2 F 2% 7t & H b 12 & 317,375 213,315 — —
Receivable from disposal HE— B A a]
of a subsidiary (iv) 7 & U 3K TE (iv) 205,542 198,664 — —
Others Hifb 153,579 121,899 290 224
Prepayments, deposits and  FBfI FUIA - & R H A
other current assets mENEE 2,565,026 1,620,126 290 224

Prepayments for acquisition of land represents advances made
for the acquisitions of land use rights in Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou, Tianjin and Dalian, Mainland China. Formal land
use right certificates have not yet been obtained as at 31st
December 2010.

Prepayments for acquisition of land include an amount of
approximately HK$4,400 million (2009: HK$4,300 million) for
the land situated in the Chaoyang district of Beijing in
connection with the Group’s acquisition of 80% equity
interest in Believe Best Investments Limited which, through its
wholly owned subsidiary, possesses the right to develop the
Jing Run Project on the land (see Note 41(g)).

(i)

WLz BN RIBERR P
AR B BEM X
R N KB WBE 1 5 P R T F
HzBR- R_T—FF+_
A=+t—B BABRSEAL
HofE FRERE

WELH 2 BENRERE
4t RE G R 2 8R4
4,400,000,000/8 T(ZEE N
£ 1 4,300,000,0007% 7T ) - 3% i
RIDEASBERBEERER
fR AR 280% &= A B + i 7%
RAEBEMBARBFERR
REEB MR AR KT
41(g)) °
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19 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND
AND PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

19 BT HWENSRERAE
NRE - ZEREMR
HEE®

(i) Other receivables relate to the Group’s participation in first (iy Hv@EWREEAREB2EF
B K B AR % B E | (R &
AEBEFMALEcEEBELEE

class land development projects in Mainland China with fixed
guaranteed returns based on a pre-determined percentage of

funds utilised by the Group.

Other receivables are denominated in Renminbi. Their carrying
amounts approximate fair values.

This represents advances made to independent third parties
for the acquisition of majority interests in certain Mainland
China entities whose principal activities are property holding
and development. The acquisitions are not yet completed as at
31st December 2010.

ATEALAE) 2 L — R
ZIHEAM-

Hib BB RBAAREFE
FREEEQFEES -

(i) WHERERBEETHFEREER
BEHIZXBRVEFTEAR
F3) 2 Z BUR R o M [ 55
VEZFERZBR -R_F
—ZFE+-A=+—B B

CET R

(iv) The balance represents consideration receivable from the vy BEEHRELABEALIERZ
BREERARLE—HHBA
AR MBS B R A R mE
Wz KE-

disposal of a subsidiary, Nam Fong Guangzhou Plaza Limited
to Jumbo Advance Investment Limited, a related party.

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20 FEUYBR X

EHEMECRE—RENREERED
BT ERBREAXN -HEWE
ZHEHERMEERE-—REASAE
management fees are generally payable in advance on a monthly fF o

Consideration in respect of properties sold is generally payable by
the buyers at the time of completion of the sale and purchase
agreements. Rentals in respect of leased properties and property

basis.

FEUBR R 2 BRER D AT AN T -

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

2010 2009
—z-z5 Ll DT
HK$000 HK$’000 s
a7 FAT
0 to 3 months 0E31d A 58,501 54,317 l.‘
3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 7,458 6,343 E
6 to 9 months 6= 91E A 8,871 4,378 fﬁ
9 to 12 months 9Z 12188 9,128 3,250
Over 12 months HBiE12{8 A 87,995 78,607 ?ﬂé
171,953 146,895 gﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 20 EWEBR K (&)

Carrying values of accounts receivable denominated in Renminbi
approximate their fair values.

As at 31st December 2010, approximately 14% (2009: 16%) of the
accounts receivable was due from one (2009: one) customer. Other
than this, there is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable as the Group has a large number of customers.

As at 31st December 2010, accounts receivable of HK$58,501,000
(2009: HK$54,317,000) were neither past due nor impaired.

As at 31st December 2010, accounts receivable of HK$113,452,000
(2009: HK$92,578,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no
recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these accounts
receivable is as follows:

MARBHEZERERZFEE
BEHENFEMEE -

R-ZZE—ZFEF+_A=+—H
WER KR EI14% (T 1 F .
16%) hE—Z(ZZETNF: — &)
BEPHER BRI ARAEE
BERERLZ BURERTEEFEEER
[E

R-_ZE—ZF+_-_F=+—H" &
I BF X 58,501,000 T ( — T T A
4 54,317,000/ Ju ) BE & & 89 %
R (E o

WN-_E—TE+-_A=+—0
Uy B8 3% 113,452,000/ 7T (—Z T T h
£ : 92,578,000 7T ) E % H3 1B KRR
B WERBHRSZIMPTEHX
RECBEYRFEHE ZFREKE

RZBREBE DT :
Group
]
2010 2009
—=-=z QL LR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
. 3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 7,458 6,343
2 6 to 9 months 6= 91E B 8,871 4,378
§_ 9 to 12 months 9= 1218 A 9,128 3,250
& Over 12 months HBid12{E A 87,995 78,607
©
E 113,452 92,578
<

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

During the year, no impairment loss on accounts receivable (2009:
HK$19,522,000) was recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of
accounts receivable mentioned above.

FA-RBREESBEREESR (ZF
T N 19,522,000 7T) R4 & 1B
mRER

AEEMEEREZERNEERRS L
SRt e W BR R 2 BRI (B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

21 PLEDGED/CHARGED BANK DEPOSITS AND

21 S\ FHRETERU

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FEREBRRESZEEY
Group Company
& A H
2010 2009 2010 2009
=L T NG BEb e — T N F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET FET
Cash at bank andonhand $E71T R FEHIE & 2,344,666 6,714,577 20,449 21,303
Short-term bank deposits 45 83 #4717 2k 352,609 46 — —
2,697,275 6,714,623 20,449 21,303
Less: pledged/charged B B R
bank deposits |ITFER (123,671) (168,479) — —
Cash and cash equivalents R& MBS EEY 2,573,604 6,546,144 20,449 21,303

As at 31st December 2010, the Group’s cash at bank of
approximately HK$76,908,000 (2009: HK$107,231,000) was
charged by certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage
facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group's properties.

As at 31st December 2010, the Group’s cash at bank of
approximately HK$14,095,000 (2009: HK$13,890,000) was
restricted due to pending litigations.

The carrying amounts of pledged/charged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

RZZE—ZTF+=ZA=+—H" &
& B iR 1738 £ 4976,908,0007%8 7T (—
T T A4F 107,231,000/ 7T) B K 7
FTETRIT UWERITEEABEM
AEBMEERETIRBEER -

RNZE—ZFE+-_A=+—H K
= E A H#14,0950008 T (—E=
L4 £ 13,890,000 7t ) Z $R1T3H &
Th A BRR R RA T 52 BRI o

BER MIRROFRARAS R
ReEBYMIEEEDINATIER
S8

Group Company
& A

2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-2F Ryl —F 25 bl
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FERT TEIT FERT THETT
Renminbi AR EE 2,645,247 6,157,092 — —
US dollar EV 6,598 436,921 449 11,719
Hong Kong dollar BT 45,430 120,610 20,000 9,584
2,697,275 6,714,623 20,449 21,303

Cash and cash equivalents include presale proceeds of
HK$566,675,000 (2009: HK$825,025,000), which are to be used
for purchases of construction materials and payments of
construction fee of the relevant property projects when approval
from local State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau is obtained.

RehREZEYREBREMEK
18 566,675,000 ;L (= T = N, &F -
825,025,000/ 70) * 2 E B &
B RE L ERERE B ER
ARBEEM AN E@YWETEE
ZEEBR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) % & B %R & M 5% (48)

22 LAND COST PAYABLE

23

22 FEAF L Hh R A

Group
- d
2010 2009
—E-BF —TThF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FA&T
Land premium payable EAtEES 79,592 75,689
Land compensation payable J& - 1 Hb 7 (2 3R 295,857 497,757
375,449 573,446
Less: Amount due within one year B RARBEBEEAR —FA
included in current liabilities BEZ4%E (264,271) (302,418)
111,178 271,028

Land cost payable is denominated in Renminbi. Their carrying
amounts approximate fair values.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The ageing analysis of accounts payable (including amounts due to
related companies of trading nature) is as follows:

ENEHRARNARKFE RE
BERAFEES -

23 IR

FEMBRRZ BRI AT (BRI T RE
RAIBARZMUE 2R AT :

Group
&
2010 2009
—2-%5 Il Vi
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T

0-3 months 0Z31& A

5,645,612 2,941,424

As at 31st December 2010, approximately HK$2,534,380,000 (2009:
HK$2,471,757,000) of accounts payable were due to certain related
companies in respect of property construction fees (Note 41(b)).

Accounts payable are denominated in Renminbi. Their carrying
amounts approximate fair values.

R_ZE—TF+_A=+—H" &
- BR 3P #92,534,380,00078 70 (=
T 14 1 2,471,757,0005% TT) A& #L )
XREBRENETHEARNZER
(Mt 5£41(b)) °

FEMBRRIAA R E - BREERER
FERE °
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24 BORROWINGS 24 (£ 8
Group Company
&5 A7

2010 2009 2010 2009
—EZ-Z§ EEEEal — T — T4 BElaics
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T THExT T

Non-current FE 7 B
Bank borrowings RITEE 17,349,948 7,439,901 — =
Senior notes BhREE 2,697,576 2,676,697 2,697,576 2,676,697
20,047,524 10,116,598 2,697,576 2,676,697

Current B

Bank borrowings R1THEE 3,671,919 4,062,575 — =
Convertible bonds ] ¥ i & & — 2,169,685 — 2,169,685
3,671,919 6,232,260 — 2,169,685
Total borrowings MEE 23,719,443 16,348,858 2,697,576 4,846,382

In November 2005, the Company issued 8.125% senior notes with
an aggregate nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,730,000,000), for a total consideration of
approximately HK$2,733,182,000. The senior notes mature in seven
years (November 2012) and are repayable at their nominal value of
US$350,000,000. The Company will be entitled at its option to
redeem all or a portion of the senior notes on and after 9th
November 2009 at the redemption prices specified in the offering
circular, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.

The senior notes recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

RZZEZTRF+—H ARAEEIT
#A T B 350,000,000 7T (4 #8 &
72,730,000,0007% 7T ) 2 8.125[F &
EEE - BREHD AK2733,182,000
BT BAEBREFR(ZZT —
—FE+—A)E S YARE@E
350,000,000 LB & - XA A A
BEER_TZTAF+—ANB
NBREEBHAMETAZERE N
LEEERB A HEMNERTZHE)
BRI E2HLBOEBERRE -

REERBRBERZBEERWT

2010 2009

—E—ZF —ETAF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

At 1st January nN—HA—H 2,676,697 2,663,312
Amortisation of premium HiEE (526) (516)
Amortisation of issue costs B SN IT RN 13,085 11,857
Exchange difference lE X =% 8,320 2,044
At 31st December R+=-_A=+—H 2,697,576 2,676,697
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #r&

24 BORROWINGS (Continued)

The senior notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries and are secured by the capital stock of the subsidiaries.
The net assets of these subsidiaries were approximately
HK$4,717,647,000 (2009: HK$4,026,468,000) as at 31st December
2010.

On 2nd February 2007, the Company completed the issue of
RMB1,830,400,000 aggregate principal amount of USD settled Zero
Coupon Convertible Bonds. The bonds mature in three years (February
2010) from the issue date at 104.59% of the nominal value or can
be converted into ordinary shares of the Company on or after 14th
March 2007 at a conversion price of HK$30.08 per share at a fixed
exchange rate of RMB0.9958 to HK$1.

On 2nd February 2010, the Group redeemed all the outstanding
convertible bonds at approximately US$280,418,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,914,415,000).

The maturity analysis of the borrowings is as follows:

Bank borrowings Senior notes

RITEE BARE
2010 2009 2010
—F-%F Rk —F-2F blyka

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

Far REIA TER

BA RS ER AR = ()

24 B8 @)

BEAZEAETHELAR LR KM
m%##%-iMWEBﬂZ%$
EEB - R_ZT—TF+ A=+
= EA#WJ% N ﬂZéﬁEaﬂE%’U
#4,717,647,000 %8 L ( ZEZ N F -
4,026,468,00078 7T) °

R-ZBETLHE_A-H' AR
AIERBETUETENMNZTEA
BRES AEBEAEREXARE

1,830,400,0007T ° #% 5 & % B & 17
BHBF =F®(ZZE—ZF=_A)
R EFE2104.59% 58 sk el A —
EZE+F A+ HBExKANEBIETR
30.08 7 7T 2 MR B E A A A 7 &
AR HEEEX B ARK®09958
TLHRIBTT -

RZE—ZTF-_AZH AEEI
#7280,418,000% 7T (X HHE R AR
1,914,415,000 7T ) f& [B] 7 & 141 o & [E]
B AR (E 5 o

EEZEHIFWT

Convertible bonds Total
ARRES Foh

2010 2009 2010 2009

=t Ll TENF kRl —TTF

HKS'000 ERRRCISSOON  HKS'000 SIS
TAT TR TAT

Within one year —FR 3,671,919 4,062,575 —_ — 2,169,685 3,671,919 6,232,260
Betweenoneand —F %
two years W F A 5,626,010 1,907,019 2,697,576 —_ — 8,323,586 1,907,019
Betweentwoand ~WEZRE
five years hER 8,862,973 4,770,621 — 2,676,697 — — 8,862,973 7,447,318
Over five years BRAF 2,860,965 762,261 — — — — 2,860,965 762,261
21,021,867 11,502,476 2,697,576 2,676,697 — 2,169,685 23,719,443 16,348,858
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24 BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies with the respective weighted average effective
interest rates:

24

B BHRRME (&)

R-4C )

EERAMEATIEE REULRE
EEZERMBEFHNELT

2010 2009
—E-ZF e =
Effective Effective
HK$’000 interest rate HK$'000 interest rate
FHER BB = FAET B R A =
Renminbi AR
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 21,021,867 5.8% 11,502,476 6.2%
— Convertible bonds — AR ESH — — 2,169,685 7.0%
US dollar eI
— Senior notes —BERE 2,697,576 8.6% 2,676,697 8.6%
The carrying amounts and the fair values of the borrowings are as BEEZEREERAFEDT :
follows:
Carrying amount Fair values
FREE A¥E
2010 2009 2010 2009
=2 20 —TT G ekl —TT G
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT THET FAT
Bank borrowings RITEE 21,021,867 11,502,476 21,092,979 11,608,873
Senior notes BrRER 2,697,576 2,676,697 2,621,289 2,711,358
Convertible bonds IR E 5 — 2,169,685 — 1,812,670
23,719,443 16,348,858 23,714,268 16,132,901

The fair values of the bank borrowings are based on cash flows
discounted using rates based on the Group’s average borrowings
rate of 5.4% to 5.9% per annum as at the year end (2009: 4.9% to
5.7% per annum), depending on the currency denomination of the
borrowings.

As at 31st December 2010, the Group’s banking facilities were

secured by:

(i)  the Group's land cost of approximately HK$90,069,000 (2009:
HK$14,450,000);

REK BITEENQAFENDRE
AEBFEHEEFFE54FE £59
E(ZZEZTNF  FFEK49FE E57
B)EFZME(RTEEEKESE)
ECZHERSRER -

RZZE-—ZTF+_A=+—H &
SEZRITEETIATIERRIE
"

(i) AREE#90,069,000/8 T (=&
T 1L £E 14,450,000 7T) 2 +
b AR AN
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24 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(i) the Group’'s hotel properties of approximately
HK$1,946,733,000 (2009: HK$90,104,000);

(i) the Group’'s properties under development for sale of
approximately HK$4,055,569,000 (2009: HK$4,677,986,000);

(iv) the Group’s completed properties for sale of approximately
HK$1,623,111,000 (2009: HK$2,067,747,000);and

(vy the Group’s investment properties of approximately
HK$4,137,958,000 (2009: HK$504,743,000).

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 25

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same tax authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

24 BE &)

(iiy ZANEE491,946,733,0007% 7T (—
T ZE A, 5 90,104,000 7T ) 2
EIE )

(iiiy 7%= ® #94,055,569,0005% 7T (=
T E N 4F : 4,677,986,0005 7T )
ZAHEEZERERYE:

(iv) ZANEE#%1,623,111,0007 7T (=
£ E N, 4F : 2,067,747,0003 7T)
ZAHEEZEERME &

(v) ZANEE4%4,137,958,00078 7T (=
T T N4 1 504,743,000 1) 2
WEWE -

i SE Fr 13 B

EXERBAEERBBEEASTIA
BERBEAG A B AITER
EREHEMEEMSHER —RB
WMEER HAOMERHE - BEFES
BT

Group
3
2010 2009
—E-ZEF —ETAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Deferred tax assets: BEEFRIBE E
— Deferred tax assets to be — R+ @ ARKE 2
recovered after more than B EEE
twelve months 165,205 139,318
— Deferred tax assets to be —BRA+-@AARkEZ
recovered within twelve months EEFIAEE 2,336 51,969
167,541 191,287
Deferred tax liabilities: EEFRIBAE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be — R+ @A RERZ
realised after more than BEEHEEE
twelve months (4,963,673) (4,015,543)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be —EBRT_EARNER 2
realised within twelve months ELEFIBAE (587,455) (487,200)
(5,551,128) (4,502,743)

(5,383,587) (4,311,456)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #r

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

=

1

B BHRRME (&)

25 IERIEMEBH 2

The net movements in deferred taxation are as follows: RAEFEE FE ST
Group
=
2010 2009
—E—=F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Assets/(liabilities) EE/(BafE)
At 1st January nw—A—H (4,311,456) (3,716,724)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEK B A A (521) 427,335
Recognised in the consolidated RizEHEmE
income statement (Note 33) R (FsE33) (926,041) (1,058,758)
Credited directly to equity (Note 28) B B8 0 &= (P 5% 28) 24,880 47,106
Exchange differences P 5 =58 (170,449) (10,415)
At 31st December R+-—_A=+—H (5,383,587) (4,311,456)

The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,

without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

EEMBEEENEREHBRABZE
8 (Y &E BAAR BDAE R R Z &8
H#E)mT :

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
Revaluation surplus
EMAE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERx FAT
At 1st January ®n—H—H (4,502,743) (3,890,102)
Recognised in the consolidated RiFBIERK
income statement 2 (895,668) (1,089,538)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A A — 440,466
Credited directly to equity (Note 28) BB infE = (K 5E28) 24,880 47,106
Exchange difference PE 5 == (177,597) (10,675)
At 31st December R+—_A=+—8H (5,551,128) (4,502,743)
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25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 25 IEEMRBHR @)
Deferred tax assets EEKIEEE

Tax losses

BEER
2010 2009
—E—ZF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1st January N—H—H 191,287 173,378

Recognised in the consolidated RiFEERKER

income statement (30,373) 30,780
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT (521) (13,131)
Exchange difference & =58 7,148 260
At 31st December R+-—_A=+—8 167,541 191,287

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2010, the Group
did not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$227,280,000 (2009: HK$183,879,000) in respect of tax losses
amounting to approximately HK$1,078,801,000 (20009:
HK$893,802,000).

Tax losses amounting to approximately HK$579,732,000 (2009:
HK$428,256,000) are expiring from 2011 through 2015. The
remaining tax losses do not have expiry dates.

As at 31st December 2010, deferred tax liabilities of
HK$1,369,210,000 (2009: HK$767,918,000) have not been
recognised for withholding tax on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries, as these earnings are expected to be reinvested.

EIERLTE B EE Ty R B AR A B S ) 25
A] 3% i oK 2R FE 2R B0 B & 3R sk P
HEEOBBEEEBERR R —
TEFE+_A=+—H A&EEHITE
LR T8 5 18 #91,078,801,000%8 7T (—
T T AL 4F 1 893,802,000 7T) FERIE
T i 1B & EE 49227,280,0007% T (=
T 1,4 © 183,879,0008 7T) °

5 #9579,732,000 T (—Z T T N
4 : 428,256,000 JT) 2 Bt TH 5 1B 15
A E——FE T —AFHHEE
e HAHIEEEREERER -

R—ZEBE—ZFF+-_A=+—HB" K
SEHMARE THBE AR RED
BANBHAHREREEHBEERE
1,369,210,000 & o ( = T & 1, F -
767,918,000 7T) - [RE ALt & &7
BEBEAEBRE -
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26 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES 26 XA IEERE
Group Company
58 NG|

2010 2009 2010 2009
S == BRI —=2)5
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
27 gl T IR

Hong Kong profits tax R B ENED

payable 3,425 19,659 — —
Mainland China corporate [ {5t AR [B0 K B 1 2

income tax payable Frig %t 692,742 852,035 17,783 16,317
Mainland China land JE AT AR B K e 3,

appreciation tax payable TEM 3,946,836 3,485,643 — —

4,643,003 4,357,337 17,783 16,317
27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 B
Number of
ordinary
shares Par value
LTEREAE H{E
‘000 HK$'000
Tz FA&T

At st January 2009 R-_ZTNF—H—H 1,472,368 147,237
Issue of shares TR

— Placements — e 120,000 12,000
At 31st December 2009 R_ETAE+-_A=+—H 1,592,368 159,237
At 1st January 2010 RZE—ZFF—F—H 1,592,368 159,237
Issue of shares TR

— Placements — e 185,461 18,546
Repurchase of own shares A RNEGi ) (25,462) (2,546)
At 31st December 2010 R-F—FF+-_A=+—H 1,752,367 175,237
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27 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000
shares (2009: 2,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HK$0.1 per
share (2009: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

In February 2010, the Company repurchased 25,462,000 shares for
approximately HK$270,298,000. These shares were subsequently
cancelled.

In March 2010, the Company issued 185,461,463 shares at
HK$14.62 per share, totaling approximately HK$2,711,447,000 as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited (see Note 41(g)).

The Company has an employee share options scheme, under which
it may grant options to employees (including executive directors of
the Company) to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a
limit that the total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the share options schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The exercise price will
be determined by the Company’s board of directors and shall at
least be the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of offer of the options, (i) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the options, (iii) the net asset value
per share as determined in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and with reference to the latest published
audited financial statements in the annual report or the latest
published unaudited interim financial information in the interim
report (whichever is more recent) of the Group on the date of offer
of the relevant options; and (iv) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares of HK$0.1 each. This employee share options scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from 2002 up to 2012.

There was no share option granted and exercised during the years
ended 31st December 2010 and 31st December 2009.

As at 31st December 2010 and 31st December 2009, there were no
outstanding share options.

A T 8 % 48 21 4 2,000,000,000 A%
(= Z Z A, 4 : 2,000,000,000 A% )
REEINET(ZEENE: )
0NABIL) 2R TBEEITKRHD
HE SRR -

R_E—ZFTF_-F AR RIEDO
25,462,0004% i 15 + X {& 49270,298,000
BT S EIRTE -

RZE—ZTF=F KAQal &7
185,461,463 1% A% 7 - % 14.62 7%
JT & £ #92,711,447,000 T 0 Th
EAKBEBRBKRIEHWERRA A
100% BRER 2 NRE(BLHEMFE
41(e))

AREE—REEBRETS &
t ARAEAAES (BEARAH
TER)REBREURBARAMK
N ERARFERESE A
ERBERTEZBRETATR
RETIBNBE THEEBAR
AN E BT 230% ° 1T(EE
HEARRESEET Y HAD
RTImEZESE  ()AREK
RIEHEBRER 2T E ()R
ERREBEEERMNAERS A
AR A R 2 F W E (i) X2
HERBREER RRBBYH
BEEMFAELL2EAKERON
TNEZEFARELV BT RRIK
MET R AREAREEZT
HUMBERABROHERE)RE
EEBREERE: RivvARA RN
EE(FR01ETT) - N 8 B A
HER-_TE_FE_FT-—_F2
TEHRGRAR -

REE-_Z—ZF+-_A=+—H
EZEEANF+_A=+—"BItHF
[ BEBREER LT AITE -

W-B—FE+-A=+—HR=
EEAF+-A=+—8 BEF
748 2 AR -
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28 RESERVES

Share redemption
premium reserve

&
458

HKS$'000 HK$'000

TRT

Balance at 1st January 2010

R=3-3F-A—8

Capital

ARE

A RERED)
HK$'000
TR TR

Statutory
reserve (i)

28 f##&

revaluation
reserve (jii)
EEEMR
1% 4R i)
HK$'000
TER

Group
£8

Assets Convertible  Currency

bonds translation
reserve differences
GE
BHEHE =5
HK$'000 HK$000
TER TET

B EMERX

Retained
earnings

RERF
HK$'000
TR

Total

At
HK$'000
TER

ZHEH 8,232,259 — 161,117 2,507,043 227,734 2,366,633 14,539,720 28,034,506
Currency translation differences ~ S#E X 2% - - - - — 1,215,646 — 1,215,646
Profit for the year FEEA - - - - - - 5,889,412 5,889,412
Issue of shares BI1R A
— Placements — R 2,692,900 — — — — — — 2,692,900
Repurchase of own shares BEA H R 7 (131,634) 2,546 - - - - (138,664)  (267,752)
Acquisition of additional equity E-SWE-BHREAR
interest of a subsidiary 2 B iE — — — — — — (34,002) (34,002)
Redemption of convertible bonds & B A] 2 & (& % — — — —  (221,738) — 227,734 —
Fair value gain on available-for-sale ATt H & BT & & 2
financial assets (Note 16) DNFE Y (HE16) - - - 542,775 - - — 542,775
Realised upon disposal of HERENENER
properties held for sale (ii) 38 (i) — — - (86,447) — — — (86,447)
Deferred tax (Note 25) R A (B 5E25) — — — 24,880 — — — 24,880
Balance at 31st December 2010 A\_E—TF
+tZA=+—RHZE&H 10,793,525 2,546 161,117 2,988,251 — 3,582,279 20,484,200 38,011,918
Group
£
Assets  Convertible Currency
Share Statutory  revaluation bonds  translation Retained
premium reserve (i) reserve (iii) reserve  differences earnings Total
BESR AR BEER
RIDEE EEREE) REG) BHFRE 8 REERN @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT THT FTHT FHT THT THT
Balance at 1st January 2009 R-ZZTNE
—A—Bz&% 6,664,596 161,117 1,659,834 227,734 2,278,132 9,041,244 20,032,657
Currency translation differences EMERES — — — — 88,501 — 88,501
Profit for the year EEHA — — — — — 5799573 5,799,573
Dividend relating to 2008 BR-ZEZNFZRE — — — — — (154,599)  (154,599)
Dividend relating to 2009 BR-ZZTNAFZRE = = = = = (146,498)  (146,498)
Issue of shares BITRG
— Placements — & 1,584,000 — — — — — 1,584,000
Share issue expenses R HEITRY (16,337) — — — — — (16,337)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale  AJEtHEHBEEZ
financial assets (Note 16) AT EYE (EE1e) — — 1,082,325 — — — 1,082,325
Realised upon disposal of HEREHENER
properties held for sale (ii) B3 (ii) — — (282,222) — — — (282,222)
Deferred tax (Note 25) TR A (KT E25) — — 47,106 — — — 47,106
Balance at 31st December 2009 R-_ZEENEF
+tZA=+—-Rz#&H% 8232259 161,117 2,507,043 227,734 2,366,633 14,539,720 28,034,506
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28 RESERVES (continued) 28 fRE )

Company
NG|
Capital Currency
Share  redemption  Convertible translation Retained

premium reserve bonds reserve differences earnings Total
EXHE A& R %

R 135 8 G B RE EXERE REEF @st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TERT THET TERT TET

At 1st January 2010 RZZE-ZF

—HR—H 8,232,259 — 227,734 789,760 596,215 9,845,968
Currency translation ERERZHE
differences — — — 426,900 — 426,900
Loss for the year FEER — — — — (159,509) (159,509)
Redemption of BRI RRES
convertible bonds — — (227,734) — 227,734 —
Issue of shares BT —
— Placements —iE 2,692,900 - — — — 2,692,900
Repurchase of EAEkNES )
own shares (131,634) 2,546 — — (138,664) (267,752)
At 31st December 2010 R =ZE—ZF
+-A=t+—H 10,793,525 2,546 — 1,216,660 525,776 12,538,507
At 1st January 2009 RZZTNEF
—A—H 6,664,596 — 227,734 779,207 278,372 7,949,909
Currency translation BEHRENRZR
differences — — — 10,553 — 10,553
Profit for the year FEHF — — — — 618,940 618,940
Issue of shares BITRG
— Placements — s 1,584,000 — — — — 1,584,000
Share issue expenses & {3 171 % (16,337) — — — — (16,337)
= Payment of dividends %/ & — — — = (301,097) (301,097)
; At 31st December 2009 R -—ZZ N F
qu- +-A=+—H 8,232,259 — 227,734 789,760 596,215 9,845,968
o
3
S Note: B et -
<
0] As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s subsidiaries (i) F2FE A B K BESE R ATET B - K 2 B R
E established and operated in Mainland China are required to appropriate a BIARBER 7 RAZE 2 W1 BB 1 Al 78 B K b
_g portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory B 18 5 FI| (A 85 B 1T F 18 18 ) A 1%
a reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by their respective H—BREEEFEBERLEEFRES
% boards of directors. The statutory reserves can be utilised to offset prior year WETHSEEFSET < XEMIEAH
< losses or be utilised for the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise TEHR B FIEE B BIEFTARR
‘qc'; expansion fund can be utilised for the development of business operations. MEXEBREREDAIFHIERREERE - &
£ When the statutory reserves reach an amount equal to 50% of the registered EEFEEDEERA R BN B A FliE
2 capital of the Company’s subsidiaries, further appropriation needs not be made. M EAK50% .2 % BERF 15 B H#E—HIE
g AL o
8
5
I
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28 RESERVES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Upon completion of the acquisition of Guangzhou Nonggongshang Construction
and Development Company Limited in 2007, Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Real
Estate Limited (“GZQREL") became a subsidiary of the Group and the fair value
gain in respect of the 69.5% interest in GZQREL previously held by the Group (as
a jointly controlled entity) of approximately HK$2,180,096,000 net of tax has
been accounted for as an asset revaluation reserve directly in equity on
acquisition. Upon subsequent delivery of the properties developed by GZQREL,
which represents partial disposal of the business of GZQREL, the related portion
of the asset revaluation reserve is released to the consolidated income statement.

Assets revaluation reserve represents revaluation reserve of available-for-sale
financial assets, and fair value gain in respect of 69.5% interest in GZQREL
previously held by the Group (see (i) above).

29 OTHER INCOME/GAINS, NET

AN
=a

28

29

e R )

RE
Hiat - (4B)

(i) REFELFZHREEMNTEIESE
EEREFERARI([BIEAA)E B
M KT 15 2555 40 A R 22 7] ([15 #5)) B
BAREB BRG] NEBLFFE
EE(1ER— AR # HE2)1169.5%
HEas 2 2N F(E Y25 492,180,096,0005% 7T
(B #E) B R FE s B B w5l
(EEERGERGE - EE BTG EE
B ERF(IEHEBEHF P EE) &
EEGREL RS SEARE B
fg °

BEEERHFERIRYENFEEERT
B A 55 (2] 5% B P 45 18 #569.5% #E 22 13 F
Bl 282 B #HE (2R LX)

(i)

Hi WA ik 8

2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETHhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FBT
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LENB ARz s
(Note 37(b)) (Mf7E37(b)) 958,217 621,933
Loss on disposal of certain PE—FREBARE TREZ
equity interest in a subsidiary & 18 — (136)
Dividend income % B U A 15,292 31,313
Government grants BT 78 B 149,943 81,496
Fair value gain/(loss) on BAVFEEZBERIEZ
financial assets at fair value MBEEEZ A FEKZE(EE)
through profit or loss 601 (573)
1,124,053 734,033
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) % & B %R & M 5% (48)

30 EXPENSES BY NATURE 30 BMEE S ZBX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing costs and AXBEEERE  HERMHHE
general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: ERA UER—RETERER ' 5

T :
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T FA&T
Advertising costs EAHX 242,174 239,019
Amortisation of land costs + b AR AN 2 Y 5,845 9,409
Auditor’s remuneration % 2R BN & 5,280 5,000
Cost of completed properties sold HEBEEKME KA 8,210,779 6,129,462
Depreciation of properties MERZETE
and equipment 118,922 91,250
Direct operating expenses arising ATENRENEEEZ
from investment properties that BEELERX
— generate rental income —EEXHSKRA 5,489 532
— did not generate rental income —WEEAHESKRA 2,531 2,430
Employees’ benefits costs (including & B 1& F p <
Directors’ emoluments) (Note 31) (BREEMS) (HRE31) 445,466 400,674
Loss on disposal of properties HEMERZHEBSE
and equipment 1,836 995
Net exchange (gain)/loss (included BN (W) BB FRE
in general and administrative GFA—REITERER)
expenses) (82,612) 442
Operating lease rental in MEZKERERS
respect of premises 30,975 25,309

31 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS (INCLUDING 31 EERARS(BIEESE
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) <€)

2010 2009
—z-z5 QELEVE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR it

- Annual Report 2010

Salaries and allowances e KER 343,394 301,826
Sales commission and bonus HEME RIEA 31,607 43,992
Pension costs SN AN
— Defined contribution plans — R EHERGTE 70,547 54,810
— (Write-back of provision)/ — KRGS (BERRD) BE

provision for
long-service payment (82) 46

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

445,466 400,674
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31 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

31 EERBFARA(BIEES
€)=

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a
defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of the Group (the
employer) and its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. The monthly
contributions of each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HK$1,000 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in mainland China, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in mainland China. The Group’s employees make
monthly contributions to the plans at approximately 8% of the
relevant income (comprising salaries, allowances and bonus),
while the Group contributes 12% to 22% of such income and
has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions
beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable
to the retired employees.

AEBEEBREBEREEERHESZ
H—TEH— U B ERAEE
L EBMHAEE - Aasl A
BerEl([RELTE] R
BaEeHE A5EE(EX)
MEEESBERAGNEATE
EBMAESEBR%ZESR
WAZ5%MmZaT8l1ER A #
HeRBEREEMEZEAH
2 EBR&A1,000087C Mm%
71,0007 7T 2 XA E 8 FE
MHE -

R B KR Z R RROER
FIRE AEESERTEKX
BErRBEEEZE - EHBERED
ZENREE - AEEEEEA
REMBRA(BEFHE =
BE R AEAL) #18% % 51 &1 ¢F 1 #t
o AEEAREZFRA12%
E22%EH K o BRE LK
S AEEYEEMHERR
RENKREE - BREHZR
RetBlB AN ERKER 22
BEARE -

—T-THFH

SEAREEBERAR -
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31 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS (INCLUDING 31 EEBFARNA(BIREES

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (continued) <) )
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) EEE £
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st B2 ZF+_-_A=+—
December 2010 is set out below: BIEFE SEF 27
T

Employer's
Share- contribution

Salaries and based to pension

Name of Director allowances payments scheme
N &) E31)
RER Birg
EEpE e HEREE 2Z2HEMS HEZHX At
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THERT THET THERT THERT THER

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Au Wai Kin BMEZLEE — 240 — 12 252

Mr. Chen Chang Ying (i) P = 48 2 A () — 385 — — 385

Mr. Chu Mang Yee RAEMKEE — - - - -

Mr. Liao Ruo Qing (ii) BEEEEG) — 2,951 — 22 2,973

Mr. Xiang Bin DT e — 2,000 - 12 2,012

Mr. Xue Hu BREE — 2,951 — 22 2,973

Ms. Zhao Mingfeng g+ — 3,000 — 12 3,012

— 11,527 — 80 11,607
Independent BIFHTES
non-executive directors

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David EELAE 240 — — — 240
= Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver & & & % 4 240 — — — 240
g Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Phillip (i) 5% 4 1 55 4 (i 240 _ _ _ 240
E Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, BB A
& Aaron (iv) 120 — — — 120
E 840 — — — 840
<

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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31 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS (INCLUDING 31 EERANA(BIEES

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (continued) M) @
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st BHE_ETAF+_B=1—
December 2009 is set out below: BIEFE S5 2MaeH7
m

Employer’s

Share- contribution

Salaries and based to pension
Name of Director Fees allowances payments scheme Total

LURR 12 XY

RER EikE
Esps e HEREE ZEAMN FEZHEX 5t

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TET TET TATL TAR

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Au Wai Kin BMEZLE — 240 — 12 252
Mr. Chen Chang Ying (i) B = 482 5 A (i) — 6,785 — 60 6,845
Mr. Chu Mang Yee RAKSLE = — — — —
Mr. Xiang Bin TEWR S E — 2,000 — 12 2,012
Mr. Xue Hu BREE — 1,324 — 54 1,378
Ms. Zhao Mingfeng HHRE4L L — 3,000 — 12 3,012
— 13,349 — 150 13,499
Independent non- BIUKHTES
executive directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE LA 240 — — _ 240
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oilver = % & 240 — — — 240
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Phillip Brdt 8 5 & 240 — _ _ 240
720 — — — 720

 ZE-TEER

IREEER AR

-

8%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #r& B %% R & M 5% (48)

31 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS (INCLUDING 31 EEBFARNA(BREESE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (continued) M=) =)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEM € (2
Note: B
(i) Mr. Chen Chang Ying resigned on 21st January 2010. (0 BRBLEER-FE—FF—F—
+—HBEFHE-
(ii) Mr. Lin Ruo Qing was appointed on 21st January 2010. (ii) BEEEFEER - E—FF— =
+—HEZF-
(i) Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip resigned on 2nd July 2010. (i) At BEAER-—FE—FTFL /=
HEE -
(iv) Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron was appointed on 2nd July 2010. (iv) BEEBHEAER-_TE—FF+H =
HEZE -
During the year, Mr. Chu Mang Yee waived emoluments of FRARERETEREMS
HK$240,000 (2009: HK$240,000). 240,000/ 7T( = F F 7L & :

240,000/ 7T) °

(c) Five highest paid individuals (0 BEREFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AFEAKRERERERHAL
Group for the year include four (2009: three) directors whose BREOA(ZEEFAF: =4)
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The EE BIEIZMESER EXA
emoluments paid and payable to the remaining one (2009: 2HZ AR B REM
two) individuals are as follows: TEH-B(ZFTAF W
Z)EMALZBMEHT -
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
= FB T
% Salaries and allowances 4 KERL 2,272 3,982
§ Employer’s contribution to BEHERSTE 2 #E K
= pension scheme 2 14
=)
§ 2,274 3,996
8 The emoluments fell within the following band: Bl /> F LA T4 A
E
g 2010 2009
3 = St —TThf
£ Number of Number of
£ individuals individuals
o
g ERIALEE ERIALTEE
% HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T & 2,000,000% 7T — 1
é HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T & 2,500,000% 7T 1 1
ag
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) % & B %% R & M 5% (48)

32 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 32 BF iU A KK A

2010 2009
—E—-=F —EThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Interest expense: FERAXZ:
— on bank loans wholly repayable —HARAFARABHEEZ
within five years RITER 989,928 743,848
— on bank loans not wholly —TNERTFEABHEEZ
repayable within five years RITE 38,685 28,714
— on senior notes wholly repayable —EHBRAFABHEEZ
within five years BELEERE 234,864 231,856
— on convertible bonds wholly —EBARAFARABHEEZ
repayable within five years AR & 5 4,852 143,990
Total borrowing costs incurred Frw R 2 BB E R A 1,268,329 1,148,408
Less: Amount capitalised as part of the i : BIEERERFTMEZ
cost of properties under B 4D P AN 2 FRIE
development (1,015,022) (814,769)
253,307 333,639
Interest income from banks RIT A E WA (17,039) (13,551)
Net finance costs BF 15 B AN VF R 236,268 320,088
33 TAXATION 33 BiIE
2010 2009
—E—ZF ZEThF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Taxation consists of: I8 B 1T
Current tax 7N BB 18
Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) B ENEE (5 @) (1.599) 3,397
Mainland China corporate AR B K B 1 AT 1S R (BT 3E ()
income tax (Note (b)) 1,034,209 778,360
Mainland China land appreciation R R A Pz - b 32 (8 F (BT 5E () =
tax (Note (c)) 591,446 858,868 ﬁ
1,624,056 1,640,625 v
”””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””” iy
Deferred tax i SE R IE I
Mainland China corporate AR B K B b 2 AT 1S R (BT RE(b)) '
income tax (Note (b)) 957,124 1,096,835 E
Mainland China land appreciation F B K [ + 3 3 (B A (3R (0) T‘?—é
tax (Note (c)) (31,083) (38,077)
926,041 1,058,758 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, b
Taxation (Note (d)) 898 (B 22(d)) 2,550,097 2,699,383 @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

33 TAXATION (Continued)

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March
2016. Subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated under
the International Business Companies Act (now the BVI Business
Companies Act, 2004) of the British Virgin Islands, or the BVI
Business Companies Act, 2004 of the British Virgin Islands, and are
not liable to pay any form of taxation in the British Virgin Islands.

Share of the jointly controlled entity’s taxation for the year ended
31st December 2009 of HK$370,308,000 was included in the
consolidated income statement as share of profit of a jointly
controlled entity. There was no share of the jointly controlled entity’s
taxation for the year ended 31st December 2010.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are
subject to Mainland China corporate income tax at the rate of
25% (2009: 25%) for the year ended 31st December 2010.

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including costs of land and development and
construction expenditures.

33 HIE»)

ARREREHMNERERE B
E-T—XNFEZ AL -HBERH
EMBARNBERBELHESH
BEEQRERARBERESH
¥NaE)E2004) KEBELESZ
RBRELHESHEERBNE2004 0 5T
MY MBAINEAERZR
BEZESHIHE-

BHE_ZZEAFT+-_A=+—HL
FE SHZHERTHEERIES
370,308,000/ 7L * WE R G B =
KAVIED ez L REHIE 8 2 %
FMeBHEzEZZTE—ZETFF+_A=+—
BItFEXED(hz LREHE R
g e

FRNBEBFEH 2T ERE
A IR165% (BT A F -
16.5%) F Bt R 4 o

BE_ZT-ZF+_A=1—
BIEFE  RPBAERZR
BEZMBRATIE25%(—
TTNF :25%) 2 BLERF AP
BARECEMFH -

B K PeE 3 A BE 4 g
- B0 & 5 A7 15 338 410
Br AT HIORIE B (848 - & 3
BERZREERA) RRE
E30% £60% B °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #r& BF 7533 ki &E (48)

33 TAXATION (Continued)

33 BIE (&)

(d) The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the (d) ce@mBpBHanEfERBE
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted N B ANKE 35 58 B o A B R A
average tax rate applicable to profits of the group companies BrERcRBENMER 5
as follows: N

2010 2009
—E—FF ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FATT
Profit before taxation K B ﬁf il 8,843,109 8,791,918
Less: Share of profit less loss VAo R A NECID |
of associates B E 1R (1,071) 1,346
Less: Share of loss/(profit) of o R — KRR E R
a jointly controlled entity B8O ) 666 (385,759)
8,842,704 8,407,505
Tax calculated at domestic tax RREB 2% MEABRA
rates applicable to profits MEFE 2HIE
in the respective countries 2,125,355 2,079,192
Income not subject to tax TARB WA (164,899) (121,027)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR S 125,968 57,305
Land appreciation tax AMRBERTTERGBERARZ 2
deductible for calculation of 3 (E F
income tax purposes (140,091) (205,198)
Utilisation of previously B ABERERMNIBEE
unrecognised tax losses (3,049) (118)
Deferred tax asset not recognised AERELEFIBEEE 46,450 68,438
1,989,734 1,878,592
Land appreciation tax + i 2 (E T 560,363 820,791
Taxation 718 2,550,097 2,699,383
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 24% (2009: IR 5E AR E B24% (=
25%). TENE 25%) o

221
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #r& B %% R & M 5% (48)

34 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a
loss of HK$159,509,000 (2009: profit of HK$618,940,000).

35 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

3 ARTFBRERBEAELN
i

AARBEZTEAERMGRER  Hh
&5 48 159,509,000 /& T( — T Z N1
£ 1 % 71618,940,000% 7T) E R AR
AIB SRR N R

35 BIREF
HAR

BREARBNIDREAR QA RER
BAREREMBEAFAEETER

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company (HK$'000)
Weighted average number of

(F&T)

ordinary shares in issue ('000) (F%)

Basic earnings per share
(HK$ per share)

FREABN (BEETT)

RRE AR B ARG5S T

ERTERRZ NEFHE

W&z hniE 15 8%
2009
—EThF
5,889,412 5,799,573
1,717,330 1,539,437
3.43 3.77

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The convertible
bonds are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares,
and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense less
the related tax effect. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the conversion of convertible bonds.

AAEEREBERNE DHERTT
EBRZMEFIBELAE U
BRABEAHEE N 2 EBRES
ZEmopABREESFME BE
FBERBRERESE LBKE B
AN EMEN S HNRE BB
FEMARRE - U LA T EFEZ
B0 BB AR ER L B AT R RE &7
mE T ROBBETHLL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) % & B %% R & M 5% (48)

35 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 35 BREF @
Diluted (continued) B8
2009
—EENF
Profit attributable to equity holders RNRATRERFB AL EF
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#&mT) 5,889,412 5,799,573
Interest expense on convertible bonds ARRES 2B HAX
(net of tax) (HK$'000) (B BLIE) (FAB L) 3,760 110,364
Profit for calculation of diluted STESREERRN 2 R T
earnings per share (HK$'000) (F# 1) 5,893,172 5,909,937
Weighted average number of ordinary EETEBR 2 INEFIIE
shares in issue ('000) (F1%) 1,717,330 1,539,437
Adjustments for shares to be S K PR B IR AT iR
issued on conversion of BEEH T T 2RO (FR)
convertible bonds ("000) 5,357 61,108
Weighted average number of FESREERN
ordinary shares for diluted TmARnE T e (FR)
earnings per share ("000) 1,722,687 1,600,545
Diluted earnings per share FREERF (FRET)
(HK$ per share) 3.42 3.69
36 DIVIDENDS 36 B2
2010 2009
225 ZEENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FATT
Interim dividend paid of nil ENFHAREEREART ST
(2009: HK$0.092) (ZZTZNHF :0.09287T)
per ordinary share — 146,498
Proposed final dividend of IR KRR EEFRE®AR017158 T
HK$0.1715 (2009: nil) (ZEZhF - ZTHT)
per ordinary share 300,531 — W
tH_
300,531 146,498 *ﬁw
iy
I
The proposed final dividends have to be approved by shareholders at BIRABR AT FEBERRR :
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting subsequent to the year BEBRRBFAEG LiLE - R-F
end. The financial statements as at 31st December 2010 have not —TFET A=t HMMBRE
reflected such dividend payable. W AR BRA B

BEAREERRAR
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37 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH

FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #r& B %% R & M 5% (48)

37 REBRERERME

() BR&(FR) EEZ2RE

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Profit before taxation B 75 A1 4t A 8,843,109 8,791,918
Adjustments for: HHEE
— Interest income —F 2 g A (17,039) (13,551)
— Finance costs — B F& kAR 253,307 333,639
— Dividend income — R EWA (15,292) (31,313)
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ — & [ B A 7 Utz (958,217) (621,933)
— Loss on disposal of certain —HER—HWBARET
equity interest in a subsidiary Mg 2 &R — 136
— Share of loss/(profit) of a jointly — — {5 — R L RIEHIEE 2
controlled entity B8 CiF) 666 (385,759)
— Share of profit less loss of e R (/N b |
associates B E 18 (1,071) 1,346
— Depreciation of properties —WERRETE
and equipment 118,922 91,250
— Loss on disposal of properties —HEMERKREBEEIE
and equipment 1,836 995
— Amortisation of land costs — 3 AR AN £ 5,845 9,409
— Fair value gains on investment —REMERFEWSR
properties (3,795,624) (4,700,097)
— Fair value (gain)/loss on financial —31Z A FEFEBEFIIEZ
assets at fair value through WMBEEZAFAE
profit or loss (M=) E#E (601) 573
— Net exchange (gain)/loss —EN (R, BiEE8E (82,612) 442
Changes in working capital LIEE S EY (RS
(excluding the effects of HENBARIKRER =5
acquisition, disposal of HRARBEZHE)
subsidiaries and
exchange differences
on consolidation):
— Properties under development — A HEZEERIMER
for sale and completed AHEE 2B BX
properties for sale (3,075,071) (563,429)
— Accounts receivable — FE U BR 3k (19,633) (74,131)
— Prepayments for acquisition — U BE £+ 3 2 T RRIA
of land (7,661,085) (1,003,437)
— Prepayments, deposits and —HENRIE EZER
other current assets Himeh & E (707,630) (249,726)
— Accounts payable — RN 2,558,072 2,702
— Land cost payable — JEff £ s pk A 24,939 97,331
— Deferred revenue — R T A (1,934,476) 4,359,799
— Accruals and other payables — FERT A K B At B A 3R 267,854 205,772
Cash (used in)/generated KB () EEZES
from operations (6,193,801) 6,251,936
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37 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 37 ZKEREREXNET @
STATEMENT (Continued)
On 16th March 2010, the Group disposed of 100% equity RZE—ZFEF=ZA+H K
interest in Cheerocean Investments Limited and its subsidiary, EER—Z@EEFLEERNBF
Guangdong He Sheng Taijing Real Estate Company Limited KEERATREKERRE
(collectively the “Cheerocean Group”) to a related party (Note HEAERSEWERRA A
41(e)). The net liabilities of Cheerocean Group at the time of (BB EER]) 2100% &
disposal were as follows: AN 2= (M 5E41(e) - & B

BEREZABEFRNOT

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Total consideration HwRE 1,095,109
Less: Net liabilities disposed of W EHEABEFE
Properties under AftEEZ
development for sale BERPYE 139,945
Deferred tax assets RN IR & BE 521
Other payables H b B T3R8 (142,105)
1,639
Less: Amounts due from R FE R T & B KR
Cheerocean Group (138,531)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A Al e 958,217
Analysis of the net cash flow in HEBESEZ100% M
respect of the disposal of 100% rER BRERE
equity interest in Cheerocean Group: FRZ DT
Consideration RAE 1,095,109
Less: Consideration receivable settled B BIWEEFRBER TS
against part of consideration ERNKEHHEZ
payable for the acquisition WA (E
of Panyu Zhujiang (Note 41(e)) (Mf3E41(e)) (1,095,109)
Net cash flow in respect of the & B F B 2 100% %
disposal of 100% equity interest AEZZHSTREFHE i
in Cheerocean Group — ﬁ
|
it
I
The disposal of 100% equity interest in Cheerocean HEBFEBRERRRAA ¢
Investment Limited was settled against part of the 100% B AR EKRBESIK =
consideration payable for the acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang. IBOERNKREHE - 2K
Net consideration paid of RMB2,386 million was settled by the 8% 5 A K #2,386,000,0007C ﬁﬂg
issuance of the shares of the Company (Note 41(e)). HLR QN BB AT IR 10 ¥ 8 (Bt & ﬁ
41(e)) ° (s
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38 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

38 B ER

Group Company
L | AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
TE-ZF gl cal — T -5 Embldyics
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TAT FEx TAT
Financial guarantees not RN EHRER P IEL
provided for in the BH 2 IS ER
financial statements are N
as follows:
Guarantees given to banks gzt HE B REE W E 2
for mortgage facilities BT EREMHILE
granted to certain buyers & X if [\ $R 77 1
of the Group’s properties ZER 10,501,787 9,980,834 — —
Guarantees given to banks  FLH B A A Z R 1T
for bank borrowings of f&Eimm 1T IEH
subsidiaries Z R — — 13,565,035 6,351,923
Guarantees given to bank  mt — & £ [F 12 ) & 62
for bank borrowings of RITEEEL Z
a jointly controlled entity ER 1,175,185 567,930 1,175,185 567,930
11,676,972 10,548,764 14,740,220 6,919,853
39 PENDING LITIGATION 39 fFREFAA

Summary of litigation instituted by YTO Group Corporation (/1 [E—
#65 [E 45 BR /A A]) against Guangzhou Laureland Property Co.,Ltd. (&
B EREMEFR A7) and Guangzhou Ziyun Village Real Estate
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, in relation to a dispute
over guarantee

In December 2004, YTO Group Corporation (“YTO Group”) and
Guangzhou Laureland Property Co., Ltd. (“Laureland Co”), both
independent third parties entered into an agreement, whereby
Laureland Co agreed to provide a counter-guarantee by pledging its
seven villas as security for repayment in respect of the amount of
RMB127,138,320 under the guarantee provided by YTO Group in
respect of a bank loan obtained by Henan Jian Ye Company. A
balance of RMB93,138,320 was due and payable by Laureland Co
to YTO Group.

TE-—HEEBERARRERYD
MEMEREEHERRRAA LK
SEETHBAREMNERELEE
MWEBRARIREFABE

RN-_ZEZEWE+ - hE—HE
BEERAR(—EEE]) HEMNE
HEEHWEERAA(ZE#EEAR
AINHABNE=F EHFMH
FOEPEBEARRESEAE M
Ht@EREsEfRiERHRER
NEEBE-—HESERTEEXEQA
BRERTERAMBEELSBEARE
127,138,320t 2 E R ZH B A
AEaEN —EEBREBR ARE
93,138,320 7T °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

39 PENDING LITIGATION (continued)

In June 2007, YTO Group, as plaintiff, instituted a proceeding
against Laureland Co, as defendant, in the Intermediate People’s
Court of Luoyang City (“Luoyang Court”), claiming for the payment
of the said balance of RMB93,138,320. In July 2007, YTO Group
issued “supplementary pleadings” adding Guangzhou Ziyun Real
Estate Company Limited (“Ziyun Co”), a subsidiary of the Group a
co-defendant and pleading that certain transfer(s) of assets at an
undervalue be declared void and that the co-defendant be ordered

to repay the said balance.

In August 2007, the Luoyang Court made an injunction to freeze
the sum of RMB11,446,100 in the bank account of Ziyun Co and
the land use rights of certain land situated in Nanan Village,
Zengcheng Xintang Town, Guangzhou Province. In March 2008, the
court released the said land and made an order to freeze the land
use rights of certain other land situated in the same location.

On the basis of the damage arising from the injunction as
aforementioned, Ziyun Co instituted a proceeding in the Luoyang
Court against YTO Group and Laureland Co, pleading that the co-
defendants be injuncted from infringing the rights of Ziyun Co and
seeking compensation for its economic loss of RMB20,000,200.

39

A AR —H5£E{EAR

REA )EC/%B’%_Fﬁqji&j\E/f'}E("/%
%mﬁth%%ﬁ“T%ﬁwi
ANREFDR EREELREHRA
R#93,138320L - RZZEZ L F
A —wm&EEBLMmxLHF] M
AREBETHBEAREMNEKRER
HEBRAR(TEEZEAADAER
WEWERSHA $ﬁF§FL%
EYARBSHERAHEEARBE Lt
R ©

RZZEZELFNA REHERESL
RERENTRITEFBHEARE
11,446,100 7C & iz 7 & M 77 42 3 [@
MEEEEN 2E T T2 T fE

RAE-R-_ZETNF=R LR
B b L3 WS RAEMKE

BoaTHMI M T (ERE -

B4 a0 bt 2R | S BT 2R 2 18
£ REQARNIEB AR R —HE
SEREBREAAREFD EX
ZHI G EERQEEREF MK B L
REERERFELCEBRBIAARKE
20,000,200 7T £ H B (& -
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39 PENDING LITIGATION (continued)

In May 2008, the Luoyang Court heard the proceedings in relation
to YTO Group's claims and ordered that (i) Laureland Co shall repay
the sum of RMB93,138,320 owed to YTO Group, (ii) YTO Group
shall have priority in sums recovered by auction or sale of the
mortgaged properties and (iii) Ziyun Co shall be liable for sums
which Laureland Co may be unable to settle. Ziyun Co appealed
against the decision and applied to set aside the judgement.

In August 2010, the Higher People’s Court of Henan Province
upheld the decision of the Luoyang Court and ordered that Ziyun Co
shall pay the costs of the appeal.

That notwithstanding based on the advice of the Group’s internal
and external legal counsel, the Directors consider that there are
adequate grounds to defend the case and accordingly, the Group
has applied to the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC for a retrial of
the dispute in March 2011. As such, no provision has been made in
these financial statements.

39

FRFER ()
R-TENFLA EBTERE
BER-HBEEZFR TBL()E
RS T m—#EIZ%

AR #93,138,320T - (i) —#5 &
ﬁ%ﬁﬂm”iﬁﬁﬁﬁ%¥ﬁ%
SERRNEERAEAREBED
AIATRERREBECRNIEA L& Erc °
REQAGARIEL EFRBFE

5] 3R o

b

<

2
H*

R-ZZ-—ZFEN\RF - AEESFA
A B 4 45 % 5 A B 9 #DOR IR
SRERQRAXNRE -

BEML REAKE AL RINE
AREFEZER  ARFEFERS
BRI EBRMUERMAIELIAR
AitR-—ZFT——F=  AKEE
AFBESREARZEZRFFEELR
A 40 o B IR R AN B TS R (F
B
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40 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date but not yet
incurred are as follows:

40 =iE

EAREIE

REEERAREEZEARRAX
mr

(a)

Group
£8
2009
—EThF
HK$'000
FATT
Contracted but not provided for BEEHEREE
— Property construction costs —EEEKAK 1,785,112 879,839
— Acquisition of land and equity —EETHRBIREES
interest in certain Mainland 2 b e R AN R e
China entities 6,245,172 169,562
— Capital contribution to a jointly — ¥ —EEREE S
controlled entity (IEREFXE]) 2
(“BJ Dongfangwenhua”) BEARER(HE14)
(Note 14) — 258,400
8,030,284 1,307,801
~ Authorised but not contracted for BEEgRATH
— Acquisition of land and equity —lEETERE TR
interests in certain entities B& 7 HE 25 7,858,919 66,332
— Property construction costs — W FE K AN 3,525,727 3,530,730
11,384,646 3,597,062
19,414,930 4,904,863
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) KREHE&IE

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

AEERZHERBENE 2
TAIEHEEHERZM AL
LHEAE - RETAIEHE
LHAORBRZEERMEE
HEAEMT

Group
-
2009
ZEENF
HK$'000
FAT
Amounts payable T3 E A E A 2 5RIE
— Within one year —— %R 29,959 26,854
— Within two to five years —WMEEZERAFRN 74,285 76,077
— After five years —hF& 40,099 49,129
144,343 152,060

The Company has no operating lease commitment as at 31st
December 2010 (2009: nil).

KRR —_E—ZFF+=-_A=
+ AT ELERERE(Z
TN |E)o

229

- ZE-TEFR
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BB HRRME (&)

40 COMMITMENTS (continued) 40 ﬁ%(%)

(c) Future minimum rental receivable

The Group leased out certain properties under operating leases.
The future minimum rental receivable under non-cancellable

() ARBZEEWVEE

AEERBEEHEELEET
ME-KETAIRMELERE

operating leases is as follows: TRREZEEWESMOT :
Group
=
2010 2009
=t I -—TTAhf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET
Within one year —FR 81,602 53,879
Within two to five years MEZRFENRN 237,929 164,543
After five years fF & 170,792 145,303
490,323 363,725

The Company has no future rental receivable as at 31st
December 2010 (2009: nil).

ARBER-_FB—FTFT+_A=
+— EII?%\EEH?EPKJEH&ZTH@
(ZZ2TNF 8|) -

41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS A BEAETRF

The Company is controlled by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, who owns
approximately 57.5% to 62.83% (2009: 57.5% to 62.18%) of the
Company'’s shares during the year ended 31st December 2010. The
remaining shares are widely held.

The ultimate holding company is Sounda Properties Limited.

(@) The following significant transactions were
carried out with related parties:

Sales of goods and services (note)

ARARARTBMEETEH ERE
E_FT-ZTFF+_A=+—HIHF
[ER %A #57.5% %62.83%( = F
TNF 57.5% £62.18%) AR &l ik
BB THROBEMALEZRES -

REREBRARSHEEXZARAR -

(@ h~

#H

A EEREEALE
ZEEXS:

& & da KR (K1 it)

i

2010 2009
—E—EF —ZEENEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET

Property management services RETHEARICYMEER
to related companies R 7% 5,967 13,919

Property design services to R TFEERT 2 MERE

related companies AR 7% 16,312 19,917
22,279 33,836
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41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 41 B8 TRZ =

(@) The following significant transactions were

(@) FHIIHEBEE AT
carried out with related parties: (Continued) =)

??ZEE*% L (&)

Purchases of goods and services (note) BEEDLRIRE (M)
2009
ZEThF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Property construction services HEQRRECMERERS
from related companies 2,275,708 1,899,903
Property design services from FERNRIEHRCMERTRE
related companies 2,759 13,787
Decoration services from a —EEER R EH R
related company 42,487 39,871
Office rental services from HEARRBRIHAERE
related companies AR 7% 1,203 2,363
Property management services BEARRRZDEEERS
from related companies 1,104 899
Property construction —HAEARRH 2 ERE
supervision services from EBRS
a related company 6,418 1,968
Electrical power installation, HMERRIERHRCENRE
intelligent building installation BRAELZETIR -HEK
work, budgeting and AN 422 ) A RS AR 7%
cost control consultation
services from related
companies 109,403 76,579
2,439,082 2,035,370
Note: B et -
These related companies are owned by the brother and the brother-in-law of ZEBERABEARENLELE (LKL A

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board of

Directors of the Company).

ERRRFREEFGTE) 2L RHX

HEHZRA

- ZE-TEFR

BEAREERRAR
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41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 41 BEALTRZ ®)
(b) Amounts due from/to related parties were (b) B HHEEATZR
as follows: \|AE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
Due from an associate FE W — B & A | 2 RIE 30,382 29,365
Due from related companies (Note) e B E N Rl 2 kI8 (K it) 13,644 13,664
Due to an associate JE N — M B A Bl 2 RIE 6,486 6,269
Due to related companies (Note) JERTREE R Al 2 ZIE (A it) 344,057 173,721
Due to a jointly controlled entity JER —FE ARG TR 2
IR 1,709,345 1,842,289
As at 31st December 2010, the Group had accounts payable RZFE—ZFF+ZH=+
of approximately HK$2,534,380,000 (2009: HK$2,471,757,000) —HB AEBRENET@EE
due to certain related companies (Note) in respect of property NA(MET)MWEREEEY
construction fees (see Note 23). 2,534,380,000 ;L ( Z T Z 11
4 :2,471,757,0007% 7T ) ( 5 M
F23) e
As at 31st December 2010, all outstanding balances with R-_E—ZFTF+ - =+—
related companies, associates and a jointly controlled entity B H@lEEQA - BEQF R
were unsecured, non-interest bearing and without pre- —HHERAZEHEB 2 EH
determined repayment terms. HEER 2 RTERTEE
/TJ\ FXHE o
Note: Bist:
These related companies are owned by the brother and the brother-in-law of ZEMERARARAMKESE (KR E]
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board of ERBRERFEFSERE) ZHBEREX
Directors of the Company). HHZ Al
Amount due to minority shareholders of ) ENHEBL2RAL>ER

(c)

BB HRRME (&)

subsidiaries

The amount due to minority shareholders represents
shareholders’ loans to subsidiaries from the minority
shareholders, which is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
without pre-determined repayment terms. The amount is

considered equity in nature.

RZIE

B LDHBREREEDEBER
mMBARMEE ZREER
EHEREREER 2RERE
EEERH -FHEcBEcME
AR AR o
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41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 4 BEALIRF @

(d TEEEBHMH :

(d) Key management compensation:

2010 2009

—E—ZEF —EETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fees wE 840 720
Salaries and allowances e N&oERL 11,527 13,349
Pension costs RIKE KA 80 150
12,447 14,219

(e) Acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate

Limited and disposal of Cheerocean
Investments Limited

On 2nd November 2009, the Group entered into an
agreement (the “Agreement”) with Guangdong Hanjiang
Construction Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”), a
related company, to acquire the entire interest in Panyu
Zhujiang Real Estate Limited (“Panyu Zhujiang”) for a
consideration of approximately RMB3,810 million and dispose
of the entire interest in Cheerocean Investments Limited
("Cheerocean”) for a consideration of RMB960 million.

Panyu Zhujiang possesses (i) the right to develop a piece of
land in Panyu District, Guangdong, China (“Land A"); (ii) the
land use right of a piece of land in Panyu District, Guangdong,
China (“Land B"); and (iii) 1% equity interest in Guangdong
Huanan New City Real Estate Limited, a 99%-owned subsidiary
of the Group. Pursuant to the Agreement, Hanjiang will
perform and complete all necessary demolition and
preparation work to obtain the land use right certificate of
Land A, at its own expense, within one year from the date of

) WIEBRBKRIFEHE

BRAARHERERF
REBRLQF

RZBZEAF+—AZA K
SEEHRBEQRERELR
ELETIRARAA (I
Atk ((ZmaElD B A
R #3,810,000,000 7T HJ £ (B U&
BEBRIEHERRAA
(IBBWI) 2z LA
A B # 960,000,000 7T &) £t & H
ERFREAERAR(HBED

2 #HE3% -

BRRIHBOER BN
FEEREEEMH LA
1) Z BRI ¢ (i) — &AL X P
ERAEEmM L (B
ZEERE Ri)ERER
HMWEWEARRQA(AEER
HHEIO%EEH MM B QAW
1% - RIBZ W E - BITH
SETHALENIFE R ER

the Agreement. T LA ERA M £ + it (5 A i §
B BMEGEE BRAZ o
3 B R — £ 2 o

. —E =
==

BEAREERRAR
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41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The transactions were completed in March 2010. A net
consideration of RMB2,386 million was settled by the issuance
of shares of the Company in favour of Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the
Chairman of the Group, after deducting from the
consideration of acquiring Panyu Zhujiang the compensation
costs in relation to Land A previously paid by the Group of
RMB464 million and the sale consideration from the disposal
of Cheerocean of RMB960 million.

Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the
Chairman, to the Group

In relation to the Group’s acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang and
disposal of Cheerocean, Mr. Chu Mang Yee, has undertaken
to the Group to (i) guarantee the due and punctual
performance by Hanjiang of its obligations in relation to Land
A (subject to a maximum amount of RMB3,600 million); and (ii)
pay the net consideration of RMB2,386 million to Hanjiang on
or before the completion of the transactions in March 2010.

41 BEAITXRS @)

ZERHGER-_TE—ZTF=A
TERX © 1;4‘:2!&%@1&5%%%%/1
ZRENMBBEBAMLHE X
BE (& & A A K # 464,000,000 70
REEBFNEEREARK
960,000,0007T & * KB F 5 A
R # 2,386,000,000 7T . % 18 [A)
AEBERERAAEREERTAE
NERMDZAT -

FELAAKTERMAE
B ez #
REEASEREFERR IR
HEBEME KRKLTER
) 7N &= (5] 7 g (i) IR 28 72 )1 40 B
BITEEBALNER (RS
FRIE A] # A R #3,600,000,000
) RN —E—ZTF=A%
KZEX R ZAIMETLS
fF+ A R #2,386,000,000 7T ) X
B)F% -
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41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In September 2009, the Group invested in 5.09% attributable
equity interest in a PRC financial institution (the “Financial
Institution”) for RMB980 million (equivalent to
HK$1,112,197,000). Such shares are held through three
related parties of the Company (“trustees”) pursuant to
certain trust agreements made between the Group and each
of the trustees, with the guarantees given by Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, Chairman of the Company, in favour of the Group.
According to the legal advice obtained by the Group, the trust
agreements are legal and valid under PRC laws so far as the
Group and the trustees are concerned. However, the Financial
Institution has the right to require the trustees, who have
subscribed the shares not in the capacity as beneficial owners,
to sell the shares back to the Financial Institution or any party
it may designate at cost. If the Financial Institution exercises
such right against the trustees, it will be obliged to return the
investment (together with all dividends and interest accrued
thereto) to the Group.

ﬁﬁi
>_
H_

St
Nl

RZZBZNFNLA AEEH
EhH—HETEEmEE(S
B B 1)5.09% 8% K H#E 2 A
R #980,000,0007t ( 8 & 7
1,112,197,00078 7t) fEHIZ & -
B A QA EFEREMKTE
REZERUUAEB AR R
A) AEBEEFRASH
NETERBE BERNDE
B=MAARBEALF(EZ
ADBE - BEAEEES
FERER BAKEEBEREFA
iR EaBarPEEE
BTBAEBER - AT <&
BEABRERIIIEUNEERES
AZBEHRERMD ZETLTAIR
B 2N [R) & mh A B8 sk H Al e FE E
ZAEM—FEERD - HEE
BB ETEATEE@AER -
BEBERMASEREKRE (E
B ERE RETHE) -

235

i

=

BEAREERRAR



236

- Annual Report 2010

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

41 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In 2007, the Group completed the acquisition of 80% of the
issued share capital of Believe Best Investments Limited (“Believe
Best”) from Mr. Chu Mang Yee, Chairman of the Company.
Believe Best has, through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary (the
project company), acquired a piece of land for development in
Chaoyang District, Beijing, China (known as the “lJing Run
Project”).

In relation to the Group’s interest in the Jing Run Project
through its 80% interest in Believe Best, Mr. Chu Mang Yee,
has (i) fully guaranteed the bank loans which were used by the
project company for the demolition and relocation of the extra
public greenfield site peripheral to the Jing Run Project at the
request of the local government; and (i) undertaken to the
Group to be responsible for the excess amount, if any, being
the difference in the unit cost per square meter (including the
demolition and relocation fees for the extra public greenfield
site and the land transfer fees as compared with the original
agreed valuation price of Jing Run Project) for the gross floor
area to be developed, payable by the project company in
respect of any increase in plot ratio as the government may
approve. The demolition and relocation on the construction
site have been completed, building construction is in progress
and pre-sale permit in respect of one phase of the Jing Run
Project has been obtained. The demolition and relocation work
on the extra public greenfield is ongoing and related costs of
approximately RMB1,430 million had been incurred by the
Group up to 31st December 2010 (2009: RMB1,410 million).
Such additional costs may be compensated by an increase in
plot ratio for the Jing Run Project. However, government
approval for increase in plot ratio is pending.

ﬁﬁ
>
H_
X
a1

R-IZZELF AEETHKH
ARAEFERBREEWEE
EREARAR(EEDD %
TR 280% 2t » E1ERIE
BERAEZ2EMBARER
NGIDRDE - Sl RV N SRR T
mEBABRAHER 2 L (R
RIRBEEB] -

REBEAEBREFRENEE
80% = Mk A R HIEE 2 #
mME RAKEEENEH
BERASE ZHE AFEEH
BRNz2k - iR HEEBEEFE
BONA AL L Z B M A
EEEZAMBITER K
M) AN £ B & A fin &t BT BE 2
FEBINA &b L 2 B
EmtE s EE - MEBEA
RKZEAN(BRERREIELE R
EMERARZBEINALEZNL T
Mk BEBRARLmEES)
BRRABREZME  KRAK
EEREINZEE QAT
EEmEBL e -ER
HZFBREBTK EFERE
IR WEESEHEAREE
BE—HBEEHAE BIA
At s IFBIIEIEEE
T MASEREEZE=Z —
TF+_A=+—HEEHXE
%9 A K #1,430,000,000 7T 2 #H
BRAZZETNF: ARK
1,410,000,0007T) ° 58 7hAK 48 =%
EREMREEBEE 2 EXE
LAREE - AT - BUAS M R B
EINATE R Z B -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 2 FTENBEBRAAFE
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December U TER-_E—ZFEF+_-_A=+—H
2010: ZEERBAFEE:
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
AR 3L R BBRTR EEELRE
NCIECE EEBE BERAE Bat TEXEH
Directly Indirectly
HiE SiE:3
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands US$2,000 100% —  Investment holding
International Limited REBETHES 2,000 7T HEER
SHEAIRBBRER AR
Addup International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100%  Investment holding
KEEBEARAR B 17&7T REZR
Archibald Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100%  Investment holding
BEEEXABRAA RBRELHE 2% REER
Beijing Hopson Beifang Education Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 49%(ii)  Provision of training
and Technology Limited® LN AR #1,000,0007T and consultancy services
I REEILFHE R RERMIEY KA
ABRATF A
Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate  Mainland China US$86,500,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Limited* A B R B 86,500,000% 7T YRR
bRE &I FEitER
BRAR
Beijing Hopson Lu Zhou Real Estate  Mainland China RMB463,370,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Limited* EalEip N7 AER#463,370,0007T VB R
bR & EARM B AR 3
BRARP
Beijing Hopson Wang Jing Mainland China RMB364,990,000 — 100%  Property development
Real Estate Development B K e AR #364,990,0007T YHE R
Company Limited*
ItREEERFEMERE
BRAF"
Beijing Hopson Xing Ye Real Estate  Mainland China US$31,600,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Limited* )TN 75 31,600,0003 7T YEEE R
I RE BRI ERE
BRAR"
Beijing Hopson Yujing Real Estate Mainland China US$63,160,000 — 100%  Property development

Development Limited”
EREERREERE
BRAR"

hBIARE

63,160,000% 7T

MEER
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42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continved) 42 3 M 1B 2 51 345 40)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
& i AR 3L 2 BETR SEEERE
ACIEE EE R BRBRA Bak FEXEK
Directly Indirectly
B 8
Beijing Long Jia Jincheng Property Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited A BIAPE AE#10,000,0007T MEER
It RERRIEE ERR
BRAT
Beijing Long Xiang Landmark Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Property Development AR B ARE AR #10,000,0007T MEER
Company Limited
bR E M EHERE AR AR
Beijing Xingjingrun Mainland China US$131,990,000 = 80%  Property development
Property Co., Ltd." A B RRE 131,990,000 7T MR
R EEESR AR
Beijing Yishang Property Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Limited” A B RRE A #10,000,0005T MEER
b Res EEER T
BRAF"
Beijing Zhujiang Century Property Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100%  Property management
Management Limited* B K R AR#5,000,0007T MEERE
ERRT ALY FEE R
ARAR"
Believe Best Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 = 80%  Investment holding
EEREBRAA RERLHE 10037 RER
- Chia Lung Group Company Limited Samoa US$6,500,000 — 100%  Investment holding
S EREREARAF TERE TR Y 6,500,0003 7T REZR
T
o Dalian Hopson Hotel Mainland China RMB30,000,000 = 100%  Hotel operation
& Investment Management A B RRE AFR#30,000,0007T P
T:‘} Company Limited®
£ RESEEEREEE
BRARP
k5
*Ej Dalian Hopson Xing Ye Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100%  Property development
S Real Estate Development A B RRE AEE#50,000,0007T MR
_é’ Company Limited®
2 KIEA 4 AR
s BRAFP
£
3 Dynawell Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 50%(ii)  Investment holding
§ AR A BRAF B8 10,0007 7% AR
5
5]
acg
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42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continved) 42 3 Wi 1B 2 51 345 (40)

Place of Percentage of equity

incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable

Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
& AR 3 )R BETR SEEERE
ACIEE EE i E BRRA BAk FEXK
Directly Indirectly
B i $
Ever New Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary — 100%  Investment holding and
B BEEARAR B HK$3 non-voting property investment
deferred shares (i) BEER YL E
2B T EBER
3B TLEIRRE
RFERXA (i)
Funland Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100%  Investment holding
REEZRRAR REBRERHS 27T REER
Grand Avenue Limited Hong Kong HK$22,500,000 — 100%  Investment holding
WEAR AT BB 22,500,000/ 7T REZER
Guangdong Esteem Property Mainland China HK$5,000,000 — 100%  Property management
Services Limited* wh B A 5,000,000 7% MEERE
EREEYERBARAR"
Guangdong Hopson Dijing Mainland China US$37,500,000 — 100%  Property development
Real Estate Co. Ltd.* LHIETPN S 37,500,000% T CUELLIi
BREEFREME
BRAF
Guangdong Hopson Mainland China RMB200,280,000 — 100%  Property development
Hong Jing Real Estate AR B A B AR#200,280,0007T LESLE
Company Limited*
BRE4AFREME
BRAF"
Guangdong Hopson Lejing Mainland China RMB44,500,000 — 100%  Property development
Real Estate Co. Limited" B KR AR #44,500,0007T MEER
BREEESFHE
BRAR"
Guangdong Hopson Minghui Mainland China RMB41,532,852 — 90%  Property development
Real Estate Limited' R R RE AR#41,532,8527TC MERER .
ERA EPEREE i
A M
BRAT] By
\
Guangdong Hopson Yuehua Mainland China RMB41,500,000 — 100%  Property development W
Real Estate Limited” LaETPN 3 AR #41,500,0007T MEER
BRE S MERME
BRAR"
Guangdong Huajingxincheng Mainland China RMB93,500,018 — 100%  Property development

Real Estate Limited*
BRIESFIE MtE
BRAR)

B RE

AR#93,500,0187¢

YE S

BEAREERRAR
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42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continved) 42 3 M 1B 2 51 345 40)

Place of Percentage of equity

incorporation

Issued and fully

interest attributable

Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
& i AR 3L 2 BETR EEEGRE
ACIEE EE R BRBRA Bak FEXEK
Directly Indirectly
B i =

Guangdong Huanan New City Mainland China RMB464,750,000 — 100%  Property development
Real Estate Limited' R ARE AR%464,750,0007T MEER

&R EEFHTIHE HhE
BRRA

Guangdong Huanan Mainland China RMB48,046,856 — 70%  Property development
Real Estate Limited' A B RRE AR #48,046,8567T L EX

EREREMEBRAR

Guangdong Jinan Mainland China RMB65,084,340 — 90%  Property development
Real Estate Limited' A B RRE AR #65,084,3407T MEER

EREREMEFR AR

Guangdong New Tai An Mainland China RMB19,100,000 = 100%  Property development
Real Estate Limited" LHETPN S AR #19,100,0007T MR

BRI HRREHMEARAR

Guangzhou Hechuang Mainland China RMB 100,000,000 — 100%  Provision of construction
Construction Company Limited®  FREIAFE AR #100,000,0007T, service

BMN& el TIRER e BRAF° R RS

Guangzhou Hopson Cuijing Mainland China RMB53,550,000 — 97%  Property development
Real Estate Limited' LlEPN AR#53,550,0007T R

BMNEER=RHEGRAR

Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Mainland China RMB42,500,000 — 100%  Property development
Real Estate Limited' GHETPN S AR #42,500,0007T MR

EMEERFREGRAA

Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Mainland China RMB221,670,000 — 95%  Property development
Real Estate Limited' AR B RRE AR#221,670,0007T MEERE

BMNEGERSEHEGRAR

Guangzhou Hopson Keji Garden Mainland China RMB 133,340,000 — 95%  Property development
Real Estate Limited' LETPN 75 AR #133,340,0007¢ MHEER

BME £ EEERR AR

Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui Mainland China RMB42,287,624 — 100%  Property development
Real Estate Limited' GETPN S AR #42,287,6247C UL

EMNEEEREEEGRAR

Guangzhou Hopson Mainland China RMB3,000,000 — 100%  Water supply
Qingyuan Water Supply Limited © /1 Bl KfE AR#3,000,0007T froK

BN & EFRFRERAAF
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42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continved) 42 3 Wi 1B 2 51 345 (40)

Place of Percentage of equity

incorporation

Issued and fully

interest attributable

Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
& AR 3 )R BETR SEESRE
ACIEE EE i E BRRA BAk FEXK
Directly Indirectly
HiE SF:3

Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing Mainland China RMB500,000 — 100%  Provision of clubhouse

Business Services Limited ° R A RE AR #500,0007T and residential services
BMNEEERBBERIR RS REERES
Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Mainland China RMB131,420,019 — 100%  Property development

Real Estate Limited' LETPNES AR¥131,420,0197C MERER
BMNEEIRER M E

BRRA
Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Mainland China RMB82,073,720 — 99.5%  Property development

Real Estate Limited' R RE AR #£82,073,7207T CUELIi
BMEERsEERRAR
Guangzhou Hopson Yujing Mainland China RMB47,250,000 — 70%  Property development

Real Estate Limited' A B RRE AE#47,250,0005T MEER
BENE&EMREERRRR
Guangzhou Jian Nan Property Mainland China US$12,000,000 — 100%  Property development

Development Limited" B RRE 12,000,000 7T LEXd
BENEmEEERARANR"
Guangzhou Nonggongshang Mainland China RMB2,170,243 — 100%  Property development

Construction and AR B RRE AE12,170,2437T YRR

Development Company Limited*
BT R T EEERAE AR
Guangzhou Sanlian Huagiao Mainland China RMB30,000,000 — 67%  Property development

Estate Company Limited” B K R AR #30,000,0007 MEER
BN =MEEEERRIA"
Guangzhou Wanxiangying Mainland China RMB1,000,000 — 100%  Property development

Real Estate Company Limited® B RRE AEK#1,000,0007T MEER
BEMTEREmEERFRAR

e

Guangzhou Xin Chang Jiang Mainland China RMB60,000,000 — 95.5%  Property development R

Development Limited® R ARE AR #60,000,0007T MERER ﬁ
BN R TRRMBERAA o

I

Guangzhou Yi Cheng Real Estate Mainland China RMB42,000,000 — 75%  Property development

Development Limited' EETPNES AR#42,000,0005T YS9 I
BT SR AR T AR AT =
Guangzhou Yi Hui Real Estate Mainland China RMB37,000,000 — 75%  Property development iﬂy

Development Limited' R R RE AR #37,000,0007T MEERE E%
BN RE R R B AR AT b
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42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of

incorporation Issued and fully

42 FEMBRARIFE®

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
& i AR 3L 2 BETR SEEERE
ACIEE EE R BRBRA Bak FEXEK
Directly Indirectly
B 8
Guangzhou Yijing Arts and Mainland China RMB500,000 — 100% Investment holding
Culture Company Limited? LB N 73 AFR#500,0007T AR
BMNES XL BMERAR AR’
Guangzhou Yiming Real Estate Mainland China RMB43,800,000 — 50%(ii)  Property development
Development Company A B RRE A #43,800,0007T YEHRE
Limited”
MR E AR B AR AR
Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Mainland China RMB535,500,000 — 99.5%  Property development
Real Estate Limited' B RE AR #535,500,0007T MR
BN T EHEEARAF
Guangzhou Ziyun Village Mainland China US$2,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Real Estate Company Limited* ElETpN 73 2,000,0003 7T VIR
BMNEELHFEHESRAR
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100%  Provision of property
(Consultants) Limited NBEZHS 2ZTT design and advisory
SHEEIRE (BR)BRAF services
R R MR
PR
Hopson Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100%  Property investment
(Properties) Limited a5 10,0005 7T MERE
SHEIR(BX)ERAA
Hopson (Guangzhou) Mainland China US$4,830,000 = 100%  Property development
Industries Limited?* B AE 4,830,00055 7T MEER
EEBEMEXERAA"
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary — 100%  Investment holding
BEEBERRAR &8 HK$10,000 REER
non-voting deferred
shares (i)
2B T E B
10,0007 JT ik R 1E
RIERRAA ()
Hopson Properties (China) Limited  British Virgin Islands UsS$1 — 100%  Investment holding
BEREBEMERR AT RBELRS (E REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continved) 42 3 Wi 1B 2 51 345 (40)

Place of Percentage of equity

incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable

Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
& AR 3 )R BETR SEEERE
ACIEE EE i E BRRA BAk FEXK
Directly Indirectly
HiE i $

Huizhou Daya Bay Mainland China RMB72,500,000 — 60%  Property development

New Coastal City Development R EIARE AR H72,500,0007T MEER

and Investment Co., Ltd.”
VN PNGEN Fiivisa=2 ik =554

REBRAT
Huizhou Haolong Industrial Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited® A B ARE AR#10,000,0007T MEER
BMNTREEEERRARAA’
Huizhou Hopson Xin Neng Mainland China HK$50,000,000 — 100%  Property development

Properties Limited* B K R 50,000,0003% 7T MEER
BN EEEREEEARAR"
Huizhou Yapai Real Estate Mainland China RMB250,000,000 = 100%  Property development

Company Limited" A B RRE AE#250,000,0007T MEER
BNTEREHESR AR
Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate Mainland China RMB119,000,000 — 100%  Property development

Company Limited* P B AR AER#119,000,0007T LIESLE
BN EFERESR AR
Ji Run Property Investments Hong Kong HK$ 1,000,000 — 80% Investment holding

Limited B 1,000,000 70 REZER
HHEBEREBRAF]
Karworld Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100%  Investment holding
EMEEBRAT BB 10,0007#7C REER
Kun Shan Hopson Property Mainland China RMB200,000,000 — 100%  Property development

Development Company Limited A BIAPE AR #200,000,0007T MEER
BIL&ERHEREGRAR
Malaysian Teoghew Industrial Estate  Mainland China HK$25,000,000 — 55%  Property development

Development (Guang Zhou) Ltd.* /1 BIKRE 25,000,000 7T MR o
BEMNEMIENZERER AR ﬁ

Bl

Max Clear Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100%  Investment holding &N
FERERRAF B 17T BB 1
Nambour Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 = 100%  Investment holding
AEEEFRAA RERRHS 2% REZER

BEAREERRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of

incorporation Issued and fully

42 FEMBRARIFE®

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
& i AR 3L 2 BETR EEEGRE
ACIEE EE R BRBRA Bak FEXEK
Directly Indirectly
B i =
Ningbo Hopson Ci City Leisure Mainland China US$10,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Sports Company Limited® LN =3 10,000,000 7T MEEE R
HREERBNEEE LR
BIRAFRP
Ningbo Hopson Kam City Mainland China RMB 150,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Real Estate Company Limited® A B RRE AR #150,000,0007T, MEER
BREERNEHERR AR’
Ningbo Hopson Ming City Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Real Estate Company Limited® LETPN 5 AR #10,000,0007T MEER
BEREELWEMEGRAR’
Ningbo Hopson Real Estate Mainland China RMB220,000,000 — 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited® AR B RRE AE#220,000,0007T REZER
BERELEIRFEHEFRAR’
Outward Expanse Investments British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100%  Investment holding
Limited KBRS 27T REZER
BRIEERR AT
Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Company Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Limited BTN AR #5,000,0007C SR
HEWIFEMERR AR
Plaza Royale Water Palace Mainland China RMB72,000,000 — 70%  Hotel operation
Convention Hotel Tianjin A B RRE AR #72,000,0007T B
Co. Limited®
KEHEBRAEFRAF
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100%  Investment holding
BEBEEARAF KBRS ESH REZR
Prestige Dragon Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100%  Investment holding
Limited BB 10,000787T RER
EEERARAF
Right Strong International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
EREERBR AT B 18T REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continved) 42 3 Wi 1B 2 51 345 (40)

Place of Percentage of equity

incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable

Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
& AR 3 )R BETR SEESRE
ACIEE EE i E BRRA BAk FEXK
Directly Indirectly
HiE i $
Shanghai Dazhan Investment Mainland China RMB900,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Management Company Limited® /R BIARE AR #900,000,0007T ey
FEREREETEARAR
Shanghai Hechuang Lin Hai Property Mainland China RMB600,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited 7 BIARE AE#600,000,0007T EXd
PERAIGEFHEREERAR
Shanghai Hopson Property Mainland China US$59,900,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited” A BIARE 59,900,000% 7T YIEER
EEEERMEREERAR"
Shanghai Long Jia Properties Mainland China RMB20,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Limited® B RE AR #20,000,0007¢ YE S
FBREEBEEARARS
Shanghai Lung Meng Real Estate Mainland China US$44,370,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited® 7 BIAPE 44,370,000 T LEXd
PEREBREMmEREARAR"
Shanghai Shangzhi Haiyun Mainland China RMB400,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Properties Company Limited® AR B RRE AR #400,000,0007T PR
B FESEEXERAR
Shanghai Son Xiang Real Estate Mainland China US$8,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited* R BIARE 8,000,000% 7T YR
PE=REEERERAF)
Shanghai Yu Tai Real Estate Mainland China RMB400,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited® 7 BIARE AR #400,000,0007T LEXd
PEHREHEZRARAR’
Shanghai Ze Yu Properties Limited”  Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 94%  Property development
FERFEEERAA R ARE AR #50,000,0007T MEER =
b
Shanghai Zhengze Real Estate Mainland China RMB50,000,000 — 100%  Property development By

Development Company Limited®

bPEIEEEMEFGR AR’

B RE

AR #50,000,0007¢

YS9

—E—T
T3

BEAREERRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation

Issued and fully

42 FEMBRARIFE®

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
& i AR 3L 2 BETR EEEGRE
ACIEE EE R BRBRA Bak FEXEK
Directly Indirectly
B i =
Shanxi Hopson Dijing Construction ~ Mainland China RMB 185,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Company Limited* LB N 73 AR #185,000,0007T MEER
WA EmRERERA A
Shine Wealth Consultants Limited ~ British Virgin Islands UsS$1 — 100%  Provision of consultancy
S ERMARAR RBETHS 17T services
TR A R AR 7S
Size Up Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100%  Investment holding
BEHRERR AT BE 17T REZER
Solawide Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100%  Investment holding
SEEBXRBAT KBRS 2%T7T REERR
Suizhong Haisheng Tourism Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 51%  Property development
Development Corporation® ElETpN 73 AJR#10,000,0007T MEER
RIEBRIKEEXERARAR’
Sun Advance Investments Limited British Virgin Islands UsS$1 — 100%  Investment holding
HERERR AR RBRIHES (E REER
Sun Yick Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100%  Investment holding
MaBERRAT KBRS 2%T7T REERR
Tianjin Babo Real Estate Mainland China RMB20,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Development Company Limited® 1 BIARE AR#20,000,0007T MEER
REMEEEMERERRAF
Tianjin Hopson Binhai Real Estate Mainland China RMB375,826,000 — 98.9%  Property development
Development Company Limited" 7 BIARE AR #375,826,0007T e
REGEBBREMERE
BRAR
Tianjin Hopson Environmental Mainland China US$500,000 — 75%  Research and development
Protection and Energy Saving A BIARE 500,000 of environmental

Technology Development
Company Limited"

REE EIRIRETRERMTF 3
BRAR"

technology and product
TIT I BB IR AR BT I
Efm



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation

Issued and fully

42 FEMBLARIFE @

Percentage of equity
interest attributable

Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
& AR 3 )R BETR SEEERE
ACIEE EE i E BRRA BAk FEXK
Directly Indirectly
HiE i $

Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Mainland China RMB280,000,000 — 92.3%  Property development
Real Estate Development Limited' 2 BIARE AR 280,000,0007T MEER

RESERIEHERZ
BRARF)

Tianjin Jade Buddha Temple Mainland China RMB5,000,000 — 100%  Museum operation
Museum Management B R R AR #5,000,0007T EY RS SR
Company Limited

REMEREEFHEEDE
KEBRARAT

Tianjin Meixin Architectural Design ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 = 100%  Architectural Design
Company Limited® B RRE AE#3,000,0007T BEFRE

RERIRERGTERRAR

Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 — 100% Investment holding

HEEBEXBRAR KBRS 2%ETT BB

Trisum Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 — 100% Investment holding

BREERRAA] BB 5,000,000/ 7T REZER

Value-Added Guangzhou Limited®  Mainland China RMB8,000,000 — 70%  Property development

BTNz B R AR R A RE AR 8,000,0007T MERER

Zhejiang Ke Hua Digital Plaza Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 95%  Property development
Company Limited® B K R A#10,000,0007T MEER

AL REESIE F5 AR AR’

Zhongshan Hopson Hao Jing Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Real Estate Company Limited® B RRE AE#10,000,0007T MEER

FlLmEEREREEGRAR

Zhongshan Hopson Hong Jing Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 — 100%  Property development

Real Estate Company Limited®
FILTmEERRFEHERRAR

LHETPNE

AR#10,000,0007T

MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continved) 42 3 M 1B 2 51 345 40)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activities
= 8 B I R ERTR SEEMGKRRE
AR BB EEMWE B R A ERal 4 FTEXEHK
Directly Indirectly
HiE ) #
Zhongshan Hopson Xi Jing Mainland China RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Real Estate Company Limited® LB N 73 AJR%10,000,0007T MEER
FlLTEERSEEGR AR
Zhongxian International Mainland China RMB900,000,000 — 100%  Property development
Company Limited® A B RRE A #900,000,0007T MEER
BB IER AR A A
# These are wholly owned foreign enterprises established in Mainland China. i ZERRHPBEXER L2 2 & FA I
Bibs-

4 These are equity joint ventures established in Mainland China. 4 ZERRFBERNEKR I 2EEEE T

£

! These are cooperative joint ventures established in Mainland China. ! ZERRFBERNEKR L2 EEE &

£

2 These are domestic enterprises established in Mainland China. ? ZERBRPBERER T ZAELE -

A These are foreign enterprises established in Mainland China. ! ZERBRABEABEX L2 INELE -

Notes: B et -

(i) The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights and are not entitled to any (i) BREBBEIRG I EREIE  FEW
dividend or distributions upon winding up unless a sum of REMRERERERERIGEZ TSI
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary B 3E 100,000,000,000,000,% 7T 2 53k T
shares and thereafter one-half of the assets are distributable to holders of the EBERGEA AIE#EEZ —FA5
non-voting deferred shares. IETHERERBELERGIFAA °

(ii) These are subsidiaries because the Group has the power to govern the financial (ii) BEAEBRZERNAZRAERZIT
and operating policies of these companies, notwithstanding that the Group’s FBiB50% ' 5% F B BN E A AT B R
equity interests in these companies are not more than 50%. REBERAEZZENRZHBEREE

B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

43 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(a)

On 21st January 2011, the Company issued 11.75% senior
notes with an aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,340,000,000). The senior
notes mature in five years (January 2016) and are repayable at
their nominal value of US$300,000,000. The Company will be
entitled at its option to redeem all or a portion of the senior
notes on or after 21st January 2014 at the redemption prices
specified in the offering circular, plus accrued and unpaid
interests to the redemption date.

On 22nd February 2011, the Company's acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Sun Excel Investments Limited
from Farrich Investments Limited and the terms of the Share
Purchase Agreement (as varied and amended by the
Supplemental Agreement) relating to the acquisition of the
project located in Majugiao Town of Tongzhou District in
Beijing for a consideration of RMB6,605,066,000, which
constituted a major and connected transaction of the
Company was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting of the Company.

43

B
&

(a

EHR=S=E

RZF—-——F—-A=+—
H X"RARBETREEAS
300,000,000 T ( M & M &
2,340,000,0007%8 7T ) ) 11.75F
BEAEBR - BEEBERAFE
ZE-RNFE—R)EH B
T & 300,000,000 % JT € & ° A&
NAEHEER T —NF—
AZ+—BR2BEBEEBK
FIAZERESNEEER A
BRFTRMAFE - BB 2K

BEERE-

R-EBE——F_F=-+=—8"
RAARMEERERRRA AR
BHEREERARIZIHE &
TRRA KRR E 53 (&
WrRHBEERRIEE) AR E
A B #6,605,066,000 7T Y& B 7
BN SHEEREB MK
HERARR —HEARBE
R BEEARRABIBRRER
RRRIREEERI RS LB -
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Summary of Financial Information

B ERIE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS HEEEEER
2006 2007 2008 2009
ZETRE ZZETHHF ZTTN\E ZZTNE
Restated Restated Restated Restated
rE5| &5 rE3| rE|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land costs + 3 AR 500,367 639,205 749,663 329,440 622,193
Prepayments for W+t I8 R IE
acquisition of land — — 2,436,630 266,962 209,795
Properties and equipment EE 1,267,460 2,063,811 2,405,623 3,175,029 3,199,845
Investment properties REME 2,503,845 2,736,835 2,856,094 8,378,105 15,405,498
Properties under development for FIERBMBEZER
long-term investment iy 227,765 135,157 125,856 — —
Intangible assets EVEE 106,349 111,819 120,455 120,660 124,837
Investments in associates REE AT 2R E — 39,206 42,201 40,925 43,433
Investment in a jointly R—E R EH &
controlled entity ZRE 1,033,245 676,460 801,240 1,188,692 1,512,923
Available-for-sale financial assets At HEMBEE 291,834 463,158 476,250 2,671,719 3,316,388
Deposit paid BEffEE 554,579 — — — —
Deposit for proposed investment BRRE ke — — — — 560,210
Deferred tax assets ERRBEE 42,357 107,878 173,378 191,287 167,541
Other non-current asset HiERBEE 919,584 — — _ _
7,447,385 6,973,529 10,187,390 16,362,819 25,162,663
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of land Ut B8 1 3t 78 + 7138 634,080 12,027,112 6,142,999 7,363,482 18,053,335
Properties under development AffHEZERS
g for sale ES 10,941,716 20,281,103 30,544,173 30,556,607 31,967,756
& Completed properties for sale AREE 2B &K
08; S 2,294,563 3,234,664 7,336,763 7,835,600 10,487,033
% Financial assets at fair value BATEERER
§ through profit or loss SR 2 BT T B B — 20,280 11,655 11,083 11,693
<_( Accounts receivable JE U BR 3R 111,142 138,743 72,577 146,895 171,953
o Prepayments, deposits and other BRHE Rek
= current assets R it 8 & E 1687347 2,956,191 1528568 1,620,126 2,565,026
Iy Due from an associate JiE e — R Bk & 1
é A — 22,344 26,538 29,365 30,382
E Due from related companies JE U [ 4 B FUB 18,531 17,390 6,979 13,664 13,644
%’_ Pledged/charged bank deposits BER/ WRRT
g lEE 157,317 277,031 271,450 168,479 123,671
é Cash and cash equivalents BeRELZEYD 2,412,479 1,985,055 2,142,696 6,546,144 2,573,604
% 18,257,175 40,959,913 48,084,398 54,291,445 65,998,097
I
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Summary of Financial Information (continued) 1% & £HZE (48)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued) nEEEEBR®
2006 2007 2008 2009

ZETNE ZETHHF ZTTN\E ZETNFE
Restated Restated Restated Restated
BE| &5 rE5| mE5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET TAET FHT TERT

LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payables FETBR X 563,378 953,128 2,933,721 2,941,424 5,645,612
Land cost payable FEf £ AR A 1,070,928 605,289 323,696 302,418 264,271
Borrowings EE 1,345,042 2,898,895 4,262,798 6,232,260 3,671,919
Deferred revenue FEIEWA 4,167,431 4,981,769  4,458379 7,260,538 5,544,615
Accruals and other payables P FRIE M E A
B 989,702 1,763,446 2,249,864 1,728,752 2,196,200
Due to an associate B —fEBERR
HA 5,343 5,624 6,258 6,269 6,486
Due to related companies R BERR KA 103,398 137,836 174,920 173,721 344,057
Due to a jointly controlled entity JE A5 — P £ R
ERFE 1,037,287 231,253 759,380 1,842,289 1,709,345
Current tax liabilities AHRIBAE 416,109 2,515,248 4,162,230 4,357,337 4,643,003
9,698,618 14,092,488 19,331,246 24,845,008 24,025,508
Net current assets MEBBERE 8,558,557 26,867,425 28,753,152 29,446,437 41,972,589
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBAE 16,005,942 33,840,954 38,940,542 45,809,256 67,135,252
Non-current liabilities *¥RBER
Land cost payable JEEf5F £ 3t B, X = 175,959 106,173 271,028 111,178
Borrowings &8 6,076,963 9,718,998 12,330,211 10,116,598 20,047,524
Deferred tax liabilities EEMBERE 1,119,814 3,867,687 3,890,102 4,502,743 5,551,128
Due to minority shareholders LN
of subsidiaries S — — 49,983 419,411 432,323
Other non-current liability HMIETRESHERE 581,250 — — — —
7,778,027 13,762,644 16,376,469 15,309,780 26,142,153
Net assets BEEE 8,227,915 20,078,310 22,564,073 30,499,476 40,993,099
=5
EQUITY £ il
Capital and reserves attributable AKARIREREA Eﬁw
to the Company's equity holders JE G A% AN Ko 5% W
Share capital AR 128,510 147,237 147,237 159,237 175,237 _
Reserves 1 7,709,155 17,717,146 20,032,657 28,034,506 38,011,918 =
«
7,837,665 17,864,383 20,179,894 28,193,743 38,187,155 j%é
Non-controlling interests IE 42 ) 1 R 25 390,250 2,213,927 2,384,179 2,305,733 2,805,944
[
Total equity T e 8,227,915 20,078,310 22,564,073 30,499,476 40,993,099 E
<
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Summary of Financial Information (continued) Bf#%& £ (&)

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS mEeEBmEK
2006 2007 2008 2009

—ERENE —FTELF —FRN\F —BBRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

FAT FAET FAT FHET FTERT
Revenues W 25 6,920,294 11,130,643 10,774,624 11,225,246 14,379,253
Cost of sales £H & B AN (4,509,340) (6,669,998) (5,915,976) (6,557,985) (8,692,021)
Gross profit ES 2,410,954 4,460,645 4,858,648 4,667,261 5,687,232
Fair value gains on BEYENFER S
investment properties 261,414 386,732 34,076 4,700,097 3,795,624
Other income/gains, net HbUg AUz
FRE 244,117 1,106,985 265,395 734,033 1,124,053
Selling and marketing costs $HE R TG ER A (228,618) (281,082) (389,348) (378,757) (410,225)
General and administrative —MRITHEA
expenses (296,600) (510,672) (690,877) (995,041) (1,117,712)
Operating profit 5w 2,391,267 5,162,608 4,077,894 8,727,593 9,078,972
Finance income RSN 26,814 50,394 12,376 13,551 17,039
Finance costs B 7% Bk 2N (84,808) (136,916) (226,765) (333,639) (253,307)
Share of profit less loss 7k B & R A
of associates i )R B 18 (80) (599) (33) (1,346) 1,071
Share of profit/(loss) of and AEHEEESEE
other gains relating to m Al (& 18) &
jointly controlled entities H U 25 128,343 101,964 (1,710) 385,759 (666)
Profit before taxation & B BT S5 A 2,461,536 5,177,451 3,861,762 8,791,918 8,843,109
Taxation i 18 (837,358) (1,629,245) (1,912,812) (2,699,383) (2,550,097)
Profit for the year FEE T 1,624,178 3,548,206 1,948,950 6,092,535 6,293,012
Attributable to: FEAG -
Equity holders of the Company A2 &l fi#E#HA A 1,553,752 3,517,312 1,963,724 5,799,573 5,889,412
Non-controlling interests FE 1 1 70,426 30,894 (14,774) 292,962 403,600

1,624,178 3,548,206 1,948,950 6,092,535 6,293,012

- Annual Report 2010

Dividends % B 480,980 616,922 294,621 146,498 300,531

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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Hong Kong

Beijing Representative Office
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Beijing
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